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Go Green Initiative - Electronic Mode of service of documents: 
 
We as a responsible corporate citizen welcome and support the “Go Green Initiative in 
Corporate Governance” by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) which enables the 
Company to do paperless compliances. The above initiative will go a long way in conserving 
paper which is a natural resource and also result in substantial savings on printing and posting 
of Annual Reports to the shareholders of the Company. 
 
In this regard, we seek your whole-hearted support for this initiative. We would request you 
update your email address with the respective Depository Participants in case of electronic 
shareholding or register your email addresses with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer 
Agents in case of physical shareholding, to get Annual Reports and other communications 
through e-mail instead of paper mode. 
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HARIYANA SHIP- BREAKERS LIMITED 
(CIN: L61100MH1981PLC024774) 

156, Maker Chambers VI, 220, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021 
Website: www.hariyanagroup.com; Email: secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com;  

Tel: 022-22043211; Fax: 22043215 
 

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM 
Dear Members, 
 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India have 
commenced Green Initiative by allowing paperless compliances by Companies. The Companies 
can send Annual Reports and General Notices in electronic mode to Members who have 
registered their e-mail addresses for the purpose. 
 
It is a welcome move for the society at large as this will reduce paper consumption to a great 
extent and allow Shareholders to contribute towards a Greener Environment. This is a golden 
opportunity for every Shareholder of the Company to contribute to the Corporate Social 
Responsibility initiative of the Company. 
 
We therefore invite all our Members to contribute to the cause by filling up the form given 
below to receive communication from the Company in electronic mode. You can also 
download the enclosed registration form which is available on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.hariyanagroup.com.  
 
Let’s be part of this ‘Green Initiative’! 
 
Please note that as a Member of the Company you will be entitled to receive all such 
communication in physical form, upon request. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Shantisarup Reniwal 
Chairman 
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E - COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM 
Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID:  
 
......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
Name of 1st Registered Holder:  
 
......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
Name of Joint Holder(s):  
 
......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
Registered Address:  
 
......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
E-mail ID (to be registered):  
 
......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
I/ We Member(s) of Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited agree to receive communication from the 
Company in electronic mode. 
 
Please register my above e-mail address in your records for sending communication through E-
mail. 
 
Date: ..............................                                                                                Signature: ............................ 
 
Note: Member(s) are requested to provide the e-mail ID very carefully, as all the 
communication from the Company shall be sent to the e-mail ID provided through this form. 
The Shareholders are also requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any 
change in the registered E-mail address. 
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NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM” or “the Meeting”) of the 
members of Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 
09.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to 
transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

 
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Statutory Auditors thereon; and 
 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal (DIN: 00040355), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint M/s. LLB & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 117758W) 
as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: - 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for 
the time being in force), M/s. LLB & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
Number 117758W), be and is hereby appointed as one of the Joint Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to hold office for a first term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of 
43rd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 48th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, at a remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the said Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any 
Committee thereof) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and take all such steps 
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
4. To appoint Mr. Viral Kumar Teli (DIN: 10746522) as Non-Executive Independent Director of 

the Company and in this regard, pass the following resolution as Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161, Schedule IV 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules 
framed thereunder, and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the LODR Regulations”) (including any statutory 
modification or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Articles of 
Association of the Company, approvals and recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors and subject to approval of 
Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB), Mr. Viral Kumar Teli (DIN: 10746522), who was appointed 
as an Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent Director with effect from 
August 29, 2024, who meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the LODR Regulations be and is 
hereby appointed as Non- Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 
5 consecutive years commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, and that he 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or 
any of the powers to any committee of directors with power to further delegate to or any 
other Officer(s) / Authorized Representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and 
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 

5. To appoint Mr. Divyush Goenka (DIN: 00459230) as Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company and in this regard, pass the following resolution as Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161, Schedule IV 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules 
framed thereunder, and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“the LODR Regulations”) (including any statutory 
modification or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Articles of 
Association of the Company, approvals and recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors and subject to approval of 
Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB), Mr. Divyush Goenka (DIN: 00459230), who was appointed 
as an Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent Director with effect from 
August 29, 2024, who meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the LODR Regulations be and is 
hereby appointed as Non- Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 
5 consecutive years commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, and that he 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or 
any of the powers to any committee of directors with power to further delegate to or any 
other Officer(s) / Authorized Representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and 
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Kewlani & 
Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003362), appointed by the Board of 
Directors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company be paid a remuneration 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2025 of Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand Only) 
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plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them in connection 
with the aforesaid audit.  
 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited 

 
 
 
Rakesh Reniwal 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00029332)                                                                    

Unnati Reniwal 
Director 
(DIN: 00041306) 

 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES 
 

1. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 
13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 
dated May 5, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 
dated December 14, 2021, Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, Circular No. 10/2022 
dated December 28, 2022 and Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and all other 
relevant circulars issued from time to time (hereinafter referred as “MCA Circulars”), 
physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and the Meeting 
may be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). 
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of 
the Company situated at 156, Maker Chambers VI, 220 Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai-4000021. 
 

2. The relevant explanatory statements pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”), relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM/Meeting”) is annexed hereto. Further the details in pursuance of 
Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Clause 1.2.5 of 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting under Item No. 2, 4 and 5 of 
the Notice, forms integral part of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite 
declarations for their appointment and re-appointment. In terms of LODR, none of the 
directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM have resigned from any listed 
entities in the past three years.  
 

3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is 
not available for this AGM and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not 
annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised 
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast 
their votes through e-voting. 
 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the 
Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include Large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first 
come first served basis. 
 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended, from time to time) and 
Regulation 44 of LODR (as amended, from time to time), and MCA circulars, the 
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business 
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to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a 
member using remote e-Voting system as well as voting on the date of the AGM will be 
provided by NSDL. 
  

7. In line with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, May 
13, 2022, January 5, 2023 and October 07, 2023 the Notice calling the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members 
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or CDSL / NSDL 
(“Depositories”). The Notice along with the Annual Report 2023-24 can also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and at the 
website of the Company at www.hariyanagroup.com and the AGM Notice is also available 
on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

8. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also 
required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/ 
Authority Letter etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at dilipbcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in and the Company at secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. Institutional 
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 
Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

9. In terms of the MCA Circulars and in the view of the Board of Directors, all matters 
included in this Notice are unavoidable and hence are proposed to be approved at this 
AGM. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice calling the AGM will 
be made available for electronic inspection by the Members upon sending the email to the 
Company at secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com upto the date of the AGM.  
 

10. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this 
Notice. 
 

11. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to furnish bank details, e-mail 
address, change of address, etc. to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: Link 
Intime India Private Limited, C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 
400083, so as to reach them latest by Monday, September 23, 2024, in order to take note of 
the same. In respect of Members holding shares in electronic mode, the details as would 
be furnished by the Depositories as at the close of the aforesaid date will be considered by 
the Company. Hence, Members holding shares in demat mode should update their 
records at the earliest. 
 

12. SEBI has mandated securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. In view of the above and to avail 
various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to dematerialize shares that 
are held by them in physical form. 
 

13. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
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Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

14. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or 
arrangements in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by 
sending an e-mail to secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com 

 
15. Pursuant to Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, the Company has transferred all the shares in 
respect of which dividend remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven 
consecutive years or more to the demat account of IEPF Authority as per applicable Rules. 
Details of shares transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on the website of the 
Company and the same can be accessed through the link: 
http://www.hariyanagroup.com/investor-relations-hsbl.html. The said details have also 
been uploaded on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed 
through the link: www.iepf.gov.in. 
 
Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends transferred to IEPF 
Authority can be claimed back from them. Concerned members/investors are advised to 
visit the weblink: http://iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html or contact Link Intime India 
Private Limited for lodging claim for refund of shares and / or dividend from the IEPF 
Authority. 
 

16. Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the Depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email to the RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in with a copy marked to the 
Company at secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. 

 
 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to the RTA at 
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in with a copy marked to the Company at 
secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) below i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents. 
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17. The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 
Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members/Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday, September 
23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-
off date, being Monday, September 23, 2024. 
 

18. The Company has appointed Mr. Dilip Bharadiya (Membership No. FCS 7956), failing him 
Mrs. Shivangini Gohel (Membership No. ACS 25740), both Partners of M/s. Dilip 
Bharadiya & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the voting 
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

19. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman after completion of the scrutiny. 
The result of the voting on the Resolutions at the AGM shall be announced by the 
Chairman or any other person authorized by him immediately after the results are 
declared.  
 

20. Based on the report received from the Scrutinizer, the Company will submit within two 
working days of the conclusion of the Meeting to the stock exchange i.e BSE Limited, 
details of the voting results as required under Regulation 44(3) of the LODR. 
 

21. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report, will be posted on the website of 
the Company at www.hariyanagroup.com and on the website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com and will be displayed on the Notice Board of the Company at its 
Registered Office immediately after the declaration of the result by the Chairman or any 
person authorised by him in writing and will be communicated to the Stock Exchange. 

 
22. The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained below: 

 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 

 
Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

10 



Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 

with NSDL. under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 
to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
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is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
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For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 

below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned 
below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 
status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 
the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

How to cast your vote electronically during the AGM on NSDL e-Voting system?  
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting.  

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM.  

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote 
e-voting. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 18001020990 and 1800 
224430 
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Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 
Instructions for Members for E-voting and Attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as 
under:  
 
 A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date of Monday, September 23, 
2024 shall be entitled to avail either the facility of remote e-voting prior to the AGM or 
voting at the AGM. Persons who are not members as on the cut-off date should treat this 
notice for information purposes only.  
 

 Eligible members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Annual Report and 
holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. of Monday, September 23, 2024 may approach the 
Company for issuance of the User ID and Password for exercising their right to vote by 
electronic means.  

 
 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through 

the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above 
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of 
“VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are 
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password 
for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by 
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute 
rush. 

 
 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset the password.  

 
 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 
 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.  
 

 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in 
their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to immediately inform the Company or Link 
Intime India Private Limited or to the concerned Depository Participant(s), regarding: 

 
 the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement; 

and/or 
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 the particulars of the NRE Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 
 

 Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register 
their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, 
Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. Members are requested to make all 
correspondence in connection with shares held by them by addressing letters directly to the 
Company or Link Intime India Private Limited, quoting their Folio No. or DP ID-Client ID, 
as the case may be. In terms of the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making 
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members 
who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s 
website www.hariyanagroup.com Members holding shares in dematerialised form are 
requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participant(s) and the Members 
holding shares in physical form, are requested to submit the said details to the Company or 
Link Intime India Private Limited. 
 

 All the Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal 
address, E-mail address, telephone/ mobile numbers, PAN, mandates, nominations, power 
of attorney, bank details (such as name of the bank and branch details, bank account 
number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.), with necessary documentary evidence, to their 
Depository Participants - in case the shares are held by them in dematerialised form and to 
the Company in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

 
 SEBI has mandated submission of PAN by every participant in the Securities Market. 

Accordingly, Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to submit PAN 
to their Depository Participant(s) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or 
Link Intime India Private Limited.  
 

 Also, in terms of the Circular dated April 20, 2018 issued by SEBI, Members holding 
securities in physical form are advised to register their PAN and Bank Account Details with 
the Company or Link Intime (India) Private Limited, by sending a duly signed letter 
alongwith self-attested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled cheque. The original 
cancelled cheque should bear the name of the Member. Alternatively, the Members may 
submit a copy of bank passbook/ statement, duly attested by the Bank. Members holding 
shares in dematerialised form are requested to ensure that the aforesaid information is 
submitted/ updated with their respective Depository Participant. 

 
 Further, in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, it is mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN 

card to the Company or Link Intime (India) Private Limited with respect to all requests 
pertaining to transfer of shares, deletion of name, transmission of shares and transposition 
of shares. 

 
 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ have questions may send their 

speaker registration/ questions atleast seven days prior to the date of AGM, mentioning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. Only those Members who register themselves as Speaker will 
be allowed to express views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the 
right to restrict the number of speakers and time for each speaker depending upon the 
availability of time for the AGM.  
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 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 
request to Mr. Rahul Rajbhar at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited 
 
 
 
Rakesh Reniwal 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00029332)                                                                    

Unnati Reniwal 
Director 
(DIN: 00041306) 

 
Date: September 05, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT  
 
(As required by Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Explanatory 
Statement sets out material facts relating to the business under Item No. 3, 4, 5 & 6 of the 
accompanying Notice dated September 05, 2024) 
 
ITEM NO. 3 
 
In accordance with Section 139, 141, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 09, 2024 
had appointed M/s LLB & CO, Chartered Accountants (FRN No: 117758W) as Joint Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to fill the fill the casual vacancy caused due to resignation of M/s L S 
M & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN No. 116870W) till the conclusion of ensuing of Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on September 05, 2024, on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, have recommended the appointment of M/s LLB & 
CO, Chartered Accountants (FRN No: 117758W) as one of the Joint Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, to the members at the 43rd AGM of the Company for a term of five consecutive years 
from the conclusion of 43rd AGM till the conclusion of 48th AGM of the Company, on such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and 
the Statutory Auditors. 
 
After considering various factors such as independence, industry experience, technical skills, 
geographical presence, audit team, audit quality reports, etc., M/s LLB & CO, Chartered 
Accountants (FRN No: 117758W) has been recommended to be appointed as one of the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company.  
 
M/s. LLB & Co., Chartered Accountants is one of the renowned professional services firm 
providing services like Audit & Assurance, Tax Compliances and Advisory, Legal and 
Corporate Compliances, Transaction Advisory and Execution, Business and Finance 
Consultancy, Enabling Transition through Technology, Executing outsourced processes to a 
wide range of local and multinational clients. The firm was established in 1998 and has a 
significant presence across manufacturing, services, commercial, financial sector entities in the 
country. 
 
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, the 
Company has received written consent from M/s. LLB & Co., and a certificate that they satisfy 
the criteria provided under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that the appointment, if 
made, shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed 
thereunder. As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, M/s. LLB & Co., has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by 
the Peer Review Board of ICAI.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for the 
approval by the Members.  
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 
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ITEM NO. 4 
 
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, the Board, 
at its meeting held on August 29, 2024, appointed Mr. Viral Kumar Teli (DIN: 10746522) as an 
Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for 
a tenure of 5 consecutive years commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, (both 
days inclusive) subject to the approval of Gujarat Maritime Board (“GMB”) and the 
shareholders through a special resolution. 
 
The Company has received all statutory disclosures / declarations, including:  

i) Consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014,  

ii) Intimation in Form DIR 8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of 
Section 164 of the Act,  

iii) Declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under LODR Regulations,  

iv) Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, 
that he has not been debarred from holding office of a Director by virtue of any order 
passed by the SEBI or any other such authority,  

v) Confirmation that he is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be 
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his ability to discharge duties as an 
Independent Director of the Company;  

vi)  Confirmation that he is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to his registration 
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs, and  

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has determined criteria to be 
considered while recommending the candidature of Independent Directors to the Board. 
Among others, it includes considering various skill sets that are insightful and would add 
value to the Company. 
  
Basis the aforementioned parameters, the NRC deliberated the candidature of Mr. Viral Kumar 
Teli and recommended the same to the Board. 
 
The resolution seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Mr. Viral Kumar Teli as 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 5 consecutive years 
commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, (both days inclusive) pursuant to 
Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and he shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation.  
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise and other relevant information as required under the 
LODR Regulations and SS-2 are provided in additional information section of this Notice.  
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The Company is regulated by rules/regulations of Gujarat Maritime Board (hereafter referred 
to as “GMB”), and hence the said appointment shall be subject to the approval of GMB. The 
Company has already made the application with GMB and awaiting the approval for the said 
appointment. In case of rejection of the said appointment by GMB, the Company shall take 
resignation from Mr. Viral Kumar Teli effective from the date of his appointment. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act and 
Regulation 17 of the LODR Regulations, the approval of the members is sought for the 
appointment of Mr. Viral Kumar Teli as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, 
as a special resolution as set out above.  
 
No director, key managerial personnel (KMP) or their relatives, to whom the resolution relates, 
is interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed resolution as set 
out in Item no. 4.  
 
The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in Item no. 4 of this notice for the 
approval of members. 
 
ITEM NO. 5  
 
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, the Board, 
at its meeting held on August 29, 2024, appointed Mr. Divyush Goenka (DIN: 00459230) as an 
Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for 
a tenure of 5 consecutive years commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, (both 
days inclusive) subject to the approval of Gujarat Maritime Board (“GMB”) and the 
shareholders through a special resolution. 
 
The Company has received all statutory disclosures / declarations, including:  

i) Consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014,  

ii) Intimation in Form DIR 8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of 
Section 164 of the Act,  

iii) Declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under LODR Regulations,  

iv) Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, 
that he has not been debarred from holding office of a Director by virtue of any order 
passed by the SEBI or any other such authority,  

v) Confirmation that he is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be 
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his ability to discharge duties as an 
Independent Director of the Company;  

vi) Confirmation that he is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to his registration 
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs, and  
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has determined criteria to be 
considered while recommending the candidature of Independent Directors to the Board. 
Among others, it includes considering various skill sets that are insightful and would add 
value to the Company. 
  
Basis the aforementioned parameters, the NRC deliberated the candidature of Mr. Divyush 
Goenka and recommended the same to the Board. 
 
The resolution seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Mr. Divyush Goenka as 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 5 consecutive years 
commencing from August 29, 2024 to August 28, 2029, (both days inclusive) pursuant to 
Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and he shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation.  
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise and other relevant information as required under the 
LODR Regulations and SS-2 are provided in additional information section of this Notice.  
 
The Company is regulated by rules/regulations of Gujarat Maritime Board (hereafter referred 
to as “GMB”), and hence the said appointment shall be subject to the approval of GMB. The 
Company has already made the application with GMB and awaiting the approval for the said 
appointment. In case of rejection of the said appointment by GMB, the Company shall take 
resignation from Mr. Divyush Goenka effective from the date of his appointment. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act and 
Regulation 17 of the LODR Regulations, the approval of the members is sought for the 
appointment of Mr. Divyush Goenka as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, 
as a special resolution as set out above.  
 
No director, key managerial personnel (KMP) or their relatives, to whom the resolution relates, 
is interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed resolution as set 
out in Item no. 5.  
 
The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in Item no. 5 of this notice for the 
approval of members. 
 
ITEM NO. 6 
 
The Board of the Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, had approved the appointment of M/s. Kewlani & Associates, Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 003362), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand 
Only) plus taxes as may be applicable. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any amendments thereto or any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company.  
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Consequently, ratification by the members is sought for the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor for the financial year ending March 31, 2025. 
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is / are, in 
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 
6 of the Notice. 
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(ANNEXURE TO NOTICE DATED SEPTEMBER 05, 2024)  

 
DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 

FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on 
General Meetings (SS-2)] 

 
 MR. SHANTISARUP RENIWAL:  

 
A. Brief resume including qualification, experience and expertise in specific functional 

area: 
 

Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal (DIN: 00040355), Chairman & Executive Director, embarked on his 
corporate journey in 1981, initially launching a start-up in the Ship Recycling Business. As a 
trailblazer in his field, Mr. Reniwal has played a pivotal role in steering the group's 
endeavors in finance, tax planning, and overall development. His leadership continues to 
shape the group's strategic direction and growth. 
 
With over 50 years of extensive experience, Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal continues to lead the 
Iron & Steel Trading Business of the group, embodying the ethos of “dare to dream and 
learn to excel.” The Hairyana Group stands as a testament to his unwavering determination, 
steadfast dedication, and relentless pursuit of excellence. His contributions span across 
various businesses within the Group, where his renowned financial acumen and analytical 
prowess have significantly impacted numerous major initiatives. 
 
Mr. Reniwal has played a crucial role in introducing broader managerial perspectives and 
leadership insights, which have been instrumental in evaluating and advancing the 
development, growth, and operations of the Group’s businesses. Committed to leading by 
example, he is actively involved in the strategic development and expansion of the Ship 
Recycling and Real Estate Investments sectors. As an initiator and risk-taker, he drives the 
Group’s expansion strategies, contributing to the Group’s impressive growth and success. 

 
Further, he declared that he is not debarred from holding office of director by virtue of any 
SEBI order or any such authority. 

 
B. Other Details: 

Name of Director  Mr.  Shantisarup Reniwal 
Director Identification Number  00040355 
Designation/category of the Director  Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
Age  83 years 
Date of first appointment on the 
Board  

09/07/1981 

Qualification  B.A. 
Profile, Experience and Expertise in 
specific functional areas  

Vast experience in Ship Recycling Business 

Shareholding in the Company 
including shareholding as a beneficial 

1,72,080 Equity Shares 2.79% 
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Notes: 

 
(1) This excludes directorships in the Company, Foreign Companies, Private Companies, 

Companies incorporated under Section 25 of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and 
Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Act. 

(2) In terms of the provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Memberships/ 
Chairmanships in only two committees’ viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship and Share Transfer Committee of Public Limited Companies are considered. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

owner  
Directorships held in other companies 
including equity listed companies and 
excluding foreign companies as on the 
date of this Notice.  

Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 
committees of other companies 
(excluding foreign companies) as on 
date of this Notice  

Nil 

No. of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year  

08 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Managers, and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company  

(i) Rakesh Shantisarup Reniwal (Son) 
(ii) Unnati Reniwal (Daughter-in-Law) 
(iii) Sanjeev Shantisarup Reniwal – (Son) 
and not related to any other Director / Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Terms & conditions of the 
appointment  

Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

The remuneration last drawn by such 
person (if applicable)  

6,00,000/- p.a. 

Details of Remuneration sought to be 
paid  
 

As may be approved by the Board 

Resignation from Listed Entities in 
past three years  
 

NA 
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 MR. VIRAL KUMAR TELI:  

 
A. Brief resume including qualification, experience and expertise in specific functional 

area: 

Mr. Viral Kumar Teli graduated in Commerce. He is very active in community and social 
causes. He has over 20 years of vast experience in Management consulting and possesses 
appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in fields of finance, management, sales, 
marketing, administration and corporate governance. His rich experience and diverse 
expertise are well aligned to the role and capabilities for appointment as an Independent 
Director. 

 
B. Other Details: 

Name of Director  Mr.  Viral Kumar Teli 
Director Identification Number  10746522 
Designation/category of the Director  Non-Executive Independent Director 
Age  54 years 
Date of first appointment on the 
Board  

August 29, 2024 

Qualification  Graduation in Commerce 
Profile, Experience and Expertise in 
specific functional areas  

Mr. Teli has over 20 years of vast experience in 
Management consulting and possesses 
appropriate skills, experience and knowledge 
in fields of finance, management, sales, 
marketing, administration and corporate 
governance. 

Shareholding in the Company 
including shareholding as a beneficial 
owner  

Nil 

Directorships held in other companies 
including equity listed companies and 
excluding foreign companies as on the 
date of this Notice.  

Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 
committees of other companies 
(excluding foreign companies) as on 
date of this Notice  

Nil 

No. of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year  

Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Managers, and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company  

NA 

Terms & conditions of the 
appointment  

As per the resolution in Item no. 4 of this 
Notice read with the explanatory statement 
thereto 

The remuneration last drawn by such 
person (if applicable)  

Nil 

Details of Remuneration sought to be 
paid  
 

Eligible for sitting fees and commission, as and 
when approved by the Board  
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Notes: 

 
(1) This excludes directorships in the Company, Foreign Companies, Private Companies, 

Companies incorporated under Section 25 of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and 
Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Act. 

(2) In terms of the provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Memberships/ 
Chairmanships in only two committees’ viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship and Share Transfer Committee of Public Limited Companies are considered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resignation from Listed Entities in 
past three years  

NA 
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 MR. DIVYUSH GOENKA:  

 
A. Brief resume including qualification, experience and expertise in specific functional 

area: 
 
Mr. Divyush Goenka holds a degree in Commerce and brings over 20 years of extensive 
experience in the fields of Construction and Management Consulting. His background is 
complemented by a strong commitment to community and social causes. Mr. Goenka’s 
expertise spans management, sales, marketing, administration, and corporate governance. 
His broad skill set and diverse experience make him exceptionally well-suited for the role 
of Independent Director. 
 

B. Other Details: 

Name of Director  Mr.  Divyush Goenka 
Director Identification Number  00459230 
Designation/category of the Director  Non-Executive Independent Director 
Age  45 years 
Date of first appointment on the 
Board  

August 29, 2024 

Qualification  Graduation in Commerce 
Profile, Experience and Expertise in 
specific functional areas  

Mr. Goenka has over 20 years of vast 
experience in Construction, Management 
consulting and possesses appropriate skills, 
experience and knowledge in fields of 
management, sales, marketing, administration 
and corporate governance. 

Shareholding in the Company 
including shareholding as a beneficial 
owner  

Nil 

Directorships held in other companies 
including equity listed companies and 
excluding foreign companies as on the 
date of this Notice.  

Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 
committees of other companies 
(excluding foreign companies) as on 
date of this Notice  

Nil 

No. of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year  

Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Managers, and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company  

NA 

Terms & conditions of the 
appointment  

As per the resolution in Item no. 5 of this 
Notice read with the explanatory statement 
thereto 

The remuneration last drawn by such 
person (if applicable)  

Nil 

Details of Remuneration sought to be 
paid  

Eligible for sitting fees and commission, as and 
when approved by the Board  
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Notes: 

 
(1) This excludes directorships in the Company, Foreign Companies, Private Companies, 

Companies incorporated under Section 25 of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and 
Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Act. 

(2) In terms of the provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Memberships/ 
Chairmanships in only two committees’ viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship and Share Transfer Committee of Public Limited Companies are considered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Resignation from Listed Entities in 
past three years  
 

NA 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 43rd Annual Report along with the Audited 
Financial Statements (standalone and consolidated) of Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024.  
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

(Rs.  In Lakhs) 
Particular Standalone Consolidated 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2024 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2023 

For the 
financial year 
ended 
31.03.2024 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2023 

Revenue from operations 14,863.19 5,407.23 14,863.19 5,407.23 
Other Income 1081.96 798.88 934.78 790.02 
Total Revenue 15,945.15 6,206.10 15,797.98 6,197.25 
Cost of raw materials consumed 8,498.89 1,941.72 8,498.89 1,941.72 
Purchase of Stock – in – trade 6,393.24 3,029.73 6,393.24 3,029.73 
Changes in inventories of 
finished goods, stock – in – 
trade, work – in – process 

-175.94 - -175.94 - 

Manufacturing Expenses 105.92 100.07 105.92 100.07 
Employee benefits expenses 231.29 117.53 231.29 117.53 
Finance costs 248.42 221.49 248.42 221.67 
Excise Duty - - - - 
Depreciation and amortization 
expenses 

116.53 80.51 116.53 80.51 

Other expenses 131.04 148.28 131.05 147.05 
Total Expenses  15,549.38 5,639.34 15,549.40 5,638.28 
Share of profit/ (loss) from 
associates 

- - 147.18 1.09 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 395.77 566.76 395.76 560.05 
Less: Current Tax 77.74 143.07 77.71 142.98 
Less: Tax of earlier year - 6.42 0.10 7.62 
Less: Deferred Tax -4.63 -1.08 -4.63 -1.08 
Profit / (Loss) after tax 322.66 418.34 322.59 410.54 
Other Comprehensive Income -5.90 -1.03 -5.90 -1.03 
Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year 

316.76 417.31 316.69 409.50 

Earnings Per Share (Face Value 
of Rs. 10/- each) 
-Basic 
-Diluted 

5.23 
5.23 

6.78 
6.78 

5.23 
                  5.23 

6.66 
               6.66 
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2. PERFORMANCE & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

 
Standalone 
F.Y 23-24 closed with Revenues of Rs. 15,945.15/- lakhs, PBT Rs. 395.77 /- lakhs and PAT of 
Rs 322.66 /- lakhs. 
 
Consolidated 
F.Y 23-24 closed with Revenues of Rs. 15,797.98/- lakhs, PBT Rs. 395.76/- lakhs and PAT of 
Rs. 322.59/- lakhs. 
 
Revenue 
Your Company reported Revenue of Rs. 15,945.15/- lakhs during the year as compared to 
Rs. 6,206.10/- lakhs of the previous year. Revenue of current year has increased by 156.93% 
as compared to previous year. 
 
Finance Cost 
Finance cost has increased from Rs. 221.49/- lakhs in the previous year to Rs. 248.42/- 
lakhs.  
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation during the year increased to Rs. 116.53/- lakhs from Rs. 80.51/- lakhs in 
previous year. 
 

3. SEGMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The Group's business segments are identified based on the geographic locations of its units 
and the internal business reporting system as per Ind AS 108. Business segments of the 
company are primarily categorized as: Mumbai and Bhavnagar. 
 
This Consolidated Segment Information includes Industrial Oxygen & Trading Segment 
pertains to subsidiary of the company. 
                                                                                                                                      (Rs. In Lakhs)                  
Particulars  Mumbai  Bhavnagar  Industrial 

Oxygen & 
Trading 

Total 

Segment Assets 15,654.47 650.50 0.94 16,305.90 
Segment Liabilities 1,777.22 30.94 - 1,808.16 
Revenue from External 
Source (Excluding Inter 
Segment Revenue) 

7,359.68 8,456.43 - 15,797.98 

Segment Results Before 
Interest and Taxes 

872.02 -227.66 -0.17 644.18 

 
4. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, Listing Regulations, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024 forms integral part of this Annual Report. 
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5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, giving detailed 
analysis of Company’s operations, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Listing 
Regulations, is presented as Annexure A of this Report. 
 

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
A Report on Corporate Governance, in terms of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations, along with a Certificate from Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
certifying compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance enumerated in the Listing 
Regulations, is presented as Annexure B of this Report. 
 

7. DIVIDEND 
 
The Directors have considered it financially prudent to re-invest profits into the business of 
the Company and therefore do not intend to recommend dividend for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024. 
 

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2024 , there was no change in the nature of 
business of your Company. 
 

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
Other than stated elsewhere in this Report, there are no material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the current financial 
year and the date of this report. 

 
10. TRANSFER TO RESERVES  

 
Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the Reserves. 
 

11. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE  
 
The Company's Shares are listed on BSE Limited. 

 
12. DEPOSITORY SERVICES 

 
The Company's Equity Shares have been admitted to the depository mechanism of the 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and also the Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). As a result, the investors have an option to hold the shares of the 
Company in a dematerialized form in either of the two Depositories. The Company has 
been allotted ISIN No INE400G01011. Shareholders therefore are requested to take full 
benefit of the same and lodge their holdings with Depository Participants [DPs] with whom 
they have their Demat Accounts for getting their holdings in electronic form. 
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13. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 11,50,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven Crore 
Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 1,15,00,000 (One Crore Fifteen Lakhs) equity shares of face 
value Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up. 
 
The Paid-up Equity Share Capital, as at March 31, 2024 was Rs. 6,16,66,670/- divided into 
61,66,667 Equity shares, having face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. During the year 
under review, the Company has neither issued any shares nor granted any stock options or 
sweat equity. 
 

14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

          Board Of Directors: 
 

As on March 31, 2024 the Board comprises of 6 (six) Directors: - 
  

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Designation 

1. Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal 00040355 Chairman & Executive Director 
2. Mr. Rakesh Reniwal 00029332 Managing Director 
3. Mrs. Unnati Reniwal 00041306 Whole-Time Director 
4. Mr. Manohar Wagh 02622648 Independent & Non-Executive Director 
5. Pradeep Lilaram Bhatia 02903984 Independent & Non-Executive Director 
6. Tejasbhai Thakker 03017277 Independent & Non-Executive Director 

 
Number of meetings of the Board of Directors: 
 
During the year under review, 8 (Eight) Board meetings were convened and held. 
The details of the meetings of the Board and various Committees of your Company are set 
out in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The 
intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Retirement by Rotation and Subsequent Re-appointment: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal (DIN: 00040355), Director 
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
Re-appointment, Appointment & Resignation: 

 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of Board of 
Directors of the Company. 
 
Subsequent to the closure of financial year, Mr. Manohar Wagh (DIN: 02622648) ceased to 
be Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company due to completion of tenure with 
effect from the close of business hours on March 31, 2024. Further, Mr. Yogesh Thakkar 
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(DIN:00043588) was appointed as Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company 
w.e.f. April 01, 2024 subject to approval of Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB). 
 
Declaration by Independent Directors: 
 
All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective declarations 
stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and there has been no change in the 
circumstances which may affect their status as an independent director during the year. The 
non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with 
the Company during the year. 
 
Further, the Independent Directors of the Company have also registered themselves in the 
databank with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs and confirmed compliance of 
relevant provisions of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointments and Qualifications of 
Directors) Rules, 2014. 
 
The Board opines that all the Independent Directors on the Board possess integrity, necessary 
expertise and experience for performing their functions diligently. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel:  
 
In terms of provisions of Section 203 of the Act, and the Rules made thereunder, following 
are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Person Designation 

1. Mr. Rakesh Shantisarup Reniwal Managing Director 
2. Mr. Sanjeev Shantisarup Reniwal Chief Executive Officer 
3. Mr. Kirti S Desai Chief Financial Officer 
4. Ms. Pooja Yadav Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 
15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, state that: 
 

(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the 
applicable accounting standards and Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 have been 
followed and there are no material departures from the same;  

(ii)   the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and 
loss of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024;  

(iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;  
(v)  proper internal financial controls laid down by the Directors were followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; 
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(vi)  proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in 
place and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.  

 
16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 
Audit Committee: 
 
The composition of the Audit Committee is in alignment with provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the 
Listing Regulations. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted 
by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
The details pertaining to Audit Committee and its composition are included in the 
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this report. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NARC’): 
 
Your Company has a duly constituted NARC, with its composition, quorum, powers, role 
and scope in line with the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. 
The detailed information with respect to the NARC is disclosed in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee (‘SRC’):  
 
Your Company has a duly constituted SRC, with its composition, quorum, powers, role and 
scope in line with the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
detailed information with respect to the SRC is disclosed in the Corporate Governance 
Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 

       Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSR’): 

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to comply the Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Composition and terms of reference of which is explained 
in detail in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 

17. COMPANY POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
 
The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (NARC) has adopted a term of reference which, interalia, deals 
with the criteria for identification of members of the Board of Directors and 
selection/appointment of the Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company. The NARC recommends appointment/Re-appointment of Director based on 
their qualifications, expertise, positive attributes and independence/ professional expertise 
in accordance with prescribed provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 
thereunder and Listing Regulations. The NARC, in addition to ensuring diversity of race 
and gender, also considers the impact the appointee would have on Board’s balance of 
professional experience, background, viewpoints, skills and areas of expertise. In terms of 
Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of your 
Company had, on recommendation of the NARC, adopted a Nomination Policy, which 
inter alia enumerates the Company’s policy on appointment of Directors and KMP. The 
policy is available on the website of the Company www.hariyanagroup.com. 
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18. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 
The Company has no subsidiary, associate companies or joint venture companies within the 
meaning of Section 2(6) and 2(87) of the Act and thus, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
129(3) of the Act, the statement containing the salient features of financial statements of the 
Company’s subsidiaries/associate companies in Form AOC-1 is not required to be attached 
to the financial statements of the Company. 
 

19. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly 
followed by the Company. 
  

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS 
 
Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 
2024, if any, form part of the Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements provided in this 
Annual Report. 

 
21. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
Effective governance and risk management form the bedrock of a company’s sustained 
performance. Risk management aims to identify and then manage threats that could 
severely impact the organization. Generally, this involves reviewing operations of the 
organization, identifying potential threats to the organization and the likelihood of their 
occurrence and then taking appropriate actions to address the most likely threats. The 
objectives are to optimize business performance, minimize adverse impact on the business, 
protect it from damages, frauds and enhance stakeholder value.   
 
The framework revolves around rigorous implementation of standardized policies and 
processes and development of strong internal control systems. Your Company has set up 
internal controls and policies related to financial reporting of transactions and efficient 
business operations in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Internal reporting 
systems are in place for effective measurement of various business parameters related to 
revenue, expenses and reporting, in line with the provisions of the Act.   
 
The Company operates in an interconnected world with stringent regulatory and 
environmental requirements, increased geopolitical risks and fast-paced technological 
disruptions that could have a material impact across the value chain of the organisation. 
The Company’s finished products are mainly re-rollable scrap generated from ship 
breaking and the price of the same is linked to the market rate for iron and steel. Any 
fluctuation in the price of the iron and steel affects the profitability of the Company. Thus, 
the Company is exposed to the risk from the market fluctuations of foreign exchange as 
well as the fluctuation in the price of iron and steel. The Company’s raw material is old 
ships which are purchased from the international market on credit ranging up to 180 days 
to 360 days. The Company is adopting policy of full hedging or covering the foreign 
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exchange requirement. The Company is regularly monitoring the foreign exchange 
movement and suitable remedial measures are taken as and when felt necessary. Though 
the Company is employing such measures, the Company is still exposed to the risk of any 
heavy foreign exchange fluctuation. 
 
In addition to the above, the Company is also exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the real 
estate and construction and redeveloping market as the Company has invested some of its 
surplus funds in partnership firm engaged in such business. The Company, through its risk 
management process, aims to contain the risks within its risk appetite. There are no risks 
which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. 
 

22. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY 
 
Internal financial control systems of the Company are commensurate with its size and 
nature of its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with 
regard to the orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the 
Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information and disclosures. 
 
Systems and procedures are periodically reviewed and these are routinely tested by 
Statutory as well as Internal Auditors and cover all functions and business areas. The Audit 
Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control 
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those 
relating to strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and systems.  
 
During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from 
the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on the inefficiency or 
inadequacy of such controls. 

 
23. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 
As per the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all 
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in 
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis.  
 
All Related Party Transactions entered into during the year under review were approved 
by the Audit Committee and the Board, from time to time and the same are disclosed in the 
Financial Statements of your Company for the year under review.  
 
Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Regulations, the Board has, on 
recommendation of its Audit Committee, adopted a Policy on Related Party Transactions 
and the said policy is available on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 
Further during the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / 
transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the 
policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. There were no 
materially significant related party transactions which could have potential conflict with 
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interest of the Company at large. 
 
Accordingly, Form AOC-2 prescribed under the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) of the Act 
and Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for disclosure of details of Related 
Party Transactions which are “not at arm’s length basis” and also which are “material and 
at arm’s length basis”, is not applicable to the company. 
 

24. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD 
 
In terms of the provisions of the Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) 
and Nomination Policy of the Company, NARC and the Board have approved a 
framework, which lays down a structured approach, guidelines and processes to be 
adopted for carrying out an evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and 
individual Directors.  
 
During the year under review, the Board carried out the evaluation of its own performance 
and that of its Committees and the individual Directors. 
 
The evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of the Board and its 
Committees, such as composition of the Board and Committees, attendance of Directors at 
Board and committee meetings, acquaintance with business, communicating inter se board 
members, effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance with code of conduct, 
vision and strategy, experience and competencies, performance of specific duties and 
obligations, governance issues etc. The Board also carried out the evaluation of the 
performance of individual directors based on criteria such as contribution of the director at 
the meetings, strategic perspective or inputs regarding the growth and performance of the 
Company etc.  
 
Outcome of the Evaluation 
 
Board of Directors: 
 
The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of the Board, Committees, 
Individual Directors and the Chairman along with assessing the quality, quantity and 
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is 
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The performance 
evaluation of the Board is carried out taking into account the various parameters like 
composition of Board, process of appointment to the Board, common understanding 
amongst Directors of their role and responsibilities, timelines and content of Board papers, 
strategic directions, advice and decision making, etc. The Board also notes the actions 
undertaken, pursuant to the outcome of previous evaluation exercises. 
 
The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire 
Board excluding the independent director being evaluated.  
 
The Chairman of the respective Committees shared the report on evaluation with the 
respective Committee members. The performance of each Committee was evaluated by the 
Board, based on report on evaluation received from respective Committees. 
 
The report on performance evaluation of the Individual Directors was reviewed by the 
Chairman of the Board and feedback was given to Directors.  
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Committees of the Board: 
 
The Committee's self-assessment is carried out based on degree of fulfilment of key 
responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition, effectiveness of meetings, Committee 
dynamics and quality of relationship of the Committee with the Board and the 
Management. 
 
The Independent Director(s) also evaluated the performance of Non-Independent Directors, 
the Chairman of the Board and the Board as a whole at the meeting of Independent 
Director(s) held on February 12, 2024. The outcome and feedback from Directors were 
discussed at the respective meetings of Board, Committees of Board and meetings of 
Independent Directors. 
 
The overall performance evaluation exercise was completed to the satisfaction of the Board. 
The Board of Directors deliberated on the outcome and necessary steps will be taken going 
forward. The details of the evaluation process are set out in the Corporate Governance 
Report which forms a part of this Annual Report. 

 
25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 
In terms of Section 92(3) of the Act, the annual return of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 shall be available on the Company’s website 
www.hariyanagroup.com 
 

26. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Joint Statutory Auditors:  
 

M/s. L S M & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No. 116870W) 
were re-appointed as Joint Statutory auditors at the 41st Annual General Meeting held on 
September 30, 2022 to hold office for a second term of 3 consecutive years i.e. to hold office 
from the conclusion of 41st Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 44th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial year 2025.  
 

M/s. S. N. Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad, having ICAI Firm 
Registration No. 109782W, were appointed as one of the Joint Auditors of the Company, at 
the 41st Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022, in place of retiring Statutory 
Auditors. M/s P.D. Goplani & Associates for a first term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. to 
hold office from the conclusion of 41st Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 46th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial year 2027. 
 
Further, both the aforesaid Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not 
disqualified to act as Auditors and are eligible to hold office as Auditors of your Company. 

 
Observations of Statutory Auditors on Accounts for the Year Ended March 31, 2024:  
 
There are no observations in the Auditors report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 
therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board under 
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 

38 



Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 

 
Fraud Reporting: 
 
During the year under review, there were no instances of material or serious fraud falling 
under Rule 13(1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, by officers or 
employees reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the course of the 
audit. 
 

27. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
 
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act, M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Practising Company 
Secretary, was appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as Annexure C 
to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark. 

 
Further, the Board of the Company at its meeting held on May 30, 2024 has re-appointed 
M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
 

28. INTERNAL AUDITOR 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board on 
recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed Mr. Amol Shah, as Internal 
Auditor of the Company. 
 

29. COST AUDITOR 
 
As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant to Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as 
amended from time to time, your company is required to carry out audit of the cost records.  
 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed 
M/s. Kewlani & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003362) as the Cost 
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 
2024-25 at a remuneration of Rs. 40,000/- plus taxes as may be applicable and out of pocket 
expenses. As required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution 
seeking member's approval for remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor forms part of the 
Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 
 

30. DEPOSITS 
 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling under Section 73 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Thus, as on March 31, 
2024, there were no deposits which were unpaid or unclaimed and due for repayment, 
hence, there has been no default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon. 
 

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
 
No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status operations of the Company in future. 
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32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided as Annexure D to this Report. 

 
33. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure E to this Report. 

 
34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
The Board has constituted Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(‘CSR Committee’) which comprises Mr. Rakesh Reniwal, Chairman, Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 
and Mr. Tejas Thakker as Members. The Board has also approved a CSR policy on 
recommendations of CSR Committee, which is available on the website of the Company at 
www.hariyanagroup.com 

 
The Annual Report on CSR activities, in accordance with Section 135 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure F 
to this Report. 
 

35. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle blower Policy has been approved and adopted by Board of 
Directors of the Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations which provides a formal 
mechanism to the employees, business associates and stakeholders of the Company to, 
inter-alia, report any instances of financial irregularities, breach of code of conduct, abuse of 
authority, disclosure of financial/ price sensitive information, unethical / unfair actions 
concerning Company vendors/ suppliers, malafide manipulation of company 
data/records, actual or suspected fraud or discrimination to the Company’s Code of 
Conduct in an anonymous manner.  

 
The policy of vigil mechanism is available on the Company’s website i.e. 
www.hariyanagroup.com 

 
36. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME 

 
The Company conducts Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to enable 
them to be familiarized with the Company, its management and its operations to gain a 
clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities for enabling their contribution 
to the Company. They are provided a platform to interact with multiple levels of 
management and are provided with all the documents required and/or sought by them to 
have a good understanding of Company’s operations, businesses and the industry as a 
whole. 
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Further, when a new Director is inducted on the Board, they are provided with necessary 
documents/ brochures, reports, internal policies, strategy and such other operational 
information to enable them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices. 
Site visits to various plant locations are organized for the Independent Directors to enable 
them to understand and acquaint with the operations of the Company. 
 
Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee meetings on business and 
performance updates of the Company, global business environment, business strategy and 
risks involved. Detailed presentations on the Company’s business segments are made at the 
separate meetings of the Independent Directors from time to time. 
 
The details of such familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are put up on the 
Company’s website and can be accessed at www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 

37. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
 
Your Company is committed towards providing a work environment that is professional 
and mature, free from animosity and one that reinforces our value of ‘integrity’ that 
includes respect for the individual. The Company is committed to providing a safe and 
conducive work environment to all of its employees and associates. 
 
In line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, your Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment at Workplace. This policy is applicable to all employees, irrespective of 
their level and it also includes ‘Third Party Harassment’ cases i.e. where sexual harassment 
is committed by any person who is not an employee of the Company. The said policy is 
available on the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. Internal 
Complaints Committees have also been set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. 
 
The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial 
year 2023-24. 
 

38. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, relevant amounts which remained 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years have been transferred by the Company to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by Central Government. Details of 
unpaid and unclaimed amounts have been uploaded on the Company’s website. 
 
There were no such funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 
 

39. TRANSFER OF ‘UNDERLYING SHARES’ TO IEPF 
 
In terms of Section 124(6) of the Act, read with IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has transferred the equity shares in respect of which 
dividends have remained unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years to the IEPF 
Account established by the Central Government. Details of shares transferred have been 
uploaded on the website of the Company. 
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40. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, your 
Company additionally discloses that, during the year under review: 
 
 There is no plan to revise the Financial Statements or Directors’ Report in respect of any 

previous financial year. 
  The Company has not filed any application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 

under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016), as amended from time to 
time. 

 The Company has not availed one time settlement with respect to any loans from banks 
or      financial institutions. 
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ANNEXURE A 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
India is a leading player in the global ship breaking industry, with major ship breaking yards 
located in Gujarat, particularly in Alang-Sosiya, which is one of the largest and most prominent 
ship breaking sites in the world. Ship breaking is the process of dismantling decommissioned 
ships and similar vessels to extract scrap metal and demolish the huge ship structure. It is also 
known as ship demolition, ship cracking, or even ship recycling, at times.   
 
Global trade and shipping have experienced steady growth in recent years, driven by 
globalization and industrialization, leading to a significant increase in shipbuilding activities. 
Typically, the operational lifespan of a ship ranges from 25 to 30 years. Once a ship reaches this 
age, it must be decommissioned due to safety, economic considerations, or occasionally 
because of accidents or damage. The decommissioning process often involves auctioning the 
ship, which is then transported to a breaking yard for dismantling. This process is labor-
intensive, and the time required to dismantle a ship depends on the vessel's size and type. 
 
The government has implemented several regulations to improve safety and environmental 
practices in ship breaking. The key regulatory framework includes the Ship Breaking Code 
(Revised) 2013 (Code) and The Recycling of Ships Act 2019, which mandates standards for ship 
breaking yards to address safety and environmental concerns. Indian ship breaking yards are 
increasingly adopting modern techniques and equipment to enhance safety and efficiency. This 
includes improved cutting tools, better waste management systems, and the introduction of 
mechanized processes. Further, enhanced safety protocols and protective equipment are being 
implemented to reduce accidents and improve working conditions. Training programs and 
safety audits are also becoming more common. 
 
India's economic growth is closely linked to the steel industry's expansion. Steel consumption is 
a key indicator of economic development. While steel remains vital for traditional sectors like 
construction and transportation, its use in specialized engineering fields such as power 
generation, petrochemicals, and fertilizers is growing. India plays a central role in the global 
steel market, with advancements including new, state-of-the-art steel mills, increased global 
capacities, modernization of existing plants, improved energy efficiency, and better integration 
with global raw material sources. 

 
 Global Overview:  
 
Geographically, the global ship breaking market can be segmented into Asia Pacific, Europe, 
North America, Latin America, and Middle East & Africa. The dynamics of the ship breaking 
market differ from developing and underdeveloped countries to developed countries. In 
developed regions, such as Europe and North America, the breaking of a ship is cost intensive 
and stringent rules, regulations, and standard operating procedures need to be followed, 
making the entire process economically unviable. On the other hand, in developing countries 
such as, China, India, and Bangladesh, the scenario is quite the opposite, the ship breaking 
market is expanding due to lack of regulations. Hence, Asia Pacific is a prominent market for 
ship breaking globally, with India, China, Bangladesh, and Pakistan topping the market. 
Turkey is also a major market outside Asia Pacific.  
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According to NGO Shipbreaking Platform, 446 ocean-going commercial ships and offshore 
units were scrapped in the year 2023. The vast majority, 325 ships in total, were taken apart on 
a beach in Bangladesh, India or Pakistan. Most vessels scrapped originally belonged to 
shipping companies in East Asia and Europe. Swiss containership giant Mediterranean 
Shipping Company (MSC) is the 2023 worst corporate dumper. Despite having been repeatedly 
and strongly criticised for its dumping of more than one hundred ships in the last decade, MSC 
scrapped no less than 14 of its old container ships in Alang, India, in 2023. 
 
The ship-breaking industry in Bangladesh, which holds the top global position, experienced a 
tumultuous year in 2023, importing the lowest amount of scrap ships in a decade due to the 
ongoing dollar crisis and a slowdown in both the national and international economy. Ship-
breakers pointed out that the disparity between international and local markets is making it 
harder for entrepreneurs to make a profit. They say while the price of scrap ships in the 
international market has been increasing, the price of scrap steel kept decreasing in the local 
market as many rerolling mills and steel mills have shut down due to raw material shortages. 
 
In summary, the shipbreaking industry in 2023-2024 is marked by ongoing efforts to improve 
safety, environmental impact, and regulatory compliance. While the major shipbreaking 
nations continue to dominate the global market, there is a growing emphasis on adopting better 
practices and technologies to address the sector's inherent challenges. 
 
 Domestic Overview & Market Size: 
 
India stands as the world's second-largest player in the ship recycling industry, only behind 
Bangladesh.  Alang commands a staggering 98% of India's ship recycling capacity and 
significantly contributes 32.6% to the global recycling volume. However, despite its abundant 
potential, the current state of affairs at Alang reveals a surprising statistic — 48% of its existing 
ship-breaking capacity remains idle. 
 
In a bid to fortify its position in the global ship recycling landscape, India has ambitious plans 
to augment its recycling capacity up to 9 million LDT. The industry currently provides gainful 
employment to a substantial workforce of 5.15 lakh people. Notably, over the last five years, the 
ship recycling sector has contributed an average revenue of Rs. 55 Crores per annum, 
emphasising its economic significance and sustained growth potential. The ship recycling 
activities in India are also conducted in a limited manner at the Kidderpore Docks, Syama 
Prasad Mookerjee Port, Kolkata; the Mumbai Port, and by the Steel Industrials Kerala Limited. 
 
The ship recycling sector at Alang is emerging as a pivotal player, skilfully navigating the 
delicate balance between economic advancement and environmental sustainability. Alang's 
significance extends beyond its contribution to the global ship recycling industry; it plays a 
crucial role in generating approximately 3.50 million Metric Tonnes (MMT) of steel annually, 
producing substantial quantities of re-rollable steel without depleting natural resources or 
triggering the environmental impacts associated with traditional steel production processes, 
such as mining, energy consumption, water usage, and toxic effluents. 
 
India's ship recycling industry, centered around the Alang, stands at a critical juncture where 
challenges and opportunities intersect. The historical shift of ship recycling activities from the 
Global North to South Asia, driven by stringent regulations, has positioned India as a key 
player in the sustainable disposal of End-of-Life vessels. The significant strides made in Alang, 
especially in addressing concerns related to worker safety, environmental pollution, and 
regulatory compliance, reflect a positive trajectory. Recent developments, such as the 
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commitment to green practices and the vision outlined in Maritime Amrit Kaal Vision 2047, 
further reinforce India's commitment to sustainable ship recycling practices. 
 
The evolution of Alang from facing challenges to embracing opportunities symbolizes a 
commitment to environmental stewardship and responsible industry practices, setting the 
stage for India to become a beacon of environmental sustainability in the ship recycling 
landscape. 
 
 Government Initiatives 
 
To overcome the downturn being faced in Alang, the Centre and state government are 
“diligently formulating strategies” and “implementing measures” to ensure the yard’s 
sustainability and ongoing operation. The central government has chalked out a plan to double 
the capacity of Alang from 4.5 million LDT to 9 million LDT in the next few years to become 
India’s biggest vehicle recycling hub. It aims to revitalize the yard, effectively navigate the 
challenges posed by the industry slowdown, and address the competitive landscape, ensuring 
its long-term viability. 
 
The Government of India promulgated the “Maritime India Vision 2030” (MIV 2030), 
subsuming within it, the SAGARMALA mega-project, and including the enhancement of the 
country’s ship recycling capacity.  This vision document promotes the concept of ‘Waste to 
Wealth’ through modification of Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) regulations and the 
development of ship recycling infrastructure.  The document also identified three major 
interventions to drive demand in the ship recycling industry: 
 
• Relaxation in BIS (steel scrap standards) to enhance the yield per tonne of scrap and 

exempt ship-scrap use in re-rollable bar manufacturing based on mechanical strength and 
quality in lieu of the earlier-specified norms of metallurgical history. 

• Redevelopment of plots at Alang-Sosiya and the creation of a ship-repair cluster on the east 
coast of India to enhance market share. 

• Set up a facilitation centre to promote India’s ship recycling industry through the hosting 
of trade fairs and exhibitions. 

The Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways released the Maritime Amrit Kaal Vision 2047 
in October 2023, after extensive consultations with stakeholders across central ministries, state 
government departments, private sector, financial institutions, and academia.  Building upon 
MIV 2030, this document articulates, inter alia, India’s aspirations to be a global player in ship 
recycling and proposes various measures to facilitate an eco-system that provides adequate 
infrastructure and policy enablers to achieve its desired goal. 
 
OPPORTUNITY AND THREAT 

 
The shipbreaking industry generates economic opportunities, and technological advancement 
and fosters sustainable practices. Ship recycling is a labor-intensive industry that helps to 
generate employment opportunities for the locals and other people involved.  
 
The steel industry is set to experience significant growth due to increased infrastructure 
development, urbanization, and a focus on sustainability. As India, one of the fastest-growing 
economies, is poised to become the third-largest by 2030, the steel sector will be crucial in 
supporting this growth. Rising infrastructure investments will boost domestic steel demand 
and lower supply chain costs, creating a beneficial cycle. Additionally, India's Atmanirbhar 
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Bharat initiative and its demographic and urbanization trends will further stimulate steel 
demand, leading to a rapid increase in per capita steel consumption. Our company is 
committed to adapting to these trends and seizing emerging opportunities. 

 
India's steel industry benefits from substantial raw material reserves, a skilled workforce, and a 
rapidly expanding market. The National Steel Policy 2017 aims for a globally competitive 
industry with a 300 million tonne capacity and 158 kg per capita consumption by FY 2030-31. 
Demand growth is expected from both traditional and new sectors, driven by government 
infrastructure investments, urbanization, increased personal mobility, and a focus on self-
reliance. The rural economy's growth and the goal to raise rural steel consumption from 19.6 kg 
to 38 kg per capita by FY 2030-31 further boost demand. 
 
Opportunities for expansion beyond national boundaries are emerging as India's economy 
opens up. The company is enhancing its production capabilities while addressing climate 
change challenges by reducing its environmental impact. Innovations in process, product, and 
business models, supported by strong technology management, are essential to meet evolving 
consumer needs and sustainability goals.  
 
SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 
 
 Segmental Review 

 
The Group's business segments are identified based on the geographic locations of its units 
and the internal business reporting system as per Ind AS 108. Business segments of the 
company are primarily categorized as: Mumbai and Bhavnagar. 
 
This Consolidated Segment Information includes Industrial Oxygen & Trading Segment 
pertains to subsidiary of the company.               

                                                                                                                         Rs. In Lakhs                  
Particulars  Mumbai  Bhavnagar  Industrial 

Oxygen & 
Trading 

Total 

Segment Assets 15,654.47 650.50 0.94 16,305.90 
Segment Liabilities 1,777.22 30.94 - 1,808.16 
Revenue from External 
Source (Excluding Inter 
Segment Revenue) 

7,359.68 8,456.43 - 15,797.98 

Segment Results Before 
Interest and Taxes 

872.02 -227.66 -0.17 644.18 

 
i. Mumbai: 

 
During the year under review, the Mumbai Unit has performed well in term of net profit 
margin, this segment has achieved revenue of Rs. 7,359.68 Lakhs and result achieved Rs. 
872.02 Lakhs. 
 

ii. Bhavnagar: 
 
During the financial year 2023-24, ship-breaking unit at Alang Ship Breaking Yard, 
Bhavnagar has performed well in term of sales turnover. In spite of volatile prices of old 
Ships, Iron and Steel products coupled with fluctuations in value of Indian Rupee vis-à-
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vis US Dollar during the year, this segment has achieved revenue of Rs. 8,456.43/- Lakhs 
as compared to 2,280.82/- Lakhs in the previous year. However, the result was negative 
amounting to Rs. (227.66)/- Lakhs in the current year as compared to Rs. 36.25/- Lakhs in 
the previous year. Throughout the year, the international market for old ships showed 
some volatility, but the management navigated these fluctuations carefully. They 
strategically timed their ship purchases and built up a robust inventory to position the 
company for better profitability in the future. Additionally, trading activities were 
conducted in Bhavnagar. Looking ahead, the management anticipates a stable 
shipbreaking industry, bolstered by an expected economic upturn that should drive 
higher demand for iron and steel. This positive outlook will support the company's 
continued growth trajectory. 
 

iii. Industrial Oxygen & Trading: 
 
This segment of the company pertains to the subsidiary of the company. This segment has 
not achieved revenue during the year and incurred loss of Rs. 0.17 Lakhs during the year 
under review. 

OUTLOOK  
 
India continues to lead the global ship breaking industry, with the Alang ship breaking yard in 
Gujarat processing approximately 450 ships annually. To enhance environmental sustainability, 
the Indian government is focused on making significant improvements in ship recycling 
practices.  
 
The ship recycling industry in India has been identified as a focus area in the Vision 2047 as it 
makes a significant contribution in producing the country’s steel requirements and, generates 
direct and indirect employment for skilled and unskilled workers.  The challenge lies in 
adhering to international norms for environmental sustainability.  The industry is evolving 
with an increasing emphasis on sustainability and modernization. Future developments will 
likely focus on further improving practices, enhancing worker safety, and aligning with 
international standards. 
 
The ship breaking industry in India plays a key role in the global ship recycling sector. Like 
many industries, it faces both challenges and opportunities. Amid growing sustainability 
concerns, this sector has the potential to become a major economic driver for the country. By 
adopting innovative strategies and fostering sustainable collaboration among technicians, 
regulatory bodies, and ship breakers, significant progress can be made. Implementing 
internationally accepted guidelines for waste management and worker health protection will 
steer the industry toward more sustainable development. Additionally, establishing recycling 
facilities for bulk waste will help manage rising costs associated with obsolete vessels, driven 
by international competition and environmental protection requirements. 
 
Your directors remain optimistic about the company's future, given the positive upward trend 
in the Iron and Steel sector both in India and globally. The management anticipates that the 
shipbreaking industry will stabilize in the coming years. With an expected economic boost, 
demand for iron and steel is projected to rise, which will support the company's continued 
growth and sustainability. 
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RISK AND CONCERN 
 
Over and above the economic risks the shipping industry is impacted by numerous short term 
and regional factors, like weather changes, Oxygen Supply problems etc. This results in great 
amount of volatility in the freight market, which in turn impacts the Company’s earnings. The 
global economy is in uncertain territory, and not showing signs of picking up sharply in shorter 
span of time.  
 
India's economy has also felt the impact of global economic uncertainties. Key risks for the 
industry include the global recessionary trend, economic slowdown, rising financial costs, and 
fluctuations in the availability and cost of raw materials like steel and labor.  
 
The Company does not apprehend any inherent risk in the long run, with the exception of 
certain primary concerns that have afflicted the progress of our industry in general, like:  
 
 Shortage of Labour  
 Rising manpower and material costs, 
 Approvals and procedural difficulties.  
 Lack of adequate sources of finance.  

The Company's risks are rooted in the shipbuilding industry's inherent dependence on global 
trade and the cyclical nature of related sectors like oil, natural gas, shipping, and 
transportation. Offshore Industry continues to be in the trough.  
 
 Macroeconomic Risks  

 
Overcapacity and oversupply in the global steel industry as well as increased levels of 
imports may adversely affect steel prices, impacting profitability. 

 
 Operational Risks 

 
The steel industry is capital-intensive and relies heavily on maintaining critical assets. It 
faces high fixed costs and price volatility in raw materials and energy. Disruptions in raw 
material supply can negatively impact profitability. Additionally, failures in critical 
information systems or servers could disrupt operations, and conventional maintenance 
practices may not ensure optimal equipment reliability, leading to unplanned operational 
interruptions. 

 
 Supply Chain Risk 

 
The supply chain network is susceptible to physical and environmental damage, trade 
restrictions due to geopolitical tensions, and supplier disruptions. Ongoing infrastructure 
development and dependence on outsourced partners may also cause operational issues. 

 
 Safety Risk 

 
Non-adherence to process and workforce safety requirements, safety laws and regulations 
may impact business continuity and reputation.  
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
Internal financial control systems of the Company are commensurate with its size and nature of 
its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information and disclosures. 
 
Systems and procedures are periodically reviewed and these are routinely tested by Statutory 
as well as Internal Auditors and cover all functions and business areas. The Audit Committee 
reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment and 
monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to 
strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and systems. During the year under 
review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors and 
the Internal Auditors of the Company on the inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & ANALYSIS 
 
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below: 
 
Standalone & Consolidated Ind AS Financial Results: Review and Analysis  

                          (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particular Standalone Consolidated 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2024 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2023 

For the 
financial year 
ended 
31.03.2024 

For the 
financial 
year ended 
31.03.2023 

Revenue from operations 14,863.19 5,407.23 14,863.19 5,407.23 
Other Income 1081.96 798.88 934.78 790.02 
Total Revenue 15,945.15 6,206.10 15,797.98 6,197.25 
Cost of raw materials consumed 8,498.89 1,941.72 8,498.89 1,941.72 
Purchase of Stock – in – trade 6,393.24 3,029.73 6,393.24 3,029.73 
Changes in inventories of 
finished goods, stock – in – 
trade, work – in – process 

-175.94 - -175.94 - 

Manufacturing Expenses 105.92 100.07 105.92 100.07 
Employee benefits expenses 231.29 117.53 231.29 117.53 
Finance costs 248.42 221.49 248.42 221.67 
Excise Duty - - - - 
Depreciation and amortization 
expenses 

116.53 80.51 116.53 80.51 

Other expenses 131.04 148.28 131.05 147.05 
Total Expenses  15,549.38 5,639.34 15,549.40 5,638.28 
Share of profit/ (loss) from 
associates 

- - 147.18 1.09 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 395.77 566.76 395.76 560.05 
Less: Current Tax 77.74 143.07 77.71 142.98 
Less: Tax of earlier year - 6.42 0.10 7.62 
Less: Deferred Tax -4.63 -1.08 -4.63 -1.08 
Profit / (Loss) after tax 322.66 418.34 322.59 410.54 
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Other Comprehensive Income -5.90 -1.03 -5.90 -1.03 
Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year 

316.76 417.31 316.69 409.50 

Earnings Per Share (Face Value 
of Rs. 10/- each) 
-Basic 
-Diluted 

5.23 
5.23 

6.78 
6.78 

5.23 
                  5.23 

6.66 
               6.66 

 
 Standalone Cash Flow Analysis 

                          (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particular  For the financial year 

ended 31.03.2024 
For the financial year 
ended 31.03.2023 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 15.53 (4,846.71) 
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities 64.34 69.78 
Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities (1009.02) 767.98 
Net Cash Inform/(Outflow) (822.88) 97.30 

 
 Business Overview 

 
The company is in the business of ship breaking, trading and investment activities. During 
the financial year 2023-24, the sales turnover of the company for FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23 
were Rs. 14,863.19/- Lakhs and Rs. 5,407.23/- Lakhs respectively. In spite of frequent 
fluctuation in the prices of old ship in the market, the company was able to perform well in 
terms of sales turnover. Further, the prices in Iron and steel industry are gradually getting 
stabilized, but foreign currency and fluctuations in value of Indian Rupee vis-à-vis US Dollar 
remains a concerning area for the company even in the current year.  

 
Surplus funds are also invested in new avenues of earnings in the form of partnership with 
other entities like in Real Estate and Redeveloping firms. At present the Company has 
partnership in Hariyana Air Products with 95% share, Orchid Lakeview Developers with 
33.33% share, Goyal Hariyana Realty with 50% share, Whitefield Projects with 40% share 
and Swastik Developers with 33.33% share. The management is hopeful that the Company 
can earn reasonable return on these investments. 
 
Standalone 
F.Y 23-24 closed with Revenues of Rs. 15,945.15/- lakhs, PBT Rs. 395.77 /- lakhs and PAT of 
Rs. 322.66 /- lakhs. 
 
Consolidated 
F.Y 23-24 closed with Revenues of Rs. 15,797.98/- lakhs, PBT Rs. 395.76/- lakhs and PAT of 
Rs. 322.59/- lakhs. 
 
Revenue 
Your Company reported Revenue of Rs. 15,945.15/- lakhs during the year as compared to 
Rs. 6206.10/- lakhs of the previous year. Revenue of current year has increased by 156.93% 
as compared to previous year. 
 
Finance Cost 
Finance cost has increased from Rs. 221.49/- lakhs in the previous year to Rs. 248.42/- 
lakhs.  
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Depreciation 
Depreciation during the year increased to Rs. 116.53/- lakhs from Rs. 80.51/- lakhs in 
previous year. 
 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES  
 
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. We 
continuously invest in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. Our 
thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement. We 
believe in harnessing its leadership and people capabilities through sharp focus and initiatives 
on talent development. The total number of permanent employees as on March 31, 2024 were 
17. 
 
We review our talent based on their performance and potential to assess their readiness for 
future roles of higher scale and complexity. We believe in developing our employees through 
multiple experiences requiring them to handle scale and complexity. We have instituted this 
through varied job rotation and project roles. We have put in place various recognition 
initiatives for our employees to reward them on their noteworthy performance and 
contribution. Social awareness and cultural/sports programs are arranged regularly to create 
interest in living a meaningful life and release tensions.  
 
Our Company is committed to providing work environment that ensures every employee is 
treated with dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. The Company is also 
dedicated at promoting a work environment that is conducive to the professional growth of its 
employees and encourages equality of opportunity. To foster a positive workplace 
environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual 
Harassment Framework through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the 
workplace. We follow a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment 
and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate. We have also constituted 
Complaints Committee to consider and address sexual harassment complaints in accordance 
with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 
 
SIGNIFICANT KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS 
 
For changes in 25% or more in key financial indicators as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year, refer note no. 5.14 to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 
31, 2024. 
 
CHANGE IN NET WORTH  
 
The Company’s Net worth stood at Rs. 13,621.14 Lakhs for the financial year 2023-24 as 
compared to Net worth of Rs. 13,304.38 Lakhs for the previous financial year 2022-23. In the 
current year, the Company earned a profit and hence change in return on Net worth of 
Company is 0.28 % compared to previous financial year. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the 
Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward 
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual 
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could 
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make a difference to your Company’s operations include global and Indian demand supply 
conditions, finished goods prices, feed stock availability and prices, cyclical demand and 
pricing in your Company’s principal markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, 
economic developments within India and the countries within which your Company conducts 
business and other factors such as litigation and your Company is not obliged to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 
development, information or events or otherwise. The “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis” does not constitute a prospectus, offering circular or offering memorandum or an 
offer to acquire any shares and should not be considered as a recommendation that any 
investor should subscribe for or purchase any of the Company’s securities. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
At Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited, innovation and responsibility have been at the core of 
building a sustainable enterprise and exploring possibilities towards creating a better future. 
We also deploy best available technologies and processes to drive resource efficiency and 
develop materials of the future which are superior, sustainable and affordable. We have 
focused on strengthening our balance sheet, upholding the highest standards in ethical and 
responsible business practices and striving towards a shared future of prosperity.  

 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited 
 
 
Rakesh Reniwal 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00029332)                                                                    

Unnati Reniwal 
Director 
(DIN: 00041306) 

 
Date: May 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE B 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V (C) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended) 

   
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Corporate Governance philosophy stems from our belief that corporate governance is an 
integral element in improving efficiency and enhancing investor confidence. Our goal is to 
promote and protect the long-term interest of all stakeholders, and to that end, our philosophy 
of Corporate Governance is built on a foundation of ethical and transparent business 
operations and is designed to inspire trust among all stakeholders, strengthen the Board and 
management accountability.  
 
The governance philosophy of your Company rests on five basic tenets viz. Board’s 
accountability to the Company and the Stakeholders, strategic guidance and effective 
monitoring by the Board, protection of minority interests and rights, equitable treatment to all 
Stakeholders, as well as superior transparency and timely disclosure. 
 
In line with the above philosophy, your Company continuously endeavors for excellence and 
focuses on enhancement of long-term Stakeholders’ value through adoption of and adherence 
with the best governance practices, in true spirit at all times. 
 
Following principles supplement the core of the Company’s philosophy on Corporate 
Governance: 
 

● TRANSPARENCY in all decision-making processes; 
● High levels of DISCLOSURES; 
● High standards of ETHICS; 
● Regular REVIEW of processes and management systems for improvement; and 
● APPROPRIATE CONTROL SYSTEM to enable the Board to efficiently conduct the 

business and discharge its responsibilities to its Stakeholders. 

During the year under review, the Board continued its pursuit by adopting and monitoring of 
corporate strategies, prudent business plans, major risks and ensuring that the Company 
pursues policies and procedures to satisfy its social, legal and ethical responsibilities. 
 
Moreover, the Company undertakes to take an audit of its secretarial records and documents to 
ensure timely compliance with applicable laws to the Company. 
 
Your Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements as enshrined in 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder (“Act”), Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable laws. 
 
Your Company presents this report, prepared in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
(including the amendments to the extent applicable), enumerating the current Corporate 
Governance systems and processes at the Company. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company (“Board”) is at the core of the Corporate Governance 
system of the Company. The Board is responsible for and committed to sound principles of 
Corporate Governance in the Company and plays a crucial role in overseeing how the 
Management serves the short-term & long-term interests of Members and other Stakeholders. 
This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an 
effective, informed and independent Board. 
 
Committees of the Board handling specific responsibilities mentioned under the applicable 
laws viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, empower the 
functioning of the Board through flow of information amongst each other and by delivering a 
focused approach and expedient resolution of diverse matters. 
 
Also, while discharging its fiduciary duties and in ensuring effective functioning of your 
Company, the Board is duly supported by the Managing Director, Key Managerial Personnel 
(“KMP”) and the Senior Management. It operates within the framework of well-defined 
responsibility matrix, which enables it to oversee how the Management of the Company serves 
and protects the long-term interests of all the Members and other Stakeholders of the 
Company. 
 
A. Composition of Board of Directors 

An independent and well-informed Board goes a long way in protecting the Stakeholders’ 
interest and simultaneously maximise long-term corporate values. 
 
In compliance with the requirements under the relevant provisions of the Act & SEBI Listing 
Regulations and with a strong belief that the Board needs to have an appropriate blend of 
Directors to maintain its diversity and independence, the Board of your Company has an 
optimum combination of such number of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors, including a Woman Director. 
 
The composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time to time for ensuring that it 
remains aligned with the statutory as well as business requirements and it separates the roles of 
governance and management.  

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 17 of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations.  

As on March 31, 2024, your Company’s Board comprises 6 Directors, categorised as below:  

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director* DIN Category 

1. Mr. Rakesh Reniwal 00029332 Managing Director 
2. Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal 00040355 Executive Director 
3. Mrs. Unnati Reniwal 00041306 Whole-Time Director 
4. Mr. Manohar Wagh 02622648 Non-Executive - Independent Director 
5. Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 02903984 Non-Executive - Independent Director 
6. Mr. Tejasbhai Thakker 03017277 Non-Executive - Independent Director 

*None of the Directors are related to any other except Mr. Rakesh Reniwal, Mr. Shantisarup 
Reniwal and Mrs. Unnati Reniwal. 
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Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal retires by rotation in the ensuing 43rd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. Details of Directors retiring or being appointed/ re-appointed form part of the 
Notice of the said AGM. 

Subsequent to the closure of financial year, Mr. Manohar Wagh (DIN: 02622648) ceased to be 
Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company due to completion of tenure with effect 
from the close of business hours on March 31, 2024. Further, Mr. Yogesh Thakkar (DIN: 
00043588) was appointed as Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. April 
01, 2024 subject to approval of Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB). 

The important and key decisions are taken after due discussion and deliberation with the Board 
and it is ensured that the relevant information prescribed to be provided under the SEBI Listing 
Regulations alongwith such other information, as may be deemed necessary for effective 
decision making, is presented to the Board. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 184 of the Act and Regulation 26(2) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Directors present necessary disclosures regarding the positions held by them 
on the Board and/or Committees of other public and/or private companies, from time to time. 
On basis of such disclosures, it is confirmed that as on the date of this Report, none of the 
Directors of your Company:- 

⮚ hold directorships in more than 10 public limited companies (listed or unlisted); and 

⮚ is a member of more than 10 Committees (considering only Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee) or Chairperson of more than 5 Committees across all the 
public companies (listed or unlisted) in which he/ she is a Director. 

The details of each Director alongwith the number of Directorships/ Committee Memberships/ 
Chairmanships and their shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2024, alongwith the 
date of joining the Board, are provided herein below: 

Name of the Director Date of 
joining 

Sharehold
ing in the 
Company 

Directorship
s in other 
Companies(1) 

No. of other Companies 
Board Committees(2) in 
which Chairperson/ 
Member 
Chairperson Member 

Mr. Rakesh Reniwal 01/02/1993 8,58,230 Nil Nil Nil 
Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal 09/07/1981 1,72,080 Nil Nil Nil 
Mrs. Unnati Reniwal 02/06/2014 4,00,000 Nil Nil Nil 
Mr. Manohar Wagh 28/04/2009 02 Nil Nil Nil 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 25/12/2009 0 Nil Nil Nil 
Mr. Tejas Thakker 12/04/2010 0 Nil Nil Nil 

 
Notes: 
(1) In terms of the provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, total 

number of Directorships excludes directorships in the Company, Foreign Companies, 
Private Limited Companies, Companies formed under Section 25 of the erstwhile 
Companies Act, 1956 and under Section 8 of the Act. 

(2) In terms of the provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
Chairmanship/ Membership of Committee only includes the Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee in other Indian Public Companies (Listed and 
Unlisted). 
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B. Details of Meetings of the Board of Directors and Annual General Meeting held during 
the period under review, along with attendance of Directors at each meeting 
 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on strategies, policies and reviews 
the financial performance of the Company. The meetings of the Board are pre-scheduled and a 
tentative annual calendar of the meeting is circulated to the Directors well in advance to 
facilitate them to plan their schedules accordingly. In case of business exigencies, the Board’s 
approval is taken through circular resolutions and the same are noted at the subsequent 
meeting of the Board and/or Committees. 
 
The notice and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes and other material information 
are sent in advance separately to each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the Meeting 
with the approval of the Board. This ensures timely and informed decisions by the Board. The 
Board also reviews the performance of the Company vis-à-vis the budgets/ targets. 
 
Video-conferencing facilities are made available to facilitate Directors travelling abroad or 
present at other locations, in case they wish to participate in the meetings. The same is 
conducted in compliance with the applicable laws. 
 
The Board meets at least 4 times in a year (one meeting in every calendar quarter) and the 
maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings is less than 120 days, as stipulated under 
Section 173(1) of the Act, Regulation 17(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Secretarial 
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
Additional meetings are held as and when necessary. 
 
The Board of your Company met 8 (eight) times during the year under review, the details of 
which are as follows: 

Sr. 
No. 

Date of the Meeting 

1 May 10, 2023 
2 May 30, 2023 
3 August 14, 2023 
4 September 5, 2023 
5 September 10, 2023 
6 November 09, 2023 
7 February 12, 2024 
8 March 30, 2024 

 
each meeting being consecutively numbered from 1 to 8. 
 

The details of attendance of Directors at each such meeting of the Board and at the 42nd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2023, are provided hereinbelow: 
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Meetings of 
the Board for 
the Financial 
Year 2023-24 

Name of the Director 

Mr. 
Rakesh 
Reniwal 

Mr. 
Shantisarup 
Reniwal 

Mrs. 
Unnati 
Reniwal 

Mr. 
Manohar 
Wagh 

Mr. 
Pradeep 
Bhatia 

Mr. Tejas 
Thakker 

Held during the tenure 

1 P P P P P P 

2 P P P P P P 

3 P P P P P P 

4 P P P P P P 

5 P P P P P P 

6 P P P P P A 

7 P P P P A P 

8 P P P P P P 

42nd Annual 
General 
Meeting 

P P P P P P 

 
*P: Present 
A: Leave of Absence 
 
C. Independent Directors 
 
All Independent Directors on the Board are Non-Executive Directors as defined under 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The maximum tenure of the Independent 
Directors is in compliance with the Act. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they 
meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
In compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company do not serve as 
an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. 
 
The Independent Directors on the Board of your Company are experienced, competent and 
highly respected individuals in their respective fields, which brings an ideal mixture of 
expertise, professionalism, knowledge and experience to the table. 
 
Further, as provided in the Act, a formal letter of appointment has been issued to the 
Independent Directors and the same is also disclosed on website of the Company i.e. 
www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 
D. Separate meeting of Independent Directors 
 
The Independent Directors met once during the year on February 12, 2024, without the 
presence of Executive Directors or Management representatives, inter alia, to discuss the 
performance of Non-Independent Directors & the Board as a whole and to assess the quality, 
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quantity & timeliness of flow of information between the Management of the Company and the 
Board, that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 
 
All the Independent Directors were present for the meeting. 
 
E. Appointment and Tenure 
 
The Directors of the Company are appointed/ re-appointed by the Board on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the 
Members at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). In accordance with the Articles of 
Association of the Company, all Directors, except the Managing Director and Independent 
Directors of the Company, are liable to retire by rotation at the AGM each year and, if eligible, 
offer themselves for re-election. The Executive Directors on the Board have been appointed in 
terms of the provisions of the Act and serve in accordance with the terms of their contract of 
service with the Company. 
 
As regards the appointment and tenure of the Independent Directors, the Company has 
adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of Independent Directors 
which are consistent with the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
F. Board Induction, Training and Familiarisation 
 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has 
framed a Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors of the Company, structured 
into two parts i.e. ‘Induction’ and ‘Ongoing Interaction’. This Programme aims to provide 
insights into the business of the Company, to enable the Independent Directors to understand 
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 
Company operates, its business in depth and contribute significantly to the Company. 
 
At the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to 
him/ her, which inter alia explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected from 
him/ her as an Independent Director of the Company. The Directors are also provided with 
necessary documents, reports and internal policies of the Company, to enable them to 
familiarise with the Company’s procedures and practices. The compliances applicable to them, 
in terms of the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws, are 
explained to them and an affirmation is obtained from them, in that regard. 
 
Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of the agenda of meetings of the Board/ Committee(s), 
presentations are regularly made to the Independent Directors on various matters inter alia 
covering the Company’s businesses & operations, strategy, risk management framework, 
industry & regulatory updates and other relevant matters.  
 
These presentations enable one-on-one interaction between the Independent Directors and the 
Senior Management of the Company/ Statutory Auditor/ Internal Auditor of the Company. 
Additionally, visits to the divisions and plant locations of the Company etc. are also arranged 
to apprise them of the actual operations of the Company. 
 
The details of the Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors are also available on 
the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 
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G. Board Confirmation regarding Independence of the Independent Directors 
 
All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective declaration/ 
disclosures under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations and 
have confirmed that they fulfil the independence criteria as specified under Section 149(6) of 
the Act and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations and have also confirmed that they are not 
aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent 
judgement and without any external influence. 
 
In the opinion of the Board based on the disclosures received from all the Independent 
Directors, the Independent Directors meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ specified in the 
Regulation 16(1) of the Listing Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder and are independent of the Management as required under Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulations. 

 
H. Resignation of Independent Director(s) 

 
During the year under review, none of the Independent Directors of the Company had resigned 
before the expiry of their respective tenure(s). 

 
I. The Board has identified the following skills / expertise / competencies fundamental for 

the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 

Sr. No. Skills/Expertise/Competence Particulars 

1. Global Business Understanding, of global business dynamics, across 
various geographical markets, industry verticals and 
regulatory jurisdictions. 

2. Strategy and 
Planning 

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices 
and experience in guiding and leading management 
teams to make decisions in uncertain environments. 

3. Governance Experience in developing governance practices, 
serving the best interests of all stakeholders, 
maintaining board and management accountability, 
building long-term effective stakeholder 
engagements and driving corporate ethics and 
values. 

4. Finance An understanding of Finance and Financial 
Reporting Processes. Understanding and overseeing 
various risks faced by the Company and ensuring 
that appropriate policies and procedures are in 
place to effectively manage risks. 
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J. Skills/Expertise/Competence possessed by Directors of the Company: - 

 
Name of Director Global Business Strategy and 

Planning 
Governance Finance 

Mr. Rakesh Reniwal √ √ √ √ 

Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal √ √ √ √ 

Mrs. Unnati Reniwal √ √ √ √ 

Mr. Manohar Wagh √ √ √ √ 

Mr. Pradeep Bhatia √ √ √ √ 

Mr. Tejas Thakker √ √ √ √ 

 
The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a Director of the Company is dependent on 
whether the person possesses the requisite skill sets identified by the Board as above and 
whether the person is a proven leader in running a business that is relevant to the Company’s 
business or is a proven academician in the field relevant to the Company’s business. The 
Directors so appointed are drawn from diverse backgrounds and possess special skills with 
regard to the industries / fields from where they come. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
The Committees of the Board (“Committees”) play a crucial role in the governance structure of 
the Company. They have been constituted under the formal approval of the Board to carry out 
clearly defined roles. Members of the Committees possess expertise in relevant areas and 
functions, which enables better handling and expedient resolution of diverse matters. Terms of 
reference of all the committees are laid down in line with the requirements of the Act and the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, to deal with specific areas/ activities which concern the Company 
and need a closer review and to carry out clearly defined roles. 

The Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps to perform its duties 
entrusted by the Board. There is seamless flow of information between the Board and its 
Committees, as the Committees report their recommendations and opinions to the Board, 
which in turn supervises the execution of respective responsibilities by the Committees. The 
minutes of the meetings of all the Committees are placed before the Board for its review. 
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Composition of Committees as on March 31, 2024 
 
 
 
 
   
  
  
 
 
   
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Pooja Yadav, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of your Company, acts as the 
Secretary of all the Committees. 
 
Note: Subsequent to the closure of financial year, Mr. Manohar Wagh (DIN: 02622648) ceased to 
be Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company due to completion of tenure with 
effect from the close of business hours on March 31, 2024. Further, Mr. Yogesh Thakkar (DIN: 
00043588) was appointed as Non-Executive - Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. April 
01, 2024, subject to approval of Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB). Mr. Thakkar has assumed the 
role of a member on the Committees, succeeding Mr. Wagh and accordingly the committees 
have been re-constituted. 
 
A. Audit Committee  

 
Your Company has a qualified and independent Audit Committee, which acts as a link 
between the management, the statutory and internal auditors and the Board. Its composition, 
quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act 
and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the members of the Audit Committee are 
financially literate. The Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 
Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process. 
 
 

Board of Directors 

Audit Committee Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 

Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

Committee 

Mr. Manohar 
Wagh 
(Chairman) 

Mr. Pradeep 
Bhatia 

Mr. Tejas 
Thakker 
 

Mr. Rakesh 
Reniwal 

Mr. Manohar 
Wagh 
(Chairman) 
 

Mr. Pradeep 
Bhatia 
 

Mr. Tejas 
Thakker 
 

 

Mr. Manohar 
Wagh 
(Chairman) 
 

Mr. Pradeep 
Bhatia 

 
Mr. Tejas 
Thakker 

 

Mr. Rakesh 
Reniwal 
(Chairman) 
 

Mr. Pradeep 
Bhatia 
 

Mr. Tejas 
Thakker 

 
Mr. 
Shantisarup 
Reniwal 
(Permanent 
Invitee) 
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1. Composition: 
 

The Committee comprises 4 Directors as its Members, out of which 3 are Non-Executive 
Independent Directors and one is Executive Director. 
 
Mr. Manohar Wagh, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia, Mr. Tejas Thakker and Mr. Rakesh Reniwal are the other members of the 
Committee. 

 
2. Brief Description of Terms of Reference: 

 
The Board has framed the Audit Committee Charter for the purpose of effective compliance 
of provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In 
fulfilling the above role, the Audit Committee has powers to investigate any activity within its 
terms of reference, to seek information from employees and to obtain outside legal and 
professional advice. 
 
In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and in terms of Regulation 18 read with Part C 
of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the scope, functions and terms of reference of 
the Audit Committee inter alia cover the following matters: 

 
Financial Matters: 

 
● Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial 

information to ensure that the Financial Statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 
● Reviewing with the Management, the Quarterly Unaudited Financial Statements and 

Annual Audited Financial Statements alongwith Limited Review Report/ Auditor’s Report 
thereon before submission to the Board for the approval. Reviewing of Annual Financial 
Statements inter alia including reviewing changes in Accounting Policies, if any, major 
accounting entries involving estimates, significant adjustments made in Financial 
Statements, qualifications in draft Audit Report, if any etc.; 

● Reviewing Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations; and 

● Scrutinizing the inter-corporate loans and investments. 
 

Internal Controls, Audit and Auditors: 
 

● Recommending the terms of appointment/ re-appointment, remuneration and any other 
terms and conditions pertaining to the appointment/ re-appointment, if required, 
replacement or removal of auditors, fixation of statutory audit fees and approval of 
payment for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors, as permitted under 
applicable laws; 

● Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness 
of audit process; 

● Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and internal control systems including 
internal financial controls; 

● Evaluating the Internal Financial Controls, Risk Management Systems of the Company; 
● Discussing with the Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon; 

and 
● Reviewing significant audit findings, if any, from the statutory and internal audits. 
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Other Matters: 
 

● Approving all Related Party Transactions; 
● Approving appointment of Chief Financial Officer of the Company; and 
● Reviewing the functioning of Vigil/ Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

 
3. Meetings and Attendance during the year: 

 
The Committee met 4 times during the year under review i.e. on May 30, 2023, August 14, 
2023, November 09, 2023 and February 12, 2024 (each meeting being consecutively numbered 
from 1 to 4), to deliberate on various matters. 
 
The details of attendance of the Members of the Committee at each meeting are provided 
herein below: 

 

Name of the Member Meetings of Committee for the Financial Year 2023-24 
Held during 
the tenure 

1 2 3 4 

Mr. Manohar Wagh 4 P P P P 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 4 P P P A 
Mr. Tejas Thakker 4 P P A P 
Mr. Rakesh Reniwal 4 P P P P 

 
P: Present 
A: Leave of Absence 

 
Chief Financial Officer, representatives of the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of 
your Company are also invited to the Audit Committee Meetings. In addition, other Senior 
Management Personnel are also invited to the Committee meeting from time to time, for 
providing such information as may be necessary. 

 
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
The Board of your Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(“NARC”) in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. Its composition, quorum, 
powers, role and scope are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
The Committee is inter alia entrusted with the responsibility of formulating criteria for 
determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the present and 
proposed Directors as well as recommending a policy to the Board relating to the 
remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees. It also specifies the methodology for 
effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors. 

 
1. Composition: 

 
The Committee comprises 3 Non-Executive Directors as its Members, all 3 are Independent 
Directors. 
 
Mr. Manohar Wagh, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the NARC. 
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Mr. Pradeep Bhatia and Mr. Tejas Thakker are the other members of the Committee. 
 

2. Brief Description of Terms of Reference: 
 

The broad terms of reference of the NARC, as approved by the Board in terms of the Section 
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, inter alia, include the 
following: 

 
● Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed at 

Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
recommending to the Board their appointment and removal; 

● Recommending the remuneration/ revision in remuneration of Managing Director and 
Executive Directors to the Board for approval and review; 

● Formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a Director and recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the 
Directors, KMP and other employees; 

● Formulating criteria for evaluation of Board, its Committees and each Director and 
reviewing its implementation and compliance; 

● Devising a policy on Board diversity; and 
● Recommending to the Board the extension or continuation of term of appointment of the 

Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors. 

 
3. Meetings and Attendance during the year: 

 
NARC met three times during the year under review i.e. on May 30, 2023, September 5, 2023, 
and March 30, 2024 (each meeting being consecutively numbered from 1 to 3), to deliberate on 
various matters. 
 
The details of attendance of Members of the Committee at each meeting are provided 
hereinbelow: 

Name of the Member Meetings of Committee for the Financial Year 2023-24 

Held during the 
tenure 

1 2 3 

Mr. Manohar Wagh 3 P P P 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 3 P P P 
Mr. Tejas Thakker 3 P P A 

 
P: Present 
A: Leave of Absence 

 
4. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

 
The performance of the Independent Directors of the Company is evaluated on the following 
criterias, more particularly as to how an Independent Director: 

 
● Invests time in understanding the Company and its unique requirements; 
● Brings in external knowledge and perspective to the table for discussions at the meetings; 
● Expresses his/ her views on the issues discussed at the Board; and 
● Keeps himself/ herself current on areas and issues that are likely to be discussed at the 

Board level. 
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5. Nomination Policy and Remuneration Philosophy/ Policy: 
 

In terms of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board 
of your Company had, on recommendation of the NARC, adopted a Nomination Policy, 
which inter alia enumerates the Company’s policy on appointment of Directors and KMP. 
Further, the Board has, on recommendation of NARC, also adopted a policy entailing 
Remuneration Philosophy, which covers remuneration philosophy covering the Directors, 
KMP and employees included in Senior Management of the Company.  
 
Both the aforesaid policies are available on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 
The Company’s remuneration policy is intended to attract and retain the individuals in order 
to achieve the Company’s objective. Further, the Company has a system where all the 
Directors and employees included in the Senior Management of the Company are required to 
disclose all pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company. No severance fees are 
paid to the Directors of the Company. 

 
6. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: 

 
The Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors were not paid any remuneration during 
the year under review.  
 
The Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company. 

 
7. Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

 
In terms of the provisions of the Act and in line with the Nomination Policy and 
Remuneration Philosophy/ Policy of the Company, the appointment and remuneration of 
Executive Directors is approved by the Board and the Members of the Company, on 
recommendation of the NARC. The appointment of Executive Directors is subject to 
termination by either party by giving one months’ notice of such termination in writing by 
either side or salary in lieu thereof or by mutual consent. The remuneration paid to the 
Managing Director comprises salary, allowances, perquisites, stock options, performance 
linked income/ bonus and other Retirement Benefit Funds, as approved by the Members at 
the Annual General Meeting. 

 
Annual increments are linked to performance and are decided by the NARC and 
recommended to the Board for approval thereof. The Performance Review System is 
primarily based on competencies and values. The Company closely monitors growth and 
development of top talent in the Company to align personal aspirations with the 
organizational goals and objectives. 
 
The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Director(s), during the year under review, 
are mentioned herein below: 

Name of Director Remuneration Paid  
Mr. Rakesh Reniwal Rs. 31,50,000/- p.a. 
Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal Rs. 4,50,000/- p.a. 
Mr. Unnati Reniwal Rs. 18,00,000/- p.a. 
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8. Stock Options: 
 

The Company does not grant any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
 

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee  
 

The Board of your Company has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”) 
in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. Its composition, quorum, powers, role and 
scope are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
The Committee is inter alia entrusted with the responsibility of considering and resolving the 
grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of 
shares, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of declared dividends, if any. 

 
1. Composition: 

 
The Committee comprises 3 Non-Executive Directors as its Members, all 3 are Independent 
Directors. 
 
Mr. Manohar Wagh, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the SRC. 
 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia and Mr. Tejas Thakker are the other members of the Committee. 

 
2. Brief Description of Terms of Reference: 

 
In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and Regulation 20(4) read with Part D of 
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the scope, functions and terms of reference of the 
SRC inter alia cover the following matters: 

 
● Reviewing of complaints relating to transfer of shares, transmission of shares, issue of 

duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of declared 
dividends and any other shareholder related queries/ complaints; 

● Reviewing of status of requests i.e., processing of complaints within statutory timelines; 
● Approving transfer and transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, etc.; 

and 
● Overseeing the performance of Registrar and Transfer Agent. 

 
3. Meetings and Attendance during the year: 

 
SRC met 4 (four) times during the year under review i.e. on May 30, 2023, August 14, 2023, 
November 09, 2023 and February 12, 2024 to deliberate on various matters with respect to 
Stakeholders of the Company.  
 
The details of attendance of Members of the Committee at each meeting are provided herein 
below: 
Name of the Member Meetings of Committee for the Financial Year 2023-24 

Held during the tenure 1 2 3 4 

Mr. Manohar Wagh 4 P P P P 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 4 P P P A 
Mr. Tejas Thakker 4 P P A P 
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P: Present 
A: Leave of Absence 

 
4. Shareholders’ complaints: 

 
During the year under review, your Company did not receive any complaints from the 
Shareholders. 
 
5. Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 

 
Ms. Pooja Yadav had been appointed as a Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company at the Board Meeting held on January 17, 2023. 
 
D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 
The Board of your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(“CSR Committee”) in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. Its composition, 
quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Act. 
 
The Committee is inter alia entrusted with the responsibility of monitoring and 
implementation of the CSR projects/ programmes/ activities of your Company and also for 
approving the annual CSR Budget, implementation of CSR projects and other related 
activities. 

 
1. Composition: 

The Committee comprises 3 Directors as its Members, out of which 2 are Non-Executive 
Independent Directors. 
 
Mr. Rakesh Reniwal, Managing Director, is the Chairman of the CSR Committee. 
 
Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal, Executive Director, is the permanent invitee to the meetings of CSR 
Committee. 
 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia & Mr. Tejas Thakker are the other members of the Committee. 

 
2. Brief Description of Terms of Reference: 

The scope and functions of the CSR Committee are in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
and terms of reference of CSR Committee, inter alia includes following: 

 
● Reviewing and finalising the annual CSR Budget of the Company (including any specific 

project driven budgets) for undertaking the CSR activities for and on behalf of the 
Company and thereafter to recommend the said CSR Budget to the Board for its approval 
and to implement the same post approval of the Board; 

● Authorising any officer and/or other person for and on behalf of the Company to form 
collaborative partnerships with the Government, the District or local authorities or 
agencies, village panchayats, NGOs and other like-minded Stakeholders, so as to enable 
the Company to widen its CSR reach and also to leverage upon their collective expertise, 
wisdom and experience which such partnerships shall bring to the table and taking all 
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further actions and steps and doing all acts, deeds and things, which may be required to be 
done and performed from time to time in above connections; and 

● Performing such other acts, deeds, things and powers as may be delegated to the 
Committee by the Board from time to time. 

 
3. Meetings and Attendance: 

CSR Committee met 2 (two) times during the year under review i.e. on May 30, 2023 and 
November 09, 2023 to deliberate on various matters with respect to Stakeholders of the 
Company.  
 
The details of attendance of Members of the Committee at each meeting are provided herein 
below: 
 
Name of the Member Meetings of Committee for the Financial Year 

2023-24 
Held during 
the tenure 

1 2 

Mr. Rakesh Reniwal 2 P P 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia 2 P P 
Mr. Tejas Thakker 2 P A 

 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
A. Annual General Meetings 

  
Details of the last 3 AGMs of the Members of the Company alongwith the details of Special 
Resolutions passed at each such AGM, are tabled hereinbelow: 

Financial 
year 

AGM Date Location Time Particulars of Special 
Resolution(s) passed 

2020-21 40th September 
30, 2021 

Through Video 
Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other 
Audio Visual 
Means 
(“OAVM”). 
 

9.00 
a.m. 

1. To approve revision in 
remuneration of Mr. Rakesh 
Shantisarup Reniwal (DIN: 
00029332), Managing Director 
of the Company. 
2. To approve revision in 
remuneration of Mr. 
Shantisarup Ramkumar 
Reniwal (DIN: 00040355), 
Chairman and Executive 
Director of the Company. 
3. To approve the change in 
designation of Mrs. Unnati 
Reniwal (DIN: 00041306), 
Executive Director as the 
Whole-Time Director of the 
Company. 

2021-22 41st  September 
30, 2022 

Through Video 
Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other 
Audio Visual 

9.00 
a.m. 

Nil 
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Means 
(“OAVM”)  

2022-23 42nd  September 
30, 2023 

Through Video 
Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other 
Audio Visual 
Means 
(“OAVM”)  

9.00 
a.m. 

Nil 

 
B. Postal Ballot 

 
During the year under review, no resolutions were approved through postal ballot. 

 
As on the date of this report, following Special Resolutions are proposed to be passed through 
Postal Ballot:  
 
Date of Postal 
Ballot notice 

Resolutions proposed Scrutinizer Link for 
Postal Ballot 
notice 

May 25, 2024 1. Appointment of Mr. Yogesh Thakkar 
(DIN: 00043588) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company. 

M/s. Dilip 
Bharadiya 
And 
Associates, 
Company 
Secretaries 

https://www.
hariyanagroup
.com/pdf/pos
tal/BSE-
Intimation-
Postal-Ballot-
Notice-
HSBL.pdf 

 
None of the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting require 
passing a special resolution through postal ballot. 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
A. Results: 

 
The quarterly/ half yearly/ annual results (“said results”) alongwith the Limited Review/ 
Auditor’s Report thereon are filed with the BSE Limited (referred to as “Stock Exchange”) at its 
electronic platform i.e. BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre, so as to enable it to display 
the same on its website. The said results are simultaneously uploaded on the website of the 
Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com, for the ease of reference of the Members of the 
Company. The aforesaid results are also published in “Free Press Journal” and “Navshakti” (a 
regional daily newspaper published from Mumbai) within the stipulated timelines. 
 
A separate dedicated “Investors Relations” section, on the website of the Company, gives 
information on the aforesaid results, shareholding pattern and other relevant information of 
interest to the investors/ public. 
 
In addition to the above, the Company has designated E-mail ID viz. 
contact@hariyanagroup.com, for Investor Relations and Shareholders assistance and the same 
is prominently displayed on the website of the Company.  
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B. Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts  
 

During the year under review, the Board did not made any presentations to the institutional 
investors and the analysts. 
 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 
In terms of the provisions of Point No. 9 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”), General Information of your Company for reference of the Shareholders 
is provided as under: 
 
A. Forty Third (43rd) Annual General Meeting: 

Forty Third (43rd) Annual 
General Meeting (Day, Date, 
Time and Mode) 

Monday, September 30, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. through VC/ 
OAVM 
 

Cut-off date for e-voting September 23, 2024 
 
As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, particulars of Directors 
seeking appointment/ re-appointment at Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) are given in the 
Annexure to the Notice of this AGM. 

 
B. Financial Year: 

 
Your Company follows April-March as the Financial Year. 
 
C. Tentative Calendar of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025:  

 
The meetings of Board of Directors for approval of quarterly/ half-yearly/ annual financial 
results for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025, were held on the following dates: 

Sr. No. Particulars of the Quarter Tentative Months 
1. Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 July/ August, 2024 
2. Results for the quarter and six months ended 

September 30, 2024 
October/ November, 2024 

3. Results for the quarter and nine months ended 
December 31, 2024 

January/ February, 2025 

4. Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 
2025 

April/ May, 2025 

 
Further, the tentative months for the Forty Fourth (44th) AGM of the Company for the Financial 
Year ending March 31, 2025 shall be August/ September, 2025. 

 Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable 
 

D. Stock Exchanges where Securities of the Company are listed: 
 

Your Company’s Shares are listed on the following Stock Exchange: 

Listing on Stock Exchange BSE Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001 

Stock Code & ISIN BSE: 526931 & ISIN: INE400G01011 
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E. Payment of Annual Listing/ Custody/ Issuer Fees: 

 
Annual Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 have been paid to the Stock Exchange. 
 
Annual Custody/ Issuer Fees have been paid to National Securities Depository Limited 
(“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) for the Financial Year 
2024-25. 
 
Further, in terms of circular no. IMD/FPIC/CIR/P/2018/61 dated April 5, 2018, issued by 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), your Company has appointed NSDL as the 
“Designated Depository” for the purpose of monitoring of Foreign Investment limits on behalf 
of the Company. 

 
F. Stock Market Price Data: 

 
The stock market price data and volume of the Company’s shares traded on the BSE during the 
Financial Year 2023-24 were as under: 

Month – Year High Price  
(in Rs.) 

Low Price 
(in Rs.) 

Close Price 
(in Rs.) 

Total Traded Volume 
 (No. of shares) 

April-2023 70.65 56.70 66.29 33,045 
May-2023 73.52 61.55 70.44 43,131 
June-2023 87.80 67.80 81.45 1,82,980 
July-2023 110.02 83.00 96.58 3,75,076 
August-2023 75.70 75.00 76.69 2,38,533 
September-2023 95.80 76.30 83.41 1,77,777 
October-2023 94.86 77.20 86.34 1,40,890 
November-2023 146.00 84.10 119.53 8,69,454 
December-2023 126.85 108.00 112.65 1,05,781 
January-2024 122.90 106.10 117.10 1,57,797 
February-2024 127.00 98.00 107.50 1,76,176 
March-2024 111.70 79.00 85.20 98,408 

 
G. Stock Performance: 

 
In comparison to broad-based indices viz. BSE SENSEX during the Financial Year 2023-24 were 
as under: 
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H. Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 
 

Name  Link Intime India Private Limited 
Registered Office 
Address 

C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083  

E-mail id rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
Tel No. 022 – 49186270 
Website  www.linkintime.co.in 
SEBI Registration 
Number 

INR000004058 

 
I. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024: 

Distribution Schedule on Scrip Value as on March 31, 2024 

Share of Nominal Value Number of 
Holders 

(%) of 
Holders 

Total 
Amount 

% of Amount 

UPTO TO  5000 3,128 87.42 34,00,020 5.51 
5001    TO  10000 233 6.51 19,21,570 3.12 
10001  TO  20000 106 2.96 16,95,220 2.75 
20001  TO  30000 40 1.12 10,72,320 1.74 
30001  TO  40000  15 0.41 6,08,980 0.93 
40001  TO  50000 11 0.31 5,03,430 0.82 
50001  TO  100000 21 0.59 16,07,480 2.61 
100001 TO ABOVE    24  0.68 5,08,57,650 77.48 

 T O T A L  3,578 100 6,16,66,670 100 
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Distribution Schedule on Number of Shares as on March 31, 2024 

Share Number of 
Holders 

(%) of 
Holders 

Total Shares % of Shares 

UPTO  TO  100 2,207 61.68 89,374 1.45 
101      TO  200 459 12.83 77,411 1.26 
201      TO  500 462 12.91 1,73,217 2.81 
501      TO  1000  233 6.51 1,92,157 3.12 
1001    TO  5000   172 4.81 3,87,995 6.29 
5001    TO  10000 21 0.59 1,60,748 2.61 
10001  TO 100000     15 0.42 4,02,301 6.52 
100001 TO  ABOVE  09  0.25 46,83,464 75.94 

 T O T A L  3,578 100 61,66,667 100 
 
J. Category-wise Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2024: 

Sr. No. Category Folio Count No. of 
Shares held 

% of Share 
holding 

1. Promoter and Promoter Group 9 46,21,814 74.95 
2. Financial Institutions/ Banks 0 0 0.00 
3. Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital up to Rs. 2 
lakhs. 

3,430 10,40,701 
 

16.89 

4. Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of Rs. 
2 lakhs. 

6 3,11,252 5.05 

5. Clearing Members 1 5 0.00 
6. Non-Resident Indian (NRI) 35 40,763 0.66 
7. IEPF 1 31,723 0.51 
8. Bodies Corporate 17 21,238 0.34 
9. HUF 76 96,471 1.56 
10. LLP 3 2,700 0.04 
Total 3,578 61,66,667 100.00 

 
K. Details of Shares held by Directors as on March 31, 2024:  

Name of Directors No. of Shares Held 
Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal  1,72,080 
Mrs. Unnati Reniwal   4,00,000 
Mr. Rakesh Reniwal  8,58,230 
Mr. Manohar Wagh  02 
Mr. Pradeep Bhatia  0 
Mr. Tejas Thakker  0 

 
L. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity: 

As on March 31, 2024, 99.34% of the total Equity Share Capital of the Company was held in 
dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL under International Securities Identification 
Number (“ISIN”) - INE400G01011. 
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The break-up of Equity Shares held in dematerialised and physical mode as on March 31, 2024, 
is as under:  

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage 
Physical 40,600 0.66 
Dematerialised Mode(1): 
CDSL 
NSDL 

 
29,03,918 
32,22,149 

 
47.09 
52.25 

Total 61,66,667 100.00 
 
Note: (1) Entire shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter Group is in Dematerialised form. 

 
M. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: 

As stipulated under Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, 
M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Company Secretaries, carry out a quarterly audit for the 
purpose of reconciliation of the total issued capital, listed capital and the capital held by the 
depositories in dematerialised form, the details of changes in the Share Capital during each 
quarter. 
 
Further, an audit report issued in that regard is submitted to the Stock Exchange on quarterly 
basis and the same is also placed before the Board. 

 
N. Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (“GDRs”)/ American Depository Receipts 

(“ADRs”)/ Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact 
on equity: 

Your Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ convertible instruments and 
hence, there are no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments 
pending for conversion as on March 31, 2024. 

 
O. Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities: 

Your Company does not engage in commodity hedging activities. The foreign currency 
exposure of the Company, in respect of its imports, borrowings and export receivables, if any, 
is hedged as per the Forex Policy of the Company. The Company uses a mix of various 
derivative instruments like forward covers, currency swaps, interest rate swaps or a mix of all. 
 
P. Share Transfer System: 

Your Company has an appropriate share transfer system. Requests for transfer of shares held in 
physical form can be lodged with the RTA of the Company. If documents are complete in all 
aspects then the request is generally processed within 15 days of the receipt of the documents. 
 
Transfers in electronic form are much simpler and quicker as the Shareholders have to 
approach their respective Depository Participants and the transfers are processed by NSDL/ 
CDSL, as the case may be, with no requirement of any separate communication to be made to 
the Company. 
 
RTA of your Company ensures compliance with all the procedural requirements with respect 
to transfer, transmission and transposition of shares and formalities with respect to name 
deletion, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, exchange and endorsement of share certificates.  
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Further, as stipulated under Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the RTA also 
obtains a yearly certificate in that regard from M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Company 
Secretaries and the same is filed with the stock exchange. 

 
Q. Investor Service and Grievance Handling Mechanism: 

A robust mechanism is established by your Company which ensures efficient service to the 
investors, pro-active handling of investor correspondences and redressal of grievances in an 
expeditious manner. This mechanism is handled by the Compliance Officer of your Company 
and the RTA. 
 
During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company did not receive any complaints. 

 
R. Company’s Recommendations to the Shareholders: 

1. Open Demat Account and Dematerialise your shares  
 
Shareholders may consider converting their physical holdings into dematerialised form 
and avail the benefits of dealing in Shares in demat form. There are various other 
benefits such as immediate transfer of shares, no stamp duty payable on transfer of 
shares held in dematerialised form and avoidance of risks associated with physical 
certificates such as forged transfers, fake certificates and bad deliveries. 
 

2. Consolidation of folios and avoidance of multiple mailing 
 
In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and duplicity of efforts for providing 
services, Shareholders who have more than one folio/ demat account in the same order 
of names, are requested to consolidate their holdings under one folio/ demat account. 
They may write to the RTA/ Depository Participant (“DP”) in that regard. This would 
facilitate one-stop tracking of all corporate benefits on the shares and would reduce 
time and efforts required to monitor and service multiple folios/ demat accounts.  

 
3. Submit Nomination Form 

 
Shareholders shall register their nominations with the Company, in case of physical 
shares and with their DP, in case of dematerialised shares, to ensure that their shares are 
transmitted to their respective nominees without any hassles. They must ensure that 
nomination made is in the prescribed form and must be witnessed by two witnesses in 
order to be effective. The said form is available for download from the “Investor 
Relations” section on the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 

4. Furnish/ update bank account particulars with the Company/ DP 
 
Shareholders holding the shares in physical form shall furnish/ update their latest bank 
account number and other details with the Company and those holding the shares in 
dematerialised form should ensure that correct and updated particulars of their bank 
account are available with the DP. This would facilitate in receiving direct credits of 
dividends, refunds etc., from companies and avoid events such as postal delays and loss 
in transit. 
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5. Intimate/ update contact details 
 
In order to receive communications on corporate actions and other information of the 
Company, the Investors may consider intimating their contact details (including 
address) and changes therein, if any, to the Company/ RTA, if shares are held in 
physical mode or to their DP, if the holding is in electronic mode. 
 

6. Service of documents through electronic means 
 
Your Company holds its Green Initiative in high regard. Pursuant to Section 101 and 
Section 136 of the Act, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications 
through electronic mode to those Shareholders who have registered their E-mail 
address either with the Company or with the DPs. 
 
Accordingly, Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are 
requested to register their E-mail address for receiving all communications including 
Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically, by submitting a 
duly filled E-Communication Registration Form available on the website of the 
Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com, to RTA or to the Company on its designated E-
mail Id i.e. secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. 
 

7. Exercise caution 
 
Shareholders shall keep the Company/ DP updated on any change with respect to their 
holdings, to avoid likelihood of fraudulent transfers in case of folios with no movement 
or where the shareholder has either expired or is not residing at the address registered 
with the Company. 

 
8. Deal with Registered Intermediaries 

 
Shareholders should transact through a registered intermediary, who is subject to 
regulatory discipline of SEBI, as it will be responsible for its activities and in case the 
intermediary does not act professionally, the matter can be taken up with SEBI/ Stock 
Exchanges. 

9. Monitor holdings regularly 
 
Demat account should not be kept dormant for a long period of time. Periodic statement 
of holdings should be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified. 
Where the Shareholder is likely to be away for a long period of time and where the 
securities are held in electronic form, the Shareholder can make a request to the DP to 
keep the account frozen, so that there can be no debit to the account till the instruction 
for freezing the account is countermanded by the Shareholder. 

 
10. Mode of Postage 

 
Share certificates and high value dividend/ interest warrants/ cheques/ demand drafts 
should not be sent by ordinary post. It is recommended that such instruments are by 
registered post or courier. 
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S. Plants/ Divisions of the Company with their locations: 

1. Ship Breaking Yard 
Plot No.14, Ship Breaking Yard, Alang, Dist. Bhavnagar, Gujarat – 364001 

 
2. Bhavnagar Division:  

Hariyana House, 2165/A-2, 2nd Floor, Sanskar Mandal Chowk, Bhavnagar – 364 002 
 
Branch Office: Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited, Atlanta Building, Plot No 2171-72/C, 
Opp Joggers Park, G-1 Attabhai Road, Bhavnagar- 364991, Gujarat 
 

T. Address for Correspondence: 

1. All Members’ correspondence should be forwarded to Link Intime (India) Private 
Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company or to the Company Secretary 
at the Registered Office of the Company at the addresses mentioned below. 

2. The Company’s dedicated e-mail address for Members’ Complaints and other 
communications is secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com. 

3. As stated in the SEBI circular dated November 7, 2022 w.r.t. redressal of investor 
grievances through the SEBI Complaints Redressed Systems (SCORES) platform, 
whereby SEBI has made mandatory for investors to first take up their grievances for 
redressal with the Company and then register with SCORES, in case the Company fails 
to redress the same, Members are requested to approach the Company directly at the 
first instance for their grievances. 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 
(R&TA) 
Link Intime India Private Limited 
Unit: Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (W), Mumbai – 400 083 
Ph: 022 – 49186270 
Fax: 022 – 49186270 
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

Registered Office 
Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 
156, Maker Chambers VI, 220 Jamnalal  
Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021 
Ph: +91 22 22043211      
Fax: +91 22 22043215   
E-mail: secretarial.hariyana@gmail.com /  
contact@hariyanagroup.com 
Website: www.hariyanagroup.com 

 
Investors are requested to make a note of the same. 

 
U. Feedback: 

Your feedback is valuable to us to help us serve you better. Members are requested to give us 
their valuable suggestions, if any, for enhancement of our Investor Services by writing to us/ 
RTA at the address provided hereinabove.  

OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
A. Details of materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 

conflict with the interests of the Company at large  
 

All the Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) entered into by your Company, during the 
Financial Year 2023-24, were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company. All such transactions had prior approval of the Audit Committee and the Board.  
 
However, there were no material significant RPTs that had/ may have potential conflict with 
the interests of your Company at large. 
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B. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to 
capital markets, during the last three years 
 

Your Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
all other applicable regulations and guidelines issued by SEBI and Stock Exchange, except in 
respect of matters specified below: 

Sr. 
No. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circulars/ 
guidelines 
including 
specific clause) 

Regulation
/ Circular 
No. 

Details of 
Violation 

Action 
Taken 
by 

Type of 
Action 

Fine 
Amount 

Management 
Response 

1. Prior 
intimation 
about the 
meeting of 
the board of 
directors 

Regulation 
29(2) of 
SEBI 
(Listing 
Obligation
s and 
Disclosure 
Requireme
nt) 
Regulation, 
2015 

There was a 
delay in 
furnishing 
prior 
intimation 
about 
the meeting 
of the board 
of 

directors held 
on 14th 
November 
2022. 

BSE Fine Rs. 
11,800/-  

The Company has 
duly paid the 
Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOP) fine 
levied by BSE on 
January, 13 2023. 

2. Submission of 
quarterly and 
year-to-date 
standalone 
financial 
results within 
forty-five days 
of end of each 
quarter, other 
than the last 
quarter. 

Regulation 
33 of SEBI 
(Listing 
Obligation
s and 
Disclosure 
Requireme
nt) 
Regulation, 
2015 

Non-
submission 
of Asset & 
Liability and 
Cash flow 
statement for 
the quarter 
ended 
September 
30, 2022 in 
pdf Format.  

BSE Fine Rs. 
1,77,000/- 

On being notified of 
non-compliance, the 
Company took all 
possible measures to 
make good the error. 
Further, the 
Company has also 
made a 
representation to BSE 
for waiver of fine 
imposed on 1st 
February 2023 and 
the same is pending 
with BSE for further 
action. 

3. Submission of 
disclosure of 
related party 
transactions 
on 
consolidated 
basis. 

Regulation 
23(9) of 
SEBI 
(Listing 
Obligation
s and 
Disclosure 
Requireme
nt) 
Regulation, 
2015 

There was 
delay in 
submission 
of disclosure 
of related 
party 
transactions 
on 
consolidated 
basis for the 
half year 
ended March 
31, 2023. 

BSE Fine Rs. 
11,800/- 

The Company has 
duly paid the 
Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOP) fine 
levied by BSE on July 
15, 2023. 
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C. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel have been 

denied access to the Audit Committee 
 

Your Company has in place a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy which facilitates for 
direct access to the Management and the Audit Committee of the Board to all Stakeholders to 
report concerns about any unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The mechanism provides adequate safeguards 
against any victimisation of the persons who use this mechanism. It is hereby affirmed that no 
personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 
Also, the Company has adopted “Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace”. 
This ensures a work environment that is professional and mature, free from animosity and 
one that reinforces Company’s value of integrity, which includes respect for the individual. 

 
D. Other Policies, Programs and Codes of the Company 

 
1. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy: 

 
In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has adopted Corporate Social 
Responsibility policy having the following scope: 
 
● Planning project or programmes which a Company plans to undertake falling within 

the purview of Schedule VII of the Act; and 
● Monitoring process of such project or programmes. 

 
2. Policy on Related Party Transactions: 

 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your 
Company has framed a Policy on RPTs to regulate transactions of the Company with its 
related parties (as defined and identified under the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations), to 
ensure high standards of Corporate Governance while dealing with related parties and 
also to ensure optimum compliance with applicable laws prescribed for RPTs. The 
policy is also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 

 
3. Code of Conduct for Trading in Listed or Proposed to be Listed Securities of 

Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited: 
 
This document explains the Code to be observed by all the Connected Persons of your 
Company as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as may be amended from time to time. The 
Company has revised its Code of Conduct for Trading in Listed or Proposed to be 
Listed Securities of the Company and is in compliance with the Listing Regulations. 
 
The objective of this Code is to communicate to all the Connected Persons, the Code 
related to trading in listed or proposed to be listed securities of the Company. It is 
intended to serve as a guideline to all persons connected with the Company, which they 
should imbibe and practice, both in letter and spirit, while trading in listed or proposed 
to be listed securities of the Company. 
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4. Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management of Hariyana Ship-
Breakers Limited: 
 
This Code of Conduct has been framed and adopted by your Company in compliance 
with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
The Code incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Act and 
also helps the Board Members and Senior Managers to observe the highest standards of 
ethical conduct along with integrity and to work to the best of their ability and 
judgement. 

 
5. Policy on Preservation of Documents: 

 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 9 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your 
Company has adopted this policy for preservation of documents. 
 
This policy contains guidelines for identifying Documents (as defined under the SEBI 
Listing Regulations) that need to be maintained, specifies the period of preservation of 
such Documents and its destruction/disposal. This policy aims to provide efficient and 
systematic control on the maintenance, periodicity and destruction of business-related 
Documents. 

 
6. Policy for Determining of Material Subsidiary Companies: 

 
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary as on the date of this report and 
accordingly, it does not have any policy for determining the “Material Subsidiary”. 

 
 

7. Policy for Determination of Materiality of Information or Event: 
 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your 
Company has adopted this policy for determination of materiality of information or 
event for facilitating prompt disclosure of material price sensitive information to the 
Stock Exchange(s) in compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
This policy acts as a guidance for determining materiality of such price sensitive 
information and with the objective to ensure prompt disclosure of material price 
sensitive information/ event to the Stock Exchange, where the securities of the 
Company are listed, so that present and potential investors are able to take informed 
decision relating to their investment in your Company and to avoid creation of false 
market in the securities of the Company. The policy is also available on the website of 
the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 

 
8. Policy for Archival of Documents 

 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your 
Company has adopted this Policy for the archival of documents of the Company, to 
comply with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The policy provides that 
beyond the Mandatory Hosting Period (i.e. 5 years from the date of each disclosure on 
the website of your Company), the disclosed information shall be archived for such 
other additional period as may be required considering the requirement of various 
statutes, law, regulations etc. and other legal and administrative aspects. The policy is 
also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 
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9. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information: 
 
This Code of Conduct has been framed and adopted by the Company in compliance 
with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015 “SEBI PIT Regulations”, to adhere to each of the Principles 
of Fair Disclosure for the purposes of Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, as set out in Schedule A to the 
SEBI PIT Regulations. 

 
10. Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Activities  

 
Your Company does not engage in Commodity hedging activities. 
 

11. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory 
requirements 
 
Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations relating to Corporate Governance. 
 
In addition to the same, your Company also strives to adhere and comply with the 
following discretionary requirement specified under Regulation 27(1) and Part E of the 
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable:  
 
Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of your Company directly reports 
to the Audit Committee on functional matters. 

 
12. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

 
The Company has followed all applicable and relevant Accounting Standards while 
preparing the Financial Statements. 

 
13. Proceeds from Public Issues, Right Issues, Preferential Issues, etc. 

 
During the year, your Company has not raised any proceeds from public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issues, etc. and hence, there are no unutilized issue proceeds during 
the year under review. 
 

14. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding Non-Debarment and Non-
Disqualification of Directors  
 
A certificate from Company Secretary in Practice certifying that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company as on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory Authority, is annexed at the end of this 
Report. 
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15. Disclosure in relation to recommendation made by any Committee which was not 
accepted by the Board  
 
During the year under review, there were no such recommendations made by any 
Committee of the Board that were mandatorily required and not accepted by the Board. 

 
16. Management  

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis is prepared in accordance with the 
requirements laid out in Regulation 34 read with Section B of Schedule V of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and forms part of the Report of the Board of Directors.  
 
No material transaction has been entered into by your Company with the Promoters, 
Directors or the Management or relatives, etc. that may have a potential conflict with 
interests of the Company. 
 

17. Shareholders 
 
According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors retire by rotation and 
if eligible, seek re-appointment at the AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal will 
retire in the ensuing 43rd AGM of the Company and is eligible for re-appointment. 
Accordingly, the Board has recommended his re-appointment in the said AGM. The 
detailed profile of Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal is provided in the notice convening the said 
AGM. 

 
18. Total fees for all services paid to the Statutory Auditors by the Company and its 

Subsidiaries  
 
Total fees paid by the Company excluding GST thereon, to the Statutory Auditors viz 
M/s. S. N. Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration 
No. 109782W) and M/s. L S M & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm 
Registration No. 116870W) {Formerly known as Lahoti Navneet & Co.}, be all entities in 
the network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a part, are as 
follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) 
1 Audit Fees 6.24 
2 Limited Review - 
3 Other Services - 
4 Re-imbursement of Expenses - 
 Total 6.24 

 
19. Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2023-24 
 
The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No complaint was received by the 
Internal Complaints Committee during the year under review and pending as at March 
31, 2024, pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
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20. The Company has also complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance 
Report of Paras (2) to (10) mentioned in Part ‘C’ of Schedule V of the Listing 
Regulations, disclosed the extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in 
Part E of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and disclosed necessary information as 
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) of the Listing Regulations 
in the respective places in this Report. 

 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 
As on March 31, 2024, your Company does not have any subsidiary. 
 
LOANS AND ADVANCES 
  
The members are requested to refer to the financial statements of the Company for Loans and 
advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested, if any. 
 
MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES 
 
Your Company does not have any Material Subsidiaries as on the date of this report. 
 
CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
As required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Mr. Sanjeev 
Reniwal – Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Kirti Desai – Chief Financial Officer have reviewed 
the Audited Financial Results and Cash Flow Statements for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2024 and accordingly have provided a certificate, which is enclosed separately at the end of 
this Report. 
 
DECLARATION 
 
The declaration from the Managing Director stating that as on March 31, 2024 all the board 
members and the senior management personnel of the Company have adhered to the code of 
conduct for F.Y. 2023-24 and the same has been included in this report duly signed by the 
Managing Director of the Company. 
 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
As required under Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has been duly 
submitting the quarterly compliance report in the prescribed format and within the required 
timelines to the BSE and the same is available on its website. 
 
The said report is also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.hariyanagroup.com. 
 
The Compliance Certificate received from the Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. S. N. Shah & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No. 109782W) and M/s. L S 
M & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 116870W) {Formerly known 
as Lahoti Navneet & Co.}, regarding compliance of Corporate Governance requirements is 
annexed to this Report. 
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Further, your Company has complied with the Corporate Government requirements specified 
in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and the same 
has been disclosed in this Report. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Hariyana Ship- Breakers Limited 
 
 
Rakesh Reniwal 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00029332)                                                                    

Unnati Reniwal 
Director 
(DIN: 00041306) 

 
Date: May 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
 
 

DECLARATION 
As provided under the provisions of Schedule II and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby 
declare that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed 
the Compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2024. 
         
 

Rakesh Shantisarup Reniwal  
Managing Director                                                              

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2024 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 
CERTIFICATION 

To 
The Board of Directors  
Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 
 
We have reviewed Audited Financial Statements and the cash flow statement of Hariyana Ship- 
Breakers Limited (‘Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we state that;  
 
1. i.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material  

   fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
 

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are  
   in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 which are fraudulent, illegal 
or violate the Company’s code of conduct. 

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting.  We have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the audit 
committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which 
we are aware and steps taken or propose to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies. 

 
4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

 
i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the 

Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024; 
ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the Financial Year ended 

on March 31, 2024 and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and 

iii.  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

      
 
Sanjeev Reniwal  
Chief Executive Officer                                             

Kirti Desai  
Chief Financial Officer       

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2024 
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LSM & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
516, Summit Business Bay,  
Opp. Cinemax, Chakala, 
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093 

S. N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Sapna House, 10-B, Govt. Servants CHS, Opp 
Municipal Market, C G Road, Narrangpura, 
Ahmedabad - 380009 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
To 
The Members of HARIYANA SHIP BREAKERS LIMITED 
 

1. We, are the joint Statutory Auditors of Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited (“the 
Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
the Company, for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing 
Regulations”). 

 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance 
of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents 
maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the 
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by 
the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or 
Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with 
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality 
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of 
Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements. 
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Opinion 
 

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and 
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and 
D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
For LSM & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 

  For S. N. Shah & Associates 
  Chartered Accountants 
  FRN : 109782W 
 
   
 CA Dhruvin Joshi 
  Partner 
  M. No. 612290 

         
        Place: Mumbai                                                          Place: Ahmedabad 
        Date: May 30, 2024                                                   Date: May 30, 2024 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
 
To, 
The Members 
HARIYANA SHIP-BREAKERS LIMITED 
156, Maker Chambers VI,  
220 Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,  
Nariman Point,  
Mumbai – 400 021 
 
This Certificate is being issued to the Members of HARIYANA SHIP-BREAKERS LIMITED, 
bearing Corporate Identity Number (CIN) - L61100MH1981PLC024774, having its Registered 
Office address at 156, Maker Chambers VI, 220 Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 
400 021 (“the Company”) in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V para C Clause 10(i) 
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 
 
We believe it is the responsibility of the Directors to submit relevant documents with complete 
and accurate information in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 
 
We have examined the documents and disclosures provided by the following Directors in 
electronic mode, for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with the requirements 
under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the SEBI Listing Regulations.  
 
Based on our examination of documents/ information/ explanations provided to us by the 
Company and such other verifications [including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status 
at the portal www.mca.gov.in] carried out by us as deemed necessary and adequate, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and knowledge, we certify that as on date of this 
certificate, none of the directors on the Board of the Company, as listed hereunder, for the 
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of 
India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.  
 

Directors of the Company 
Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment 
1. Rakesh Shantisarup Reniwal 00029332 01/02/1993 
2. Shantisarup Ramkumar Reniwal 00040355 09/07/1981 
3. Unnati Rakesh Reniwal 00041306 01/10/2021 
4. Manohar Hanumants Wagh 02622648 28/04/2009 
5.  Pradeep Lilaram Bhatia 02903984 25/12/2009 
6. Tejasbhai Himmatbhai Thakker 03017277 12/04/2010 
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
       DILIP BHARADIYA 
       Partner 
       F.C.S No. 7956 C.O.P No. 6740 
       UDIN: F007956F000505937  
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2024 
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ANNEXURE C 

 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
HARIYANA SHIP-BREAKERS LIMITED 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited (hereinafter 
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering 
the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 (“period under review”), complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 
 
1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company as given in Annexure - I, for the period under review, 
according to the applicable provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 as 
amended from time to time and the rules made thereunder (to the extent applicable); 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made 
thereunder (to the extent applicable); 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder (to the 
extent applicable); 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings (to the extent applicable);  

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):- 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015;  
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client; 
and 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

90 



Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 

 
2. We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers and report of 

the Internal Auditor for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances 
under other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company which are stated above 
very specifically.  

 
3. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (“BSE/ Stock 

Exchange”), from time to time and the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.   

 
During the financial year under review, the Company has generally complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above 
except in respect of matters specified below: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Compliance 
Requiremen
t 
(Regulations
/ circulars/ 
guidelines 
including 
specific 
clause) 

Regulation/ 
Circular No. 

Details of 
Violation 

Action 
Taken 
by 

Type of 
Action 

Fine 
Amount 

Management 
Response 

1. Submission 
of 
disclosure of 
related party 
transactions 
on 
consolidated 
basis. 

Regulation 
23(9) of SEBI 
(Listing 
Obligations 
and 
Disclosure 
Requirement
) Regulation, 
2015 

There was delay 
in submission of 
disclosure of 
related party 
transactions on 
consolidated 
basis for the half 
year ended 
March 31, 2023. 

BSE Fine Rs. 
11,800/-  

The Company has duly 
paid the Standard 
Operating Procedures 
(SOP) fine levied by 
BSE on July 15, 2023. 

 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) during the period 
under review.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance; and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation of all Directors at the meeting.  
 
All Resolutions of the Board of Directors and its Committees are approved by the requisite 
majority and are duly recorded in the respective minutes. Majority decision is carried through, 
while the dissenting views of the Directors/ Members, if any, are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as Annexure - II to this 
report. 
 
For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 
       DILIP BHARADIYA 
       Partner 
       F.C.S No. 7956 C.O.P No. 6740 
       UDIN: F007956F000505915  
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2024 
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Annexure - I 
 
List of documents verified 
 
1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company; 
2. Annual Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 
3. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee held during the financial year under review, alongwith the 
Attendance Registers; 

4. Resolutions passed by way of circulation approved by the Board of Directors and its 
Committees from time to time. 

5. Minutes of General Body Meeting held during the financial year under review; 
6. Statutory Registers viz. 

 Register of Directors & KMP & Directors Shareholding 
 Register of loans, guarantees and security and acquisition made by the Company 
 Register of Charges 
 Register of Related Party Transaction- Transactions are in the Ordinary Course of 

Business at Arm’s Length Basis. 
 Register of Members; 

7. Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors/ Members for the Board and Committee 
Meetings; 

8. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 184(1), Section 164(2), Section 149(3) and Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013;  

9. E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, if any and Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time 
alongwith the attachments thereof, during the financial year under review. 

10. Intimations / documents / reports / returns filed with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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Annexure - II 
 
To,  
The Members,  
HARIYANA SHIP-BREAKERS LIMITED 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial record. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the practices and processes, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

4) Where ever required, we have obtained management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules, regulations, norms and standards and happening of events. 

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, norms and standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination 
was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6) The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
       DILIP BHARADIYA 
       Partner 
       F.C.S No. 7956 C.O.P No. 6740 
       UDIN: F007956F000505915  
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2024 
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ANNEXURE D 

 
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 

 
The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 
A. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24; and 
 

B. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary, if any, for the Financial Year 2023-24: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Remunerat
ion for the 
Financial 
Year 2023-
24 

Percentage 
Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
remuneratio
n in the 
Financial 
Year 2023-24 
(%) 

Ratio of 
Remuneration 
of each 
Director to 
Median 
Remuneration 
of Employees 

1. Mr. Rakesh 
Reniwal 

Managing 
Director 

31,50,000 162.5% 16.43 

2.  Mr. Shantisarup 
Reniwal 

Chairman 
 

4,50,000 -25% 2.35 

3. Mr. Kirti Desai Chief Financial 
Officer 

8,81,867 14.80% - 

4. Mr. Sanjeev 
Reniwal 

Chief Executive 
Officer 

Nil - - 

5.  Mrs. Unnati 
Reniwal 

Whole-Time 
Director 

18,00,000  9.39 

6. Ms. Pooja 
Yadav 

Company 
Secretary 

4,80,000 NA - 

 
C. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

 
There is 75.77% increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year. 

 
D. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 17 

 
E. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 
 
Save and except, the payment of remuneration to Mr. Rakesh Reniwal, Managing Director 
of the Company was increased to Rs. 31,50,000/‐ p.a. and remuneration of Mr. Kirti Desai, 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company was increased to Rs. 8,81,867/- p.a. 
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Further, during the year under review Mr. Shantisarup Reniwal, Chairman and Executive 
Director of the Company was paid a remuneration of Rs. 4,50,000/‐ p.a. and Mrs. Unnati 
Reniwal was paid Rs. 18,00,000/- p.a. 
 
While the average remuneration of the employees of the Company other than Managerial 
Personnel has no change and hence the information cannot be furnished. Further, such 
increase/ decrease is not comparable for the reasons as mentioned above. 

 
F. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

 
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to: 

 
 Directors, KMP and members of Senior Management is as per Remuneration 

Philosophy/Policy of the Company; and 
 other employees of the Company is as per the Human Resource Philosophy of the 

Company. 
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ANNEXURE E 
 
PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE 
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024. 
 
The Company makes all efforts towards conservation of energy, protection of environment and 
ensuring safety. 
 
The particulars as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 with respect to conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as follows: 
 
A. Health, Safety and Environment:   

 
The Company aims to provide a safe and healthy workplace to our employees, visitors and 
contract workers and achieve high standards of environment protection. We are certified to 
the following: 

Certificate No./ Standard Description/Compliance/Requirement 
ISO 9001:2008  
Quality Management 
System 

Sale of steel, recyclable items from ship and machineries 
derived from ship recycling and handling of hazardous and 
non‐ hazardous material 

ISO 14001:2004 
Environmental 
Management System 

Selection of vessel for ship recycling, ship recycling including 
all material on Board of the ship, handling and disposal of 
hazardous (including asbestos, PCB, oily waste) and non‐ 
hazardous wastes and sale of items derived from ship 
recycling including ferrous and non‐ ferrous metal, reusable 
machineries, equipments materials (insulation oil, batteries) 

ISO 30000:2009 
Ship and Marine 
Technology ‐  Ship 
Recycling 
Management Systems 

Safe Environmentally Sound and Green Ship Recycling 
including hazardous (including asbestos, PCBs, oily waste) 
and non‐ hazardous material handling. Also, sale of steels, 
equipments, machines obtained from the ship 

OHSAS 18001:2007 
Occupational Health and 
Safety Management 
System 

Selection of vessel for ship recycling, ship recycling including 
all material on Board of the ship, handling and disposal of 
hazardous (including asbestos, PCB, oily waste) and non-
hazardous wastes and sale of items derived from ship 
recycling including ferrous and non‐ ferrous metal, reusable 
machineries, equipments materials (insulation oil, batteries) 

SHIP‐MS‐48 Certifying compliance with the standard ISO 
30000:2009‐ Ship Recycling Activities and Sale of Recyclable 
Material such as steel, equipment, machineries and other 
materials obtained from ship 

EU SRR 034 Certifying compliance with the requirements set out in 
Article 13 of Regulation (EU) No. 1257/2013 of the European 
Parliament and of the Council 20 November 2013 on ship 
recycling and amending Regulation (EC) No. 1013/2006 and 
Directive 2009/16/EC 

IRQS/1721605 Statement of compliance under the provisions of Hong Kong 
International Convention for the Safe and Environmentally 
Sound Recycling of Ships, 2009 
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Also, the Company has been confirmed as a firm engaged in ship recycling and that the 
operations and procedures that are in place at the facility are in accordance with IMO 
Resolution MEPC. 210(63) – 2012 Guidelines for Safe and Environmentally Sound Ship 
Recycling, giving recommendation for the Safe and Environmentally Sound Recycling of 
Ships and implementation of the Hong Kong International Convention 2009. 
 
The Company has been compliant under applicable provisions of the Water (Prevention 
and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and 
Hazardous Waste (Management Handling and Tran boundary Movement) Rules 2008. 
 
Further, the Company is a valid member of Gujarat Enviro Protection & Infrastructure Ltd. 
(Unit Alang) for Integrated Common Hazardous Waste Management Facility 
 

B. Conservation of energy:    
 
1. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 
2. the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy; 

 
In light of the global challenges concerning energy security, the Company considers 
energy management as one of the key components of its responsible business strategy. 
The Company recognized the importance of energy conservation in decreasing the 
deleterious effects of global warming and climate change. The Company has 
implemented various initiatives for the conservation of energy and all efforts are made to 
minimize energy costs. Company is engaged in Ship Breaking, trading in metal scrap, 
graphite electrodes and other industrial inouts. No significant power consumption is 
required in ship breaking industry as major portion in production process consist of non 
- mechanical processes. However, industrial gases are used in ship dismantling activities 
and the Company has taken various measures to control the consumption of fuel and 
energy.   
 

3. the capital investment on energy conservation equipments; 
 
The Company is taking adequate steps to conserve energy though no such capital 
investment has been made. 
 

C. Technology absorption: 
 
The Company continues to adopt and use the latest technologies to improve the 
productivity and quality of its services and products. The Company’s operations do not 
require significant absorption of technology. There has been no import of technology in FY 
2023‐24. 
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D. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
                                                                                                                                  In Lakhs 

Particulars  Current Year Previous Year   
 INR  USD      EUR INR  USD      EUR 
Foreign exchange 
earnings 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Foreign Exchange 
Outgo 

15706.175 190.916 NIL 4927.89 64.29 NIL 
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ANNEXURE F 

 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

 
Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 
 
1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company: 

 
To actively contribute to the social and economic development of the communities in which 
the Company operate. In so doing build a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker 
sections of society and raise the country’s human development index. 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
directorship 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
held during 
the year 

Number 
of 
meetings 
of CSR 
Committe
e attended 
during the 
year 

1 Mr. Rakesh 
Shantisarup Reniwal 

Chairperson/Managing Director 2 2 

2 Mr. Pradeep Lilaram 
Bhatia 

Member/Independent Director 2 2 

3 Mr. Tejasbhai 
Himmatbhai 
Thakker 

Member/Independent Director 2 1 

 
3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR 

projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
https://www.hariyanagroup.com/pdf/policy/CSR%20POLICY.pdf 
 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8, if applicable:  Not Applicable. 
 

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: Rs. 848.49 Lakhs 
(b) Two percent of Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135– 

Rs. 16.97 Lakhs 
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years – NIL 
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any – Not Applicable 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] – Rs. 16.97 Lakhs 

 
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) – 

Rs. 17 Lakhs 
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads -Nil 
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. - Nil 
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(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 17 Lakhs 
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial 
Year. (in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount 
transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account 
as per sub-section (6) of 

section 135 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

sub-section (5) of section 135  

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer 

Rs. 17 Lakhs - - - - - 

 
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any  

SI. No. Particular Amount (in 
Rs.) 

i.  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-
section (5) of section 135 

Rs. 16.97 
Lakhs 

ii.  Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 17 Lakhs 
iii.  Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 0.03 Lakhs 
iv.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous Financial Years, if any 
Nil 

v.  Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-
(iv)] 

Rs. 0.03 Lakhs 

 
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 

Financial Years: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
SI. 
No
. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferr
ed to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub- 
section 
(6) of 
Section 
135  
(in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount 
in 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub- 
section 
(6) of 
Section 
135  
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund as specified 
under Schedule 
VII as per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 
section 135, if any. 
 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding 
Financial 
Years. (in 
Rs.) 

Deficie
ncy, if 
any 

Amount 
(in Rs.) 

Date of 
Transfe
r 

 

 ----------------------------------------------------NIL--------------------------------------------------------- 

 
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable 

      If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired   
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Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

SI. 
N
o. 

Short 
Particulars of 
the property or 
assets(s) 
 
[including 
complete 
address and 
location of the 
property] 

Pin code 
of the 
property 
or 
assets(s) 

Date of 
Creation 

 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent 

Details of entity/Authority/beneficiary 
of the registered owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

     CSR 
Registration 
Number, if 
applicable 

Name Registered 
Address 

        

  

  (All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, 
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the 
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries) 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5):  Not Applicable 
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LSM & Co.        S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants     Chartered Accountants   
516, Summit Business Bay,          Sapan House, C.G. Rd, Opp. Municipal  
Opp. Cinemax, Chakala,      Market, Navrangpura , Ahmedabad , 
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093    Gujarat 380009 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
To the Members of  
Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
   
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hariyana Ship 
Breakers Limited, ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred as "the Standalone Financial Statements"). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian 
Accounting Standards(“Ind AS”) specified in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income 
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report.  
 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Emphasis of Matters 
 

1. We draw attention to the users of Standalone financial statement, that the company 
has made investment of Rs. 13.19 crores which constitutes 8.08% of the total assets of 
the company as at 31st March, 2024 in one company for starting a joint venture. Till  
 
date, the company has not been able to start any joint venture as intended nor has 
the company been able to recover the advanced amount. (Refer to Note No. 3.6 to 
Financial Statements for Loans given.) 

2. We draw attention to the users of Standalone financial statement, that the company 
has accepted advance of Rs. 1.21 crores from one private limited company in the 
financial year 2017-18 for starting a joint venture. Till date, the company has not 
been able to start any joint venture as intended nor has the company paid back the 
advanced amount. (Refer to Note No. 3.18 to Financial Statements for Loans received.) 

3. We draw attention to the users of Standalone financial statement, that the Company 
is partner in five partnership firms having main object of real estate development. 
The company has also invested in its subsidiary firm having main object of dealing 
in oxygen gases. The capital contribution of the company as at the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 is Rs.133.35 Crores in above firms which constitutes 81.82% of the 
total assets of the company. Further attention is drawn to the fact that out of total 
capital contribution of Rs.119.31 crores during the year to one of the firm have been 
utilized by the firm for granting loans of Rs.118.35 Crores to other body corporates 
and partnership firms in which the directors are substantially interested. Due to the 
materiality of above assets in context of the standalone financial statement where 
recoverability risk could have significant impact of the financial position of the 
company. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters. 

Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report. 
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Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 
1. Evaluation of uncertain tax positions 

The Company has material uncertain 
tax positions including matters under 
dispute which involves significant 
judgment to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Principal Audit Procedures: 
 Obtained details of completed tax 

assessments and demands till the year 
ended March 31, 2024 from 
management. 

 Obtained understanding of key 
uncertain tax positions. 

 Discussed with appropriate senior 
management and evaluated 
management’s underlying key 
assumptions in estimating the tax 
provisions. 

 Assessed management’s estimates of 
the possible outcome of the disputed 
cases. 

 Assessed relevant disclosures made 
within the financial statements to 
address whether they appropriately 
reflect the face and circumstances of 
each disputed case and requirement of 
relevant accounting standard for 
disclosure and reporting. 

 
Other Matters 
 
During the year, the Punjab National Bank has sanctioned Overdraft facility (Working capital 
sub-limits) of Rs. 25 Crores. The Company has utilized part of the said OD for repayment of 
unsecured loans from Directors & Related parties. Outstanding balance of overdraft facility as 
on 31.03.2024 was Rs.9.07 Crore. In the absence of specific linking of utilization, we are unable 
to comment on the purpose for which the said loan was taken and utilized. 

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect matters.  
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 
 
The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
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obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 
 
Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planned scope and       
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them   
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure – A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 
 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 
 

i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

ii. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

iii. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the 
standalone cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account; 

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of  the 
Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B" to this report; and 

vii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

• the Company has disclosed impact of pending litigations which could 
materially impact its financial statements - Refer Note 5.10 of the Standalone 
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Financial Statements; 

• the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

• There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

•  Management Representation: 

1. The Management of the Company has represented to us that to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

2. The management of the Company has represented, that, to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

3. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and provided in clauses (a) and 
(b) above contain any material misstatement. 

viii.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

ix. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used 
accounting software for maintaining books of accounts maintained at Bhavnagar 
office and Head office (Mumbai) which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software used for maintaining books of accounts. 

In respect of accounting software where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and 
operated during the financial year, we did not come across any instance of the audit 
trail (edit log) feature being tampered with.   
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x. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

 
 
For L S M & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 
UDIN: 24100529BKFSXM9195 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 30, 2024 
 

For S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 109782W 
 
 
 
 

CA Dhruvin Joshi 
Partner                                            

M. No. 612290 
UDIN: 24612290BJZZQP1452  

 
                                             Place: Ahmedabad 

Date:  May 30, 2024 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on 

the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024, we report that: 
 
i. (a) (A) The   Company   is   maintaining   proper   records   showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital 
work-in-progress and Investment Properties. 

                   (B) The Company is   maintaining   proper   records   showing full particulars of 
intangible assets. 

(b) As explained to us, the management in accordance with a phased programme of 
verification adopted by the company has physically verified the property, plant & equipment, 
capital work-in-progress and investment properties. To the best of our knowledge and 
according to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies have been 
noticed on such verification or have been reported to us. 

(c) According to information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of 
immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3.1 Property, plant and equipment, and Note 3.3 
Investment Property are held in the name of the Company, except in case of following property : 

Description 
of property 

Gross 
carrying 
value (INR 
in Lakhs) 

Held in 
name of 

Whether 
promoter, 
director of 
their 
employee 

Period held 
- indicate 
range, 
where 
appropriate 

Reason for 
not being 
held in 
name of 
company* 

Godown at 
Kalamboli  

29.72 Shantisarup 
Reniwal 

Promoter Since 1998 

 

It is 
informed 

that 
application 
for transfer 
of property 
is in under 

process with 
CIDCO. 
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Flat at 41, 
Persepolis, 
100, Cuffe 
Parade, GD 
Somani 
Road, 
Mumbai-
400005 

247.91 Joint name of 
Rajeev 

Reniwal and 
Sanjeev 
Reniwal 

Promoter Since 1982 It is 
informed 

that 
company is 

in the 
process of 

taking legal 
advice on 

this matter. 

 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 
or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the 
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder. 

ii.  (a)   The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such 
verification by Management is appropriate. However, as regards stock of raw materials, the 
company is mainly engaged in ship breaking activities and old and used ships are its main 
raw materials. Ascertaining actual weight of ship at the time of purchase and thereafter; is 
not possible due to its nature and size, loss of weight on account of corrosion and other 
factors during the usage of the ship and its voyage for long period of the years. Inventory of 
raw materials at the close of the year is ascertained by reducing the weight of the scrap sold 
together with the estimated wastage of the material. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for 
each class of inventory. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate from banks on the 
basis of security of its current assets. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks in materiality 
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the company of the respective 
quarters.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
verification of unaudited books of accounts for the first three quarters of the year, audited 
books of account for the year and quarterly returns submitted to the banks, we are of the 
opinion that there have been variation of more than 10.00% in net current assets as submitted 
to the banks and as per books of account. 
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Sr. 
No

. 

Quarter 
Ended 

Name 
of 

Bank  

Particula
rs of 

current 
assets 

provided 
by way 

of 
security 

Amount as per 
Audited/Unaudit

ed books of 
accounts 

Amount 
as per 

quarterl
y 

statemen
t 

submitte
d to 

bank 

Amount 
and % 

differen
ce as per 
quarterl

y 
statemen

t over 
books of 
accounts 

Reasons for 
material 

differences 

1. September,20
23 

Punjab 
Nation
al Bank 

Inventor
y of Raw 
material 

175.22 260.00 84.78 
(48%) 

According 
to 
information 
and 
explanation
s given to 
us by the 
manageme
nt of the 
company, 
the 
variation 
on account 
of quantity 
of Stock 
reported in 
the stock 
statement 
and as per 
books of 
accounts 
resulting 
from 
pending 
reconciliati
on entries 
of 
consumptio
n, weight 
loss and 
physical 
verification. 

2. March,2024 Punjab 
Nation

Inventor
y of Raw 

175.94 221.61 45.67 Changes in 
value of 
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al Bank Materials  (26%) 

 

inventory 
at the time 
of audit. 

 

iii. The Company has invested in six partnership firms and the company has provided corporate 
guarantee on behalf of company in which director are substantially interested. The aggregate 
amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such 
loans and guarantees to parties are as per the table given below: 

 

Particulars 

Related Parties 
Amount 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Others Amount 
(INR in Lakhs) 

 

Investment made during the year in other partnership firms   

    - Capital introduced during the year 346.50 NIL 

    - Capital withdrawn during the year 277.31 NIL 

Balance outstanding in Investments (net of credit balances) 
as at March 31, 2024 

  

   -   Subsidiary 17.87 NIL 

   - Associates 12,991.70 NIL 

  - Other partnership firm 343.61 NIL 

 Corporate Guarantee    

  -           Hariyana Ship Demolition Private Limited 12,500.00 NIL 

 -            Hariyana International Private Limited 4,500.00 NIL 

 
(b)  In respect of above said Investments and Guarantees, the terms and conditions of 

investment and guarantees prima facie are not prejudicial to the company’s interest, 
based on the information and explanation provided by the management of Company.  

 
(c) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any 

loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms of period of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iii)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the 
extent notified. 
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vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to 
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We 
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination 
of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income 
taxes, goods and services tax, labour welfare fund, duty of customs, cess and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There have been no 
undisputed statutory dues outstanding for more than 6 months as at 31st March, 2024. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub- clause (a) 
as at March 31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as 
follows : 

Name of 
the statue 

Nature of 
dues 

Demand 
raised 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

Amount paid 
against demand 
raised 
(INR in Lakhs)* 

Period to which 
amount relates 
(FY) 

Forum where the 
dispute is 
pending 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income 
Tax 

139.72 0.00 2011-12 
Appeal before 

NFAC 
Income Tax 

Act, 1961 
Income 

Tax 85.52 0.00 
 

2016-17 
 

Appeal before 
NFAC 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income 
Tax 831.45 0.00 2017-18 

Appeal before 
NFAC 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income 
Tax 

98.54 0.00 2013-14 
Appeal before 

NFAC 
* In absence of specific details about demands paid or adjusted they have been taken as NIL. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and so far as appears from our 
examination of books of account and other records as applicable and produced before us by 
the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that 
were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and                 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) The company has not raised any new term loan during the year and hence reporting as 
per clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, 
we report that the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term 
purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not 
raised any money from any person or entity for the account of or to pay the obligations of its 
associates, subsidiaries or joint ventures. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not 
raised any loans during the year by pledging securities held in their subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies. 

x. (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer and through debt 
instruments by way of further public offer during the year. 

(b)  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in 
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under 
Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistle-
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blower complaints during the year. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, 
the reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting 
Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have held discussions with the internal auditors of the company for the year under 
audit and considered their opinion in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedure.  

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act 
under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA   of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities 
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India). Accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. The Company has neither incurred any cash loss in the current financial year nor in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and 
hence reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 is not applicable. 

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios (also refer Note 5.14 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of 
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
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accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under 
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is 
not applicable.  

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements. 

For L S M & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 
UDIN: 24100529BKFSXM9195 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 30, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 109782W 
 
 
 

CA Dhruvin Joshi 
Partner                                            

M. No. 612290 
UDIN: 24612290BJZZQP1452  

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:  May 30, 2024 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
 
 We have audited, the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hariyana 
Ship Breakers Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone    Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India and the Standards on 
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of  the  assets  of  the  
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide  reasonable  
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting (Subject to Para No. iii of Annexure “A” to our Audit Report relating to investments 
made referred to in Section 189 and further as reported in ‘Emphasis of Matter’ and ‘Other 
Matters’ of our report relating to Loans & Advances given, Loans & Advances taken and 
Investment made in the partnership firms) were commensurate with the nature of the business of 
the company and operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of  
 
 
 
 
 
 

120 



        Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 

 

 
 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
For L S M & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 
UDIN: 24100529BKFSXM9195 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 30, 2024 
 

For S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 109782W 
 
 
 

CA Dhruvin Joshi 
Partner                                            

M. No. 612290 
UDIN: 24612290BJZZQP1452  

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:  May 30, 2024 
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant And Equipment 3.1  955.56  908.24
 Capital Work - in - Progress 3.2 -   207.81
 Investment Property 3.3  213.92  221.12
 Other Intangible Assets  3.4  0.10  0.10
 Financial Assets  

    (i) Investments  3.5  13355.31  12379.51
   (ii) Loans 3.6  1319.00  1319.00
   (iii) Other financial assets 3.7  12.77  6.41

 Other Non Current Asset 3.8  131.88  131.92
 15988.55  15174.11

Current Assets
 Inventories  3.9  175.94  8498.89
 Financial Assets  

   (i) Trade Receivable 3.10 -                                             69.92
   (ii) Cash And Cash Equivalents  3.11  84.53  1056.57
   (iii) Other Financial Assets 3.12  0.68  2.63

 Other Current Assets 3.13  73.14  1514.42
 334.28  11142.43

Total Assets  16322.83  26316.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 3.14  616.67  616.67
 Other Equity  3.15  13898.08  13581.32

 14514.75  14197.99
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 
   (i) Borrowings 3.16  11.11  24.92
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 3.17  87.94  94.56
Other Non Current Liabilities 3.18  146.16  134.27

 245.22  253.75
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 
   (i) Borrowings 3.19  1480.24  2285.22
  (ii) Trade Payables 3.20  0.05  9362.28
  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 3.21  8.02  8.35
Other Current Liabilities 3.22  14.16  44.67
Provisions 3.23  0.15  30.18
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 3.24  60.22  134.10

 1562.86  11864.80

Total Equity and Liabilities  16322.83  26316.54

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Director Director
Partner Partner                                            DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXM9195 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQP1452

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Particulars
Note
No.

As at

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 4.1  14863.19  5407.23
Other Income 4.2  1081.96  798.88
Total Income  15945.15  6206.10
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 4.3  8498.89  1941.72
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 4.4  6393.24  3029.73

4.5 (-175.94) -  
4.6  105.92  100.07

Employee benefits expense 4.7  231.29  117.53
Finance costs 4.8  248.42  221.49
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.1, 3.3, 3.4  116.53  80.51
Other Expenses 4.9  131.04  148.28
Total expenses  15549.38  5639.34
Profit before tax  395.77  566.76
Exceptional Items -  -  
Profit before tax  395.77  566.76
Tax Expenses :
Current Tax  77.74  143.07
Taxes of Earlier Years -   6.42
Deferred Tax (-4.63) (-1.08)
Profit for the year  322.66  418.34
Other comprehensive income
  Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss :
          - Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (-7.88) (-1.38)
          - Tax (charge)/ credit on above  1.98  0.35

(-5.90) (-1.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year  316.76  417.31

          Basic 5.23                                6.78                                
          Diluted 5.23                                6.78                                
        (Refer Note 5.3)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Director Director

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Partner Partner                                            
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXM9195 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQP1452

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

5.1

Total other comprehensive income

Earning per equity share [face value Rs.10/- each]

Particulars
Note
No.

For the year ended

Changes in the inventories of Finished Goods, Stock In Trade and Work - In 
Progress
Manufacturing Expenses
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Standalone statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  395.77  566.76
   Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense  116.53  80.51
Finance cost  248.42  221.49
Interest income (-824.13) (-768.05)
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (-7.88) (-1.38)
Provision for doubtful debts -   0.07
Provision for Expected Credit Loss Reversed (-0.07) (-0.46)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Asset (-5.07)  0.09
Subsidy Received From Green Plot (-19.13) -                                         
(Profit)/ Loss from partnership firms (-147.01) (-7.19)

Operating profit before working capital changes (-242.57)  91.85
   Adjustments for working capital changes:

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables  1513.26 (-1427.65)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  8322.95 (-7775.48)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade and other payables (-9411.19)  4521.49

Cash generated/ (used) in operations  182.45 (-4589.79)
    Direct taxes paid (-166.92) (-247.95)
Net Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities [A]  15.53 (-4837.74)

Cash Flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances) (-2.38) (-0.12)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  77.73  4.00
(Purchase) / Proceeds of non - current investments (Net) (-975.80) (-720.93)
Changes in Other Financial Assets (-6.35)  11.60
(Profit)/ Loss from partnership firms  147.01  7.19
Share of Taxes from partnership firms -  -  
Interest received  824.13  768.05

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities [B]  64.34  69.78

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non current borrowings, net (-13.81) (-16.19)
Proceeds from current borrowings, net (-762.09)  1005.67
Finance cost (-233.12) (-221.49)

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities [C] (-1009.02)  767.98

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [A+B+C] (-929.15) (-3999.97)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  106.27  4106.24
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year (-822.88)  106.27
Notes :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 84.53  1056.57

(-907.40) (-950.29)
(-822.88)  106.27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Director Director

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Partner Partner                                            
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXM9195 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQP1452 Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Balances as per the statement of cash flow

1.The above cashflow statement has been prepared under the 'indirect method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Statement of
Cash Flows".

2. Figures of previous year have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to make them comparable. 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars
Year Ended

1. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement :

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3.11)
Bank Overdrafts (Note 3.19)
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A) Equity Share Capital (Amount in Lacs)

Balance as at April 1, 2022  616.67
Changes in Equity share capital during the year -  
Balance as at March 31, 2023  616.67

Balance as at April 1, 2023  616.67
Changes in Equity share capital during the year -  
Balance as at March 31, 2024  616.67

B) Other Equity

 Securities 
Premium 

Capital Reserves
General 

Reserves

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserves
 Retained Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Balance as at April 1, 2022  140.38  893.61  374.25  500.00  11255.76 -                            13164.01
Additions during the year:

Profit for the year -                       -                       -                       -                        418.34 -                            418.34
Less : Share of taxes from partnership firm -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           

   Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           (-1.03) (-1.03)

Balance as at March 31, 2023  140.38  893.61  374.25  500.00  11674.11 (-1.03)  13581.32

Balance as at April 1, 2023  140.38  893.61  374.25  500.00  11674.11 (-1.03)  13581.32
Additions during the year:
Profit for the year -                       -                       -                       -                        322.66 -                            322.66
Less : Share of taxes from partnership firm -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-

Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           (-5.90) (-5.90)
Balance as at March 31, 2024  140.38  893.61  374.25  500.00  11996.76 (-6.93)  13898.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Director Director

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Partner Partner                                            
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXM9195 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQP1452

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Particulars  Total 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars  Amount 

Reserve and Surplus
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

125 



  Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 
 
 
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Note 1: Company information 
 
Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company has its primary listing on BSE 
Limited. During the year, the Company was engaged in the ship breaking business and 
trading activities in HR Coils. However, as and when any surplus fund are available, the same 
is given on interest to other parties and also invested in the shares and securities to earn short 
term and long term capital gains. 
 
The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors on May 30, 2024. 
 
Note 2: Significant accounting policies 
 
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated. 
 
Basis of preparation and presentation: 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time 
and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the 
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS.  
 
a) Use of estimates and judgments 
In the preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgments in the application 
of accounting policies; and estimates and assumptions which affects the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. 
 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty 
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes: 
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i) Note 3.1 - Property, plant and equipment - useful life and impairment 
ii) Note 5.1 - Recoverability/recognition of deferred tax assets 
iii) Note 5.2 - Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits 
iv) Note 5.10 - Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 
b) Current / Non-Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-
current classification. 
 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for 
e) at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
f) All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 
A liability is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

c) Property, Plant and Equipment 
All the items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, or deemed cost applied on 
transition to Ind AS, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign 
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the 
assets. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. All other 
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure 
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period 
during which such expenses are incurred. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment and having different useful life are accounted separately. Depreciation 
on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful 
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lives of the assets estimated by the management. Depreciation is provided based on useful life 
of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Useful lives and residual 
values of assets are reviewed periodically. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or 
losses arising from derecognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 
 
d) Intangible Assets 
Software and Website costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is 
probable that associated future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case 
they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. All other costs on patents, trademarks and software are expensed 
in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. 

e) Investment Property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are 
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16’s requirements for cost 
model. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected 
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included 
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized. 

f) Impairment 
At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying 
value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of 
impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent 
from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 
to which the asset belongs.  
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
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An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying 
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash 
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the 
increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. 
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately. 

g) Leases 
The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the  
fulfillment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the 
transaction conveys the right to control the use of that asset to the Company in return for 
payment. 
 
As a lessee 
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that 
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is 
classified as a finance lease. The Company does not have any arrangement during or at the 
reporting period that can be classified as finance lease. Operating lease payments are 
recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term except in the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect in which case, 
lease expense is accounted by actual rent for the period. 
 
As a lessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

h) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short-term deposits and 
short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

i) Provisions & Contingent Liabilities 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
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is used the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of 
amount cannot be made. 

j) Inventories 
Inventories of Raw Materials (Ships) are stated at Cost. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. 
 
Costs are determined on FIFO basis. 
In ship recycling units, the weight of the ship purchased is accounted in terms of LDT/MT of 
the ship at the time of its construction. Ascertaining of weight of ship at the time of purchase 
is not possible due to its nature and size. There is loss of weight on account of corrosion and 
other factors during the usage of the ship and its voyage for long period of the years. Inventory 
at the close of the year is ascertained by reducing the weight of the scrap sold together with 
the estimated wastage of the material. 
 
Consumable stores and spares are written off at the time of purchase itself. 

k) Employee Benefit Expense 
 
• Defined contribution plans 
Contributions under defined contribution plans are recognised as expense for the period in 
which the employee has rendered service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already 
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before 
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment 
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 
 
• Defined benefit plans 
For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each year-end 
balance sheet date. Remeasurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised as an expense within employee costs. 
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Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs 
or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is 
earlier. 
 
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value 
of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Compensated 
absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related service are recognized based on actuarial valuation 
at the present value of the obligation as on the reporting date. 

i) Taxes 
The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. 
 
Current Tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the 
carrying value of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet 
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be 
utilised. The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits 
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the 
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of 
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle 
the carrying value of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the 
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and 
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction. 
 
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. 
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m) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost 
applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an 
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an 
impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to its recoverable amount. On 
disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying 
amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

n) Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
 
Financial Assets 
• Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and associate, are recognised initially at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asset , 
which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 
recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting. 
 
• Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are primarily classified in three 
categories: 
 
a) Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost 
A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms 
of the Financial Asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
b) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the 
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
represents solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
c) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 
Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its 
business model for managing those financial assets. Changes in business model are made and 
applied prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately next 
reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid 
down under Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments. 
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• Other Equity Investments 
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on such equity investments are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established. 
However, investment in partnership firms are carried at cost/ deemed cost applied on 
transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
 
• Impairment of Financial Assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit and Loss (FVTPL). 
 
Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 
• The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default 
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); 
or 
• Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the life of the financial instrument). 
 
For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses 
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At 
every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward 
looking estimates are analysed. For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide 
for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant 
increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 

Financial Liabilities 
• Initial recognition and measurement 
All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly 
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as finance cost. 
 
• Subsequent measurement 
Financial Liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
The Company derecognises a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for 
derecognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability (or a part of a Financial liability) is 
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derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
 
Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the 
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

o) Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive 
at fair value measurements as described below: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
Level 3: Inputs based on unobservable market data. 
 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
Further details are set out in Note 5.7. 

p) Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected 
on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its 
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 
 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognised. 
 
Sale of products 
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the products have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the products. 
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Revenue from the sale of products is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
 
Interest income 
Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method. 
 
Dividend Income 
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been 
established. 

q) Finance Costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily 
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. 
 
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the period for which they are incurred. 

r) Foreign Currencies Transactions 
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (“₹”), which is the 
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial 
statements. In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the 
Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date 
of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. In the case of forward contract, if any, difference between the 
forward rate and the exchange rate on the transaction date is recognized as income or 
expenses over the lives of the related contracts. The differential gain/loss is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

s) Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity holders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly 
paid up shares are included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up. 
 
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares and 
dilutive potential shares except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 
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❖Key Accounting Estimates & Judgements 
 
1.  Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting 
period. The policy has been detailed in Note 2(i) and its further information are set out in Note 
5.1. 
 
2. Defined benefit plan 
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present 
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates 
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
The parameter that is subject to change the most is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds 
in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and 
extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the 
defined benefit obligation. 
 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend 
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are 
after considering the expected future inflation rates for the country. Refer to Note 5.2 for 
further details. 
 
3. Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation 
and amortisation expense in future periods. The policy has been detailed in Note 2(C) above. 
 
4. Recoverability of Trade Receivables 
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and 
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Estimated 
irrecoverable amounts are derived based on a provision matrix, which takes into accounts 
various factors such as customer specific risks, geographical region, product type, customer 
rating, type of customer, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any 
possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Amount in Lacs)
Note No:- 3.1

A S S E T S Factory Land Building Premises Godown
Green Plot 

Developement 
(Alang)

Flat - Madhav Hill Factory Building Plant & Machineries
Crane & Commercial 

Vehicles
Office Equipments Oxygen Tank Mobiles Furniture Computer Vehilcles Electric Fittings

Leasehold 
Improvements

Total

 Gross carrying amount 
 As at April 1, 2022  258.14  3.10  13.57  36.78  12.65  194.09  358.88  306.68  41.33  21.01  3.44  23.89  14.93  208.84 -  -   1497.34
 Additions -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   0.12 -  -  -  -  -  -  -   0.12
 Disposal -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   13.39 -  -   13.39
 As at March 31, 2023  258.14  3.10  13.57  36.78  12.65  194.09  358.88  306.68  41.46  21.01  3.44  23.89  14.93  195.45 -  -   1484.07
 As at April 1, 2023  258.14  3.10  13.57  36.78  12.65  194.09  358.88  306.68  41.46  21.01  3.44  23.89  14.93  195.45 -  -   1484.07
 Additions -  -  -  -  -  -   1.38 -   16.53 -   0.84  53.69 -  -   6.92  130.83  210.18
 Disposal -   36.78 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   62.43 -   99.20
 As at March 31, 2024  258.14  3.10  13.57 -   12.65  194.09  360.26  306.68  57.99  21.01  4.28  77.58  14.93  133.03  6.92  130.83  1595.05
 Accumulated depreciation 
 As at April 1, 2022 -   1.13  9.97  4.45 -   88.72  116.27  165.73  13.10  7.75  2.76  15.86  13.82  72.24 -  -   511.79
 Depreciation for the year  0.10  0.75  1.17 -   5.94  21.15  15.40  1.70  1.33  0.26  0.84  0.54  24.16 -  -   73.34
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   9.30 -  -   9.30
 As at March 31, 2023 -   1.22  10.72  5.61 -   94.66  137.43  181.13  14.80  9.08  3.02  16.70  14.36  87.10 -  -   575.83
 As at April 1, 2023 -   1.22  10.72  5.61 -   94.66  137.43  181.13  14.80  9.08  3.02  16.70  14.36  87.10 -  -   575.83
 Depreciation for the year  0.10  0.75  0.29 -   5.96  19.37  8.80  2.46  1.33  0.30  5.94  0.32  19.96  2.20  41.54  109.33
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -  -  -   5.90 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   39.77 -  -   45.67
 As at March 31, 2024 -   1.32  11.47 -  -   100.62  156.80  189.93  17.26  10.41  3.32  22.64  14.68  67.30  2.20  41.54  639.49
 Net Carrying Amounts
 As at March 31, 2023  258.14  1.87  2.85  31.16  12.65  99.43  221.46  125.55  26.66  11.93  0.43  7.20  0.57  108.35 -  -   908.24
 As at March 31, 2024  258.14  1.77  2.10 -   12.65  93.47  203.46  116.75  40.73  10.60  0.96  54.94  0.25  65.73  4.72  89.28  955.56

Notes : 25.13                          32.33                           

1. Green Plot Development at Alang Ship Breaking Yard valued at Rs. 31.16 Lakhs was on a leasehold land plot as on 31.03.2023.

 Property Plant and Equipment

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
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CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (Amount in Lacs)

Particulars
 Building Premises 

(Aashiana) 

Gross carrying amount
 As at April 1, 2022  207.81
Additions -  
Deductions (Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipments) -  
 As at March 31, 2023  207.81
 As at April 1, 2023  207.81
Additions -  
Deductions (Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipments) (-207.81)
 As at March 31, 2024 -  
Net carrying amount
 As at March 31, 2023  207.81
 As at March 31, 2024 -  

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Amount in Lacs)
 Premises (Other 

than Factory)
 Warehouse 
(Leasehold) 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount
 As at April 1, 2022  247.91  29.72  277.64
Additions -  -  -  
Inter Transfers -  -  -  
Recoupment / Adjustment -  -  -  
Deductions -  -  -  
 As at March 31, 2023  247.91  29.72  277.64
 As at April 1, 2023  247.91  29.72  277.64
Additions -  -  -  
Inter Transfers -  -  -  
Recoupment / Adjustment -  -  -  
Deductions -  -  -  
 As at March 31, 2024  247.91  29.72  277.64
Accumulated depreciation
 As at April 1, 2022  44.75  4.59  49.34
Depreciation for the year  6.41  0.76  7.18
Inter Transfers -  -  -  
Impairment for the year -  -  -  
Deductions -  -  -  
 As at March 31, 2023  51.16  5.35  56.52
 As at April 1, 2023  51.16  5.35  56.52
Depreciation for the year  6.43  0.77  7.20
Inter Transfers -  -  -  
Impairment for the year -  -  -  
Deductions -  -  -  
 As at March 31, 2024  57.59  6.12  63.71
Net carrying amount
 As at March 31, 2023  196.75  24.37  221.12
 As at March 31, 2024  190.32  23.60  213.92
Notes :
3. Title of Godown situated at 1929, Iron & Steel Market Yard, Kalamboli, Dist: Raigad and valued at Rs. 24.37
  Lakhs is in the name of director of the company.
(a) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 26.65  10.84

 3.91  1.21
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income  2.52  1.04

Profit arising from investment property before depreciation and indirect expenses  20.22  8.59
Less : Depreciation  7.20  7.18

Profit arising from investment property before indirect expenses  13.02  1.41

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note 3.2 

Note 3.3 

Particulars

Particulars
Year ended

Rental income derived from Investment Property
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to construct or develop investment
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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(b) Fair value of the Investment property are as under:

Fair value
 Premises (Other 

than Factory)
 Warehouse 
(Leasehold) 

 Total 

 As at April 1, 2022  203.14  25.13  228.28
Changes in fair value (-6.41) (-0.76) (-7.18)
Purchases -  

 As at March 31, 2023  196.73  24.37  221.10
Changes in fair value (-6.43) (-0.77) (-7.20)
Purchases -                          -                          -                             

 As at March 31, 2024  190.30  23.60  213.90

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)
Particulars Website
 Gross carrying amount 
 As at April 1, 2022  1.08
 Additions -  
 Disposal -  
 As at March 31, 2023  1.08
 As at April 1, 2023  1.08
 Additions -  
 Disposal -  
 As at March 31, 2024  1.08
 Accumulated depreciation 
 As at April 1, 2022  0.98
 Depreciation for the year -  
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -  
 As at March 31, 2023  0.98
 As at April 1, 2023  0.98
 Depreciation for the year -  
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -  
 As at March 31, 2024  0.98
Net Carrying Amounts
 As at March 31, 2023  0.10
 As at March 31, 2024  0.10

INVESTMENTS NON - CURRENT (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Investment at Cost

  - In Subsidiary Share in Profit/ (Loss)

Hariyana Air Producsts 95.00%  17.87  18.53

  - In Associates
Fixed Capital
Goyal Hariyana Realty 50.00%  0.50  0.50
Current Capital
Whitefield Projects 40.00%  4.20  4.20
Swastik Developers 33.33%  896.35  874.86
Goyal Hariyana Realty 50.00%  12092.78  11481.17

  - In Partnership Firm
Fixed Capital
Shree Balaji Associates 5.00%  0.25  0.25
Current Capital
Shree Balaji Associates 5.00%  343.36 -  

.
  - In Equity Shares (Unquoted)

   -  The Cuffe Persepolis premises of Co-Operative Ltd.  0.00  0.00
       1 (PY 1.00) share of Rs.10/- each paid up

(B) Investment at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):
  - Investment in Shares (Quoted)  0.01  0.00

Inducto Steel Ltd
10 (PY 10) share of Rs. 10/- each paid up

Total  13355.31  12379.51

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note 3.4 

Note No:- 3.5

Particulars
As at
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Notes: 
a) There are no sales or purchases of long term investments during the year. 

d) Aggregate amount of quoted investments
         (i) Market value of quoted investments  0.01  0.00

e) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
        (ii) Investments carried at cost  13355.31  12379.51

NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loans & Advances -  
  - Advance against proposed business venture  1319.00  1319.00

Total  1319.00  1319.00

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a)  7.77  1.41
d) FDRs  (having maturity of more than 12 months)  5.00  5.00

Total  12.77  6.41

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Advances receivable in cash or kind  37.05  37.05
b) Withholding Taxes and Balance with Revenue Authorities  94.84  94.87

Total  131.88  131.92

Notes : 

INVENTORIES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(As verified, valued and certified by management)

a) Raw Materials -   8498.89
 - Uncut Ship

b) Stock - in - Trade  175.94 -  
Total  175.94  8498.89

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured -   69.99
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -   0.07

Total -   69.92

Notes: 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars
As at

(Unsecured, considered good)

Note No:- 3.10

Particulars
As at

In determining allowance for doubtful debts, the Company has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based
on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on ageing of the receivables and rates used in the provision matrix.

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

(i) Witholding taxes and Balance with Revenue Authorities primarily consist pre-paid taxes and amounts paid under protest in respect of demands
and claims from various revenue authorities of India.

(ii) Advance receivable in cash or kind primarily include fees paid under protest to Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) in respect of demand raised by
GMB.

Note No:- 3.9

Particulars
As at

Particulars
As at

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Security Deposits

Note No:- 3.8

Particulars
As at

b) The company has resigned from the Partnership with White Mountain w.e.f.29.06.2020. Deed of Retirement to the effect is executed among the
partners and share of profit/(Loss) till the date of retirement of partnership is credited to Partners Current Account. The Company has received
entire balance reflecting in Capital Account along with interest as applicable.
c) As per the Partnership Deed executed in case of Shree Balaji Associates, no interest is payable/Receivable from partners on outstanding Capital
balances.

Note No:- 3.7

Note No:- 3.6
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(i) Movement in allowance for doubtful trade receivables are as below :

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year  0.07  0.46
Movement during the year (-0.07) (-0.39)
Less : Write off of bad debts -  -  

Balance at the end of the year -   0.07

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash in Hand (As verified and certified by management)  12.46  13.22
Balances with scheduled banks

- In current accounts  11.48  16.32
- In deposit accounts  60.59  1027.03

Total  84.53  1056.57

Notes :
The details of balances as on balance sheet dates with banks are as follows:
In current account
  - Punjab National Bank (Mumbai) CC 1040  0.02  1.17
  - Punjab National Bank CC-2793  0.18  0.69
  -  Punjab National Bank (CA)  11.08  14.08
  -  Punjab National Bank OD **  0.20  0.37
In term deposit account
  - FD-Punjab National Bank  60.59  1027.03

Total  72.07  1043.34
2. Details of Security:

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or kind  0.68  0.88
Security Deposits -   1.75

Total  0.68  2.63

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)

a) Prepaid Expenses  4.75  3.60
b) GST Balances  32.49  1505.17
c) Advance to Suppliers  0.24  1.10
d) Advance to Staff  7.55  4.55
e) Other Receivables  28.11 -  

Total  73.14  1514.42

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 3.12

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.13

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.11

Particulars
As at

Particulars
As at

a. Cash Credit facility from Punjab National Bank CC-1040 is secured by way of hypothecation of Stocks & book debts of the company as primary 
security and equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company & associated concern as collateral security.

b. Bank overdraft facility from Punjab National Bank OD-376097 is secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company & 
associated concern as collateral security & personal guarantee of the associated concern & relatives of the key management personnels.
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each  650.00  650.00
 500.00  500.00

 616.67  616.67
Total  616.67  616.67

Notes :
a)

Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year  61.67  616.67  61.67  616.67
Add: Shares issued during the year -  -  -  -  
Less: Shares bought back during the year -  -  -  -  
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  61.67  616.67  61.67  616.67

b)

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding 
(in Lacs) (in Lacs)

1 Rakesh Reniwal  8.58 13.92%  8.58 13.92%
2 Lalitadevi Reniwal  4.15 6.73%  4.15 6.73%
3 Sanjeev Reniwal  4.38 7.11%  4.38 7.11%
4 Shantisarup Reniwal HUF  6.25 10.14%  6.25 10.14%
5 Rajeev Reniwal  15.39 24.96%  15.39 24.96%
6 Unnati Reniwal  4.00 6.49%  4.00 6.49%

c) Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024:

No. of Shares % of total shares
% Change during 

the year

(in Lacs)
Sweety R. Reniwal  0.51 0.83% 0.00
Shalini S. Reniwal  1.23 2.00% 0.00
Unnati Reniwal  4.00 6.49% 0.00
Shantisarup Reniwal  1.72 2.79% 0.00
Lalitadevi S Reniwal  4.15 6.73% 0.00
Sanjeev S. Reniwal  4.38 7.11% 0.00
Shantisarup Reniwal & Sons .  6.25 10.14% 0.00
Rakesh Shantisarup Reniwal  8.58 13.92% 0.00
Rajeev Shantisarup Reniwal  15.39 24.96% 0.00

d) Terms/rights attached to equity shares :
  -

  -
  -
  -

OTHER EQUITY (Amount in Lacs)
 Note 
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Securities Premium I  140.38  140.38
b) Capital Reserves II  893.61  893.61
c) General Reserves III  374.25  374.25
d) Capital Redemption Reserves IV  500.00  500.00
e) Retained Earnings V  11996.76  11674.11
f) Other Comprehensive Income VI (-6.93) (-1.03)

Total  13898.08  13581.32

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for additions / deletions in each reserve.

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Preference shareholder do not have any voting right. They are entitled to dividend @ 4% before equity shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

Note No:- 3.15

Particulars
As at

Name of Shareholders
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Promoter Name

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each fully paid up

 The reconciliation of the number of outstanding shares is set out below :

Particulars
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares is set out below:

Note No:- 3.14

Particulars
As at

AUTHORISED CAPITAL:

4% Redeemable Preference Share Of Rs. 10/- Each

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholder was NIL per share 
(PY Rs.NIL/-)

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Notes :

NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured Loan

 -  From Banks

        ICICI Bank Limited -LAMUM00042852086  24.65  38.41
        Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings  13.54  13.49

Total  11.11  24.92

Details of Security:
a) The  ICICI Bank Ltd Car Loan A/c no.LAMUM00042852086 was taken during the year and  carries an interest rate of 7.80%  
     per annum. The loan is  repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Rs.1,35,178/- each.

b) The loan is secured by hypothecation of asset financed.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Deferred tax liabilities  90.09  95.71
b) Deferred tax (assets) (-2.15) (-1.16)

Total  87.94  94.56

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Payables
Security Deposit From Tenants  6.30  6.30
Provision for Gratuity  18.53  6.64

  Advance against Proposed JV  121.33  121.33
Total  146.16  134.27

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured

Working Capital Loan from banks
a) Punjab National Bank OD-376097  907.40  950.29

Unsecured
Loans From Directors & Related Parties  559.30  1246.44
Loans From Others -   75.00

  Current maturity of long term borrowings  13.54  13.49
Total  1480.24  2285.22

Notes:
3. Details of Security:

a. Cash Credit facility from Punjab National Bank is secured by way of hypothecationof Stocks & book debts of the company as 
 primary security and equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company & associated concern as collateral security.

    

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 3.19

Particulars
As at

b. Bank overdraft facility from Punjab National Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company &
associated concern as collateral security & personal guarantee of the associated concern & relatives of the key management personnels.

Note 3.17

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.18

Particulars
As at

Particulars
As at

I. Securities premium reserve represents premium received on equity shares issued, which can be utilised only in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) for specified purposes.

II.  Capital reserve represents reserve created pursuant to the business combinations.
III. General reserve is created from time to time by transferring profits from retained earnings and can be utilised for purposes such as dividend
payout, bonus issue, etc.

IV. Capital redemption reserves represents created out of buyback or redemption of its own equity/preference shares, from its retained earnings.
The amount in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the shares bought back.

V. Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions
paid to the shareholders.

Note No:- 3.16
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CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 Trade Payables
   -     For Goods -   9360.59
   -     For Other Supplies  0.05  1.68

Total  0.05  9362.28

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)   Expenses Payable  8.02  6.69
b)   Brokerage Payable -   1.66

Total  8.02  8.35

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)   Capital Overdrawn from Partnership Firms  2.13  5.21
b)   Statutory dues payable  2.61  6.53
c)   Margin money of customer -  -  
d)   Advance from Customers  9.42  32.92
e)   Other Payables to Partnership Firms -  -  

Total  14.16  44.67

PROVISIONS (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Employee Benefits

Salary & Incentives -   26.12
Contribution to Provident Funds  0.09  3.01
ESIC Payable  0.06  1.05

Total  0.15  30.18

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Provision of Income Tax  77.74  143.07
Less: TDS & TCS Receivable (-17.52) (-8.97)

Total  60.22  134.10

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 3.24

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.23

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.22

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.21

Particulars
As at

Note No:- 3.20

Particulars
As at
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Sale of products

    - Manufactured  8423.33  2280.22
    - Traded -   687.68
    - High Seas Sales  6439.87  2439.32

 14863.19  5407.23

OTHER INCOME  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)  Interest Income

i. From Banks  61.14  45.41
ii. From Others (Partnership Firm)  762.67  722.32
iii. FDR  0.31  0.31

b) Income from Investments
i. Share of Profit from Partnership Firm  147.18  8.86

c) Other Income :
i. Rent & Compensation  26.65  10.84

ii.  0.00 -  
iii. Foreign Exchange Gain (net)  54.56 -  
iv. Other Income -   0.25
v. Advances W/back no longer payable -   10.42
vi. Provision for Expected Credit Loss Reversed  0.07  0.46
vii. Subsidy Received from Green Plot  19.13 -  
viii. Sudry Balances Written Off  5.18 -  
ix. Profit on sale of motor vehicle  5.07 -  

 1081.96  798.88

COST OF CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory at the Beginning of the Year  8498.89  723.41
Add: Ship Purchase for Recycling -   9717.21

 8498.89  10440.61
Less: Inventory at the end of the Year -   8498.89
Cost of Consumption of Raw Materials  8498.89  1941.72

PURCHASE OF STOCK - IN – TRADE  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Purchases  6393.24  3029.73

 6393.24  3029.73

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Inventory at the Beginning of the Year -  -  
Less : Inventory at the End of the Year  175.94 -  

(-175.94) -  

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gases & Carbide  61.34  16.24
Consumable Expenses  5.65  7.28
Plot Rent & Development Charges  32.77  71.23
Repair & Maintenance  0.40  0.38
Power & Fuel Expenses  3.70  3.10
Pollution Control Expenses  0.23  1.36
Other Manufacturing Expenses  1.84  0.49

 105.92  100.07

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 4.4

Particulars

Note No:- 4.5

Particulars

Note No:- 4.6

Particulars

Particulars

Note No:- 4.1

Particulars

Note No:- 4.2

Particulars

Note No:- 4.3

MTM Gain on Fair value of Mutual Fund/ Quoted Equity Shares (FVTPL)
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries & Wages  151.12  75.71
Salary to Directors  54.00  30.00
Bonus Expenses  9.26  4.23
Contribution to Provident Funds  7.33  2.68
Contribution to ESIC  3.92  1.55
Staff Welfare Expenses  0.54  1.01
Gratuity Expenses  5.13  2.36

 231.29  117.53

FINANCE COSTS  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Bank Charges

   Bank Commission & Charges  38.40  0.73
   LC Charges  13.37  69.93
   Bank Processing Charges  59.06  23.70

b) Interest Expenses
    Others  54.09  74.16
    Borrowing from Bank  67.96  48.87
    Late payment of Statutory Dues  0.23  1.93
    Shortfall in payment  of advance Income Tax  15.30 -  
    Reversal of Interest of Staff Loan -   2.17

 248.42  221.49

OTHER EXPENSES  (Amount in Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advertisements  1.20  1.38
Computer Charges  0.39  0.22
Donation/ CSR Expense  17.00  1.05
Electricity Charges  1.12  2.68
Fees & Subscription  0.53  0.59
Foreign Exchange Variation -   26.12
Filing Fees  0.47  0.12
General Office Expenses  2.52  3.65
GST Expense  0.74  1.83
Insurance Expanses  2.42  2.52
Legal & Professional Expenses  26.41  41.15
Listing Fees  4.01  3.60
Loss on sale of assets -   0.09
Payment to Auditors  6.24  5.50
Postage & Courier  0.17  0.11
Printing & Stationery  0.35  0.14
Professional Tax  0.05  0.02
Rent, Rates & Taxes  31.14  18.23
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses  4.57  8.35
Security Charges  4.69  1.78
Telephone & Internet Expenses  1.03  1.24
Travelling Expenses  12.30  14.75
Vehicle Running & Maintenance  2.77  4.62
Loss From Partnership Firms  0.16  1.67
Brokerage & Commission Expenses  10.74  6.80
Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes of Investments classified as FVTPL -   0.00
Provision for Expected Credit Loss -   0.07

 131.04  148.28

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 4.8

Particulars

Note No:- 4.9

Particulars

Note No:- 4.7

Particulars
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INCOME TAX (Amount in Lacs)
The major component of Income Tax Expense for the year ended on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

 Year ended
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended
March 31, 2023 

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax

Current income tax  77.74  143.07
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -                                     6.42

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (-4.63) (-1.08)

 73.11  148.42
Other comprehensive income

Deferred tax on
   - Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (-1.98) (-0.35)

(-1.98) (-0.35)

Income tax expense as per the statement of profit and loss  71.13  148.07

2)
 Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 Year ended

March 31, 2023 
Profit before tax  395.77  566.76
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable  99.61  142.64
Adjustments for:
Expenses not allowed as deduction  8.58  0.97
Income being taxed at lower rate (-1.86) (-0.78)
Exempt Income (-43.09) (-1.81)
Provision for Gratuity and Doubtful Debts  0.99  0.49
Capital Gains  2.47 -                                     
Difference of Depreciation  11.05  1.55
Tax expense / (benefit)  77.74  143.07
Effective Tax Rate 19.64% 25.24%

3) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
(i)  For the year ended on March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

April 1, 2023

Credit/(charge) in the 
Statement of Profit and 

Loss

Credit/(charge) in 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

As at
March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
Property, Plant and Equipment  95.51 (-5.62) -                                     89.89
Fair Value of financial instrument  0.20 (-0.00) -                                     0.20
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (-0.77) (-0.02) -                                    (-0.79)
Retirement Benefit Plans (-0.39)  1.01 (-1.98) (-1.36)

 94.56 (-4.63) (-1.98)  87.94

(ii)  For the year ended on March 31, 2023

Particulars
As at

April 1, 2022

Credit/(charge) in the 
Statement of Profit and 

Loss

Credit/(charge) in 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
Property, Plant and Equipment  97.09 (-1.57)  95.51
Fair Value of financial instruments  0.20  0.20
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (-0.67) (-0.10) (-0.77)
Retirement Benefit Plans (-0.63)  0.59 (-0.35) (-0.39)

 95.98 (-1.08) (-0.35)  94.56

4) Current tax assets and liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024
As at

March 31, 2023
Current tax assets -  -  
Current tax liabilities  60.22  134.10

Particulars

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 5.1

Particulars

The Company is subject to income tax in India on the basis of its standalone financial statements. The Company can claim tax
exemptions/deductions under specific sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961 subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions, as may be applicable.
For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has planned to opt out for the new tax regime under Section 115BAA of the Act, which provides
a domestic company with an option to pay tax at a rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%). The lower rate shall be applicable subject to certain
conditions, including that the total income should be computed without claiming specific deduction or exemptions.

Business loss can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year to which the
loss pertains. Unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

Reconciliation of effective tax
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Note No:- 5.2 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Amount in Lacs)
A. Defined contribution plans:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provident fund  7.33  2.68
ESIC  3.92  1.55

 11.25  4.23

B. Defined benefit plans:
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity

1. The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.50%
Expected rate of salary increase
Attrition rate Up to 30 Years - 3% Up to 30 Years - 3%

31-44 Years - 2%  31-44 Years - 2% 
Above 44 Years - 1% Above 44 Years - 1%

Mortality rate during employment (% of IALM 12-14) 100% 100%

2. Movements in present value of obligation and plan assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation  6.64  2.91
Current service cost  4.63  2.15
Interest cost  0.50  0.21
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions  0.57 (-0.17)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments  7.31  1.55
Gratuity Paid (-1.11) -                                       
Closing defined benefit obligation  18.53  6.64

 3. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefitplans are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
         -  Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions  0.57 (-0.17)
         -  Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments  7.31  1.55
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income  7.88  1.38

4. Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined benefit obligation (Base)  18.53  6.64

Discount Rate 1% increase  16.70  6.00
1% decrease  20.66  7.38

Salary Growth Rate 1% increase  19.77  7.38
1% decrease  17.13  6.00

Attrition Rate 1% increase  18.48  6.62
1% decrease  18.58  6.66

Mortality Rate 1% increase  18.55  6.65
1% decrease  18.52  6.63

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at
a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions are made to the provident fund as set up by Government.

Amount of Rs. 11.25 Lakhs (FY 2022-23 : Rs. 4.23 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note 4.7 : Employee benefit expense.

Particulars Year ended

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment in accordance with the scheme of the company. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

Particulars
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars  Year ended 

Particulars Sensitivity level Defined benefit obligation

7.00% 10% for first two years and 7% thereafter

Particulars  Year ended 
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5. The followings are the expected cash flows for the defined benefit obligation (based on undiscounted value) :

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  2.16  0.18
Between 2 and 5 years  1.39  1.92
Beyond 5 years  41.69  15.10

Total expected payments  45.24  17.20

6. Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Weighted average duration 11 Years 13 Years

C. Other Long term employee benefit plans
Company does not have any other Long term employee benefit plans for the aforsaid period.

Note No:- 5.3 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Earning per share
       -   Basic                                   5.23                                  6.78 
       -   Diluted                                   5.23                                  6.78 
Face value per share                                      10                                     10 

Basic & Diluted EPS
 322.66  418.34

 61.67  61.67

Note No:- 5.4 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current & non current borrowings  1491.36  2310.15
Trade and other payables  22.24  9415.30

 84.53  1056.57
Net debt  1598.12  12782.01

Equity share capital  616.67  616.67
Other equity  13898.08  13581.32
Total capital  14514.75  14197.99
Capital and net debt  16112.87  26980.00
Gearing ratio (%) 9.92% 47.38%

Note No:- 5.5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Market Risk

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars Year ended

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
   Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of earnings per share

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

Particulars
 Year ended 

Particulars
 Year ended 

The Board of Directors reviews and approves risk management framework and policies for managing these risks and monitors suitable mitigating actions taken by the
management to minimise potential adverse effects and achieve greater predictability to earnings. In line with the overall risk management framework and policies, the
management monitors and manages risk exposure through an analysis of degree and magnitude of risks. 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, liquidity and other factors that could have an adverse effect on realizable fair values or future cash flows to the
Company. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates as future specific market
changes cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes, within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

Particulars As at

Less: cash and cash equivalent

In course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks that could have significant influence on the Company's business and operational/ financial
performance. These include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

Particulars Change in basis points

March 31, 2024
Rupee borrowings +50

-50
March 31, 2023

Rupee borrowings +50
-50

Foreign currency risk

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Payables -   113.85 -   9360.39

Particulars Change in USD rate
March 31, 2024
Trade Payables 5%

-5%
31-03-2023
Trade Payables 5%

-5%

Credit Risk

Trade receivables

Liquidity Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Company actively manages its currency
rate exposures, arising from transactions entered and denominated in foreign currencies, and uses derivative instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts to
mitigate the risks from such exposures. The company does not use derivative instruments to hedge risk exposure.

Given below is the foreign currency exposure arising from the non derivative financial instruments:

Particulars                                      
Foreign Currency Amount (in USD) Reporting Currency Amount (in INR)

As at As at

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on profit before tax

(-7.33)
 7.33

(-11.36)
 11.36

(-468.02)
 468.02

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and foreign
exchange transactions.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s internal policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on market feedback and credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Effect on profit before tax

-  
-  

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in independent
markets.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 days to 90 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal rating
criteria. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically.

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds through using a liquidity planning process that encompasses an analysis of projected cash inflow and outflow.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility largely through cashflow generation from its operating activities and the use 
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Particulars On demand
Less than 3 

months
3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

As at year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current borrowings  907.40  559.30  1466.70
Non current borrowings  13.54  11.11  24.65
Trade payables  0.05  0.05

March 31, 2023
Current borrowings  950.29  1321.44  2271.73
Non current borrowings -   13.49  24.92  38.41
Trade payables -   9362.28  9362.28

Note No:- 5.6  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following tables present the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023  :

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial Assets
a. Measured at cost:
     Investments

       - Partnership Firms  13355.31  12379.51
       - Equity Shares (Unquoted)  0.00  0.00

b. Measured at amortised cost:
        Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank balances)  84.53  1056.57

     Trade receivables -   69.92
     Loans  1319.00  1319.00
     Others  13.45  9.04

     Investments
     - Equity shares (Quoted)  0.01  0.00

Financial Liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost:
     Borrowings  1491.36  2310.15
     Trade payables  0.05  9362.28
     Other Current Financial Liabilities  8.02  8.35

Note No:- 5.7 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(A) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets :

Quoted prices in active 
markets
(Level 1)

Significant observable 
inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
Total

March 31, 2024
Assets measured at fair value

FVTPL investments
Equity shares - Quoted  0.01 -  -   0.01

Assets disclosed at fair value
Investment properties -  -   213.90  213.90

March 31, 2023
Assets measured at fair value

FVTPL investments
Equity shares - Quoted  0.00 -  -   0.00

Assets disclosed at fair value
Investment properties -  -   221.10  221.10

(B) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities :

  c. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) / other comprehensive 
income (OCI):

Particulars

Fair value measurement using

Company does not have any financial liability which is measured either at Fair value through profit and loss account or measured at Fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The table below summarises the maturity profile remaining contractual maturity period at the balance sheet date for its financial liabilities based on the undiscounted cash
flows.

Particulars As at

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as 
described below. Except for the following, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the standalone 
financial statements approximate their fair values:

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
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Note No:- 5.8 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Note No:- 5.9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, ” Related Party Disclosures”, are given below.

(A) Particulars of related parties and nature of relationships
A. Enterprises commonly controlled or influenced by major shareholders/directors/relative of directors oF the Company.
        1. Shree Balaji Associates
B. Subsidiary
        1. Hariyana Air Products
C. Associate
        1. Orchid Lakeview Developers
        2. Swastik Developers
        3. Whitefield Projects
        4. Goyal Hariyana Realty
        5. Goyal Hariyana Construction
D.  Key Management Personnel 
          Managing Director
             1.  Rakesh Reniwal
          Executive directors
             2.  Shanti Sarup Reniwal
             3.  Unnati Reniwal

Company Secretary
4. Pooja Yadav

Chief Financial Officer
             5.  Kirti Desai

E. Relative of Key Management Personnel
             1.  Rajeev Reniwal

(B) Related party transactions and balances

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sales and other operating income
(i) Other operating income / Other income
Interest Income from associates
Swastik Developers  78.30  72.21
Goyal Hariyana Realty  684.37  649.64

 762.67  721.85
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from the firms
Shree Balaji Associates (-0.01) (-0.05)

(-0.01) (-0.05)
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from associates
Orchid Lakeview Developers (-0.06) (-0.08)
Goyal Hariyana Realty  147.24  8.98

 147.18  8.90
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from subsidiary
Hariyana Air Products (-0.16) (-1.67)

(-0.16) (-1.67)
Purchases
(i) Purchase of property, plant & equipments
Hariyana Air Products -                                        -                                   
(i) Purchase of oxygen gas
Hariyana Air Products -                                        -                                   

-                                        -                                   
Interest Expense
Rakesh Reniwal  42.84  42.70
Shantisarup Reniwal  8.78  17.34
Unnati Reniwal  0.39 -  

 52.01  60.03

Shantisarup Reniwal  4.50  6.00
Dhawani Punamiya -   1.80
Pooja Yadav  4.80  0.99
Kirti Shantilal Desai  8.82  7.68
Unnati Reniwal  18.00  12.00
Rakesh Reniwal  31.50  12.00

 67.62  40.47

The Company has presented segment information in the consolidated financial statements which are presented in this same annual report. Accordingly, in terms of Ind AS
108 'Operating segments', no disclosures relating to segments are presented in these standalone financial statements.

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

The details of material transactions and balances with related parties (including those pertaining to discontinued operations) are given below:

a) Transactions during the year Year ended

Remuneration Paid 
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Rajeev Reniwal  28.11 -  
 28.11 -  

(i) Loan Taken
Shantisarup Reniwal  812.70  766.25
Rakesh Reniwal  39.00  513.50
Unnati Reniwal  32.00 -  

 883.70  1279.75
(ii) Loan Repaid

Shantisarup Reniwal  1203.15  246.48
Rakesh Reniwal  279.39  257.64
Unnati Reniwal  6.00 -  

 1488.54  504.12
Investment in Partnership Firms
Capital Introduced
Shree Balaji Associates  346.50  26.00

 346.50  26.00
Capital Withdrawan
Shree Balaji Associates -   26.00

-   26.00
Investment in Associates
Capital Introduced -                                        -                                   

Capital Withdrawan
Orchid Lakeview Developers -                                        -                                      
Goyal Hariyana Realty  220.00  7.03
Swastik Developers  56.81 -  

 276.81  7.03
Investment in Subsidiary
Capital Introduced
Hariyana Air Products -                                        -                                   

-                                        -                                   
Capital Withdrawan
Hariyana Air Products  0.50  1.21

 0.50  1.21

As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Goyal and Company (Construction) Pvt. Ltd.  121.33  121.33
 121.33  121.33

Rajeev Reniwal  28.11 -                                   
 28.11 -                                   

(a) In partnership firms 
Shree Balaji Associates - Fixed Capital  0.25  0.25
Shree Balaji Associates-Current Capital  343.36 (-3.14)
(b) In associates
   -    In Fixed Capital
Goyal Hariyana Realty  0.50  0.50
   -    In Current Capital
Whitefield Projects  4.20  4.20
Swastik Developers  896.35  874.86
Goyal Hariyana Realty  12092.78  11481.17
Orchid Lakeview Developers (-2.13) (-2.07)
(c) In Subsidiary
Hariyana Air Products  17.87  18.53

 13353.18  12374.30

Shanti Sarup Reniwal  154.80  537.35
Rakesh Reniwal  378.15  609.09
Unnati Reniwal  26.35 -  

 559.30  1146.44

Car Sold (Incl. GST)

Short Term Borrowings

b)  Balances at the end of the year

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Advance Received

Other Receivables

Investments Balance at the end of the year

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
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Note No:- 5.10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contingent Liabilities
Disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts*
           -   Income tax  1155.22  1155.22
 Claims against the Company

   -   Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB)  25.34  25.34
   -   Customs & Excise  18.35  18.35

Corporate Guarantees :
           - Hariyana Ship Demolition Private Limited  12500.00  12500.00
           - Hariyana International Private Limited  4500.00  4500.00

Notes: 

Note No:- 5.11 LEASES

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 27.60  9.60

Note No:- 5.12 (Amt. in INR)
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1. Information regarding Imports (CIF)
         a) Raw materials and components -   9421.09
         b) Traded Goods  6393.24 -  

 6393.24  9421.09
2. Auditors' remuneration
     Included under Other Expenses
         i) For financial audit  4.74  4.25
         ii) For taxation matters -  -  
         iii) For other services - review of accounts, certification work, etc.  1.50  1.25

 6.24  5.50

Note No:- 5.13 EXPENDITURE FOR CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 16.97  NA 

Amount spent during the year :
          (a) Construction / Acquisition of any asset                                       -   -                                   
          (b) On Purpose other than (a) above  17.00  NA 
          (c) Non utilized amount                                       -                                        -   
Notes: 

OTHER INFORMATION (INCLUDING FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS)

2. During FY 2023-24 the company has spent Rs. 17.00 Lacs towards Corporate Social Responsibility. The company has made the said contribution to serve and enrich 
quality of life of patient suffering from diseasses through the efficient development of technology and human experise.

1. During F.Y. 2023-24, the company is required to spend amount 16.97 Lacs (PY NIL) as Corporate Social Responsibility  as per applicability of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

3. The Company has deposited amount under protest of Rs.18.35 Lacs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 18.35 Lacs) in respect of various demands relating to customs and excise duty. 
The matters are pending before the various appellate authorities. The company expects favourable resolution of the said appeals.

1. The Company has ongoing disputes with income tax authorities relating to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly include disallowance of expenses, tax treatment 
of certain expenses claimed by the Company as deduction and the computation of or eligibility of the Company’s use of certain allowances.

2.The Company has deposited Rs.25.34 Lacs (March 31,2023:Rs.25.34 Lacs) under protest agaisnt demand raised by Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) on account of 
amendement fees and delayed interest.The matter is pending before the appellate authority of GMB. The company expects favourable resolution of the said appeal.

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with schedule VII

The Company has entered into agreements for taking on leave and license basis office/ godown premises including furniture and fittings therein, as applicable, for a period 
of 60 years. The specified disclosure in respect of these agreements is given below:

Lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss

* The Company has been advised that the demand is likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision is considered necessary.

Year ended 

Year ended 

Year ended 

 As at 

4. Punjab National Bank, Large Corporate Branch, Mumbai Cuffe Parade, Mumbai, has sanctioned group exposure of Rs. 395 Crores covering specified limits for each 
company viz. a) Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited - Rs. 225 Crores, b) Hariyana International Private Limited - Rs. 45 Crores and c) Hariyana Ship Demolition Private Limited - 
Rs. 125 Crores. Since the bank sanctioned group limits, each company mentioned above stand as Corporate Gurantor to each other. All these companies are under same 
management.

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
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Note No. 5.14 FINANCIAL RATIOS
The ratios as per the latest amendment to Schedule III are as below:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
(1) Current ratio 0.21 0.94 -77.22%

Debt Average Equity 0.10 0.16 36.85%

EBITDA 4.37 5.09 -14.18%

Profit After Tax Average Equity 2.25% 2.99% -24.84%

Average Inventory Cost of Goods Sold 3.47 1.13 208.41%

Average Trade Receivables Revenue From Operation 425.13 97.42 336.37%

1.37 1.79 -23.90%

Average working capital Revenue From Operation -15.24 -8.81 -72.88%

Profit after tax Revenue From Operation 2.17% 7.74% -71.94%

EBIT Average Capital Employed 3.95% 3.00% 31.76%

Return on Investments Non Current Investments 1.33% 0.15% 787.66%

Previous year ratios are reworked on account of proper reworking of applicable parameters

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

(7) Trade payables turnover ratio (in days)

(8) Net capital turnover ratio (in days)

(9) Net profit ratio (%)

(10) Return on Capital Employed (%)

Remarks for variance more than 25%Particulars Numerator Denominator
Year ended

Variance (in %)

Total current assets Total Current liabilities On account of decrease in current assets resulting from utilisation
of GST credit balances during the current year, Reduction of Cash &
Cash Equivalents and reduction of inventory resulting into lower
ratio. 

On account of repayment of short term and Long term borrowings.
(Debt: Non-current 

borrowings + Current 
borrowings)

(11) Return on investment (%)

(2) Debt equity ratio

(3) Debt service coverage ratio

(4) Return on Equity (%)

(5) Inventory turnover ratio (in Times)

(6) Debtors turnover ratio (in Times)

(Equity: Equity share capital + 
Other Equity)

NA

Long Term Debts + Interest 
Expense

NA
(EBITDA :  Profit before 
taxes + depreciation & 

Amortisation + Interest)

On account of better working capital management and inventory
management resulting into higher operational activity resulting into
improvement in Inventory turnover ratio.

NA
(Equity: Equity share capital + 

Other Equity)

On account of better working capital management and
improvement in collection mechanism and higher operational
activity  resulting into improvement in Trade Receivables ratio.

Increase in higher operational activity compared to capital
employed in the business has resulted into reduction in net capital
turnover ratio

Reduction in operational margin in sales turnover and increase in
operational costs. 

On account of Reduction in Borrowed funds and Trade Payables has
positive impact on return on capital employed.(EBIT: Profit Before Tax + 

Finance Cost)
(Capital Employed: Equity share 

capital + Other Equity + Non 
Current Liabilities + Current 

Liabilities)
On account of increase in rental income and increase in average

balance of investments and net increase of share of profit of
partnership firm, associate and subsidiary. 

Average Trade Payables Total Purchase
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Note No. 5.15

Note No. 5.16 OTHER NOTES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Director Director
Partner Partner                                            DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXM9195 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQP1452

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006:

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

ii) The company has invested in six partnership firms and balance outstanding in current capital account as on March 31, 2024 is Rs.133.35 Crores (As on March 31, 2023 Rs.123.56 Crores). Persuant to partnership deed exceuted among partners
of one partnership Firm no interest is payable or recoverable to or from partners on balances outstanding in current capital account.

iii) The company has given interest free advances of Rs.13.19 Crores (P.Y. Rs.13.19 Crores) for carrying business jointly with one body corporate where formal joint venture agreement is yet to be made. 

iv) Balances grouped under Non Current Liabilities and Current Liabilities, Non Current Assets and Current Assets in certain cases are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from respective parties. Impact of the same, if any, shall be
accounted as and when determined.
v) In the opinion of the Management Long Term Loans and Advances, Other Non Current Assets, Current Assets and Other Current Assets fetch approximately the value as stated in the Financial Statement if realised in the ordinary course of
business subject to balance confirmation. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and is not in excess of amounts considered reasonably necessary.

The company has communicated suppliers to provide confirmations as to their status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise registered under the applicable category as per the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). The company has classified suppliers into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per the confirmations received by the company upto the date of the financial statements.

i)  The figures for the previous year have been reclassified/ regrouped wherever necessary for better understanding and comparability.
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LSM & Co.        S.N. Shah & Associates  
Chartered Accountants     Chartered Accountants   
516, Summit Business Bay,          Sapan House, C.G. Rd, Opp. Municipal  
Opp. Cinemax, Chakala,      Market, Navrangpura , Ahmedabad , 
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093    Gujarat 380009 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of  
Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hariyana Ship 
Breakers Limited, (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company') its one subsidiary and four 
associates (the company, its subsidiary and associates together referred to as 'the group'), which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit And Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based 
on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated financial statements"). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of 
profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of 
our report. 
 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and  
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the audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their report referred to in Other 
Matters below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 
 

   We draw attention to the users of Consolidated financial statement, that the company 
has made investment of Rs. 13.19 crores which constitutes 8.08% of the total assets of 
the company as at 31st March, 2024 in one company for starting a joint venture. Till date, 
the company has not been able to start any joint venture as intended nor has the 
company been able to recover the advanced amount. (Refer to Note No. 3.6 to Financial 
Statements for Loans given.) 

   We draw attention to the users of Consolidated financial statement, that the company 
has accepted advance of Rs. 1.21 crores from one private limited company in the 
financial year 2017-18 for starting a joint venture. Till date, the company has not been 
able to start any joint venture as intended nor has the company paid back the advanced 
amount. (Refer to Note No. 3.18 to Financial Statements for Loans received.) 

   We draw attention to the users of Consolidated financial statement, that the Company is 
partner in five partnership firms having main object of real estate development. The 
company has also invested in its subsidiary firm having main object of dealing in 
oxygen gases. The capital contribution of the company as at the year ended on March 
31, 2024 is Rs.133.35 Crores in above firms which constitutes 81.82% of the total assets of 
the company. Further attention is drawn to the fact that out of total capital contribution 
of Rs.119.31 crores during the year to one of the firm have been utilized by the firm for 
granting loans of Rs.118.35 Crores to other body corporates and partnership firms in 
which the directors are substantially interested. Due to the materiality of above assets in 
context of the consolidated financial statement where recoverability risk could have 
significant impact of the financial position of the company. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report. 
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Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

 Evaluation of uncertain tax positions 

The Company has material uncertain tax 
positions including matters under dispute 
which involves significant judgment to 
determine the possible outcome of these 
disputes. 

 

Principal Audit Procedures: 

 Obtained details of completed tax assessments 
and demands for the year ended March 31, 2024 
from management. 

 Obtained understanding of key uncertain 

tax positions. 

 Discussed with appropriate senior 
management and evaluated management’s 
underlying key assumptions in estimating the tax 
provisions. 

 Assessed management’s estimates of the 
possible outcome of the disputed cases. 

 Assessed relevant disclosures made within the 
financial statements to address whether they 
appropriately reflects the face and circumstances 
of each disputed case and requirement of relevant 
accounting standard for disclosure and reporting. 

 

Information Other than the Consolidated financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon  

The Holding Company's management, Management of Associate and subsidiary and the Board 
of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, 
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of other auditors furnished to us 
(refer Other Matters paragraph below), we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated 
financial statements 

The Holding Company's, Management of Associates and subsidiary and Board of Directors are 
responsible for preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated 
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the 
Act. The Board of Directors of the Company and management of its subsidiary and associates 
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the 
company as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the company and 
management of its subsidiary and associates are responsible for assessing each entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate a 
respective entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of the Company and management of its subsidiary and associates are 
also responsible for overseeing each entities included in the group financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
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detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company, its subsidiary and associates have adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on ability of the Group 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding financial information of the 
entities or business activities of the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated  
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financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit of the financial statements of the company included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements which have been audited by the other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors and its 
associates and subsidiary regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 1.09 
Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of two associates, whose financial statements/ financial information 
have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have been furnished by the 
Management to one of the joint auditors and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report in terms of sub-section 
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates are based solely on 
the reports of the other auditors.  

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
regard to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS 
financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the 
report of the other auditors on the financial statements/ financial information of the 
associates of the company referred to above in sub-paragraph of the Other Matters paragraph 
above, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and report of the other auditors referred in 
Other Matters paragraph above; 

c. the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated 
financial statements and the financial information of the associates of the Company; 

d. in our opinion, and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors 
referred to in Other Matters paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act; 

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company 
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary and its associates and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" to this 
report; and 

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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i. the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as 
on March 31, 2024 which could materially impact on its consolidated financial statements - 
Refer Note 5.10 of consolidated financial statements. 

ii. the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. there have been no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. Management Representation: 

1.   The Management of the Holding Company and its associate has represented to us that 
to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
respective entity to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Holding Company or its associate (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

2.   The respective management of the Holding Company and its associate has 
represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the holding company or 
its associate from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
holding company or its associate shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

3. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and provided in clauses (a) and (b) above contain 
any material misstatement. 

4. The Holding company, its subsidiary or its associate entities have not declared or 
paid any dividend during the year. 

5. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used 
accounting software for maintaining books of accounts maintained at Bhavnagar 
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office and Head office (Mumbai) which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software used for maintaining books of accounts. 

        In respect of accounting software where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and 
operated during the financial year, we did not come across any instance of the audit 
trail (edit log) feature being tampered with.  

h. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the group, its 
associate entities and subsidiary have paid the remuneration to its directors during the current 
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

i. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of Para 3 and 4 of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“The Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
section 143(11) of the Act, according to information and explanations given to us, and based on 
CARO Report issued by us on the standalone financial statement of the holding company, we 
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the auditors in the CARO Report of 
the holding company included in consolidated financial statement. 

For L S M & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 
UDIN: 24100529BKFSXN2812 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 30, 2024 
 

For S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 109782W 
 
 
 
 

CA Dhruvin Joshi 
Partner                                            

M. No. 612290 
UDIN: 24612290BJZZQQ9541 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:  May 30, 2024 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 
 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
 
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited, the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'). Reporting 
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act in respect of adequacy of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to subsidiary, namely, Hariyana Air 
Products and four associates, namely, Goyal Hariyana Realty, Orchid Lakeview Developers, 
Whitefield Projects and Swastik Developers, pursuant to MCA notification. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the holding company are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India and the Standards on 
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

166 



        Hariyana Ship-Breakers Limited 

 

 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of  the  assets  of  the  company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide  reasonable  assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting (Subject to Para No. iii of Annexure “A” to our  Standalone Audit Report relating to 
investments made referred to in Section 189 and further as reported in ‘Emphasis of Matter’ and 
‘Other Matters’ of our report relating to Loans & Advances given, Loans & Advances taken and 
Investment made in the partnership firms) were commensurate with the nature of the business of 
the company and operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of  
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internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

For L S M & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 116870W 
 
 
 
CA Navneet Lahoti 
Partner 
M. No. 100529 
UDIN: 24100529BKFSXN2812 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: May 30, 2024 
 

For S.N. Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 109782W 
 

 
 

CA Dhruvin Joshi 
Partner                                            

M. No. 612290 
UDIN: 24612290BJZZQQ9541  

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:  May 30, 2024 
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(Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
 Property, Plant And Equipment  3.1   955.56   908.24
 Capital Work - in - Progress 3.2 -     207.81
 Investment Property 3.3   213.92   221.12
 Other Intangible Assets  3.4   0.10   0.10
 Financial Assets  

    (i) Investments  3.5   13337.45   12360.98
    (ii) Loans  3.6   1319.00   1319.00
    (iii) Other financial assets 3.7   12.77   6.41

 Other Non Current Asset 3.8   131.88   131.92
  15970.68   15155.58

Current Assets
 Inventories  3.9   175.94   8498.89
 Financial Assets  

   (i) Trade Receivable 3.10 -     69.92
   (ii) Cash And Cash Equivalents  3.11   85.33   1057.42
   (iii) Other Financial Assets 3.12   0.68   2.63

 Other Current Assets 3.13   73.27   1514.51
  335.22   11143.37

Total Assets   16305.90   26298.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
 Equity Share Capital  3.14   616.67   616.67
 Other Equity  3.15   13898.00   13581.30
Equity attributable to owners of the Company   14514.66   14197.96
 Non controlling interest (-16.93) (-17.59)

  14497.74   14180.38
Non-Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Borrowings  3.16   11.11   24.92
 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  3.17   88.07   94.68
 Other Non Current Liabilities 3.18   146.16   134.27

  245.34   253.87
Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities  

    (i) Borrowings  3.19   1480.24   2285.22
   (ii) Trade Payables  3.20   0.05   9362.28
   (iii) Other Current Financial Liabilities  3.21   8.02   8.35

 Other Current Liabilities 3.22   14.16   44.67
 Provisions 3.23   0.15   30.18
 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 3.24   60.19   134.00

  1562.82   11864.70

Total Equity and Liabilities   16305.90   26298.95

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Partner Partner                                            Director Director
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290 DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXN2812 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQQ9541

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars
Note
No.

As At
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
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(Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 4.1   14863.19   5407.23
Other Income 4.2   934.78   790.02
Total Income   15797.98   6197.25
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 4.3   8498.89   1941.72
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 4.4   6393.24   3029.73

4.5 (-175.94) -   
Manufacturing Expenses 4.6   105.92   100.07
Employee benefits expense 4.7   231.29   117.53
Finance costs 4.8   248.42   221.67
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.1, 3.3, 3.4   116.53   80.51
Other Expenses 4.9   131.05   147.05
Total expenses   15549.40   5638.28
Profit Before Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates, Exceptional Item and Tax   248.58   558.97
Share of profit/ (loss) from associates   147.18   1.09
Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax   395.76   560.05
Exceptional Items -                                                      -                                                   
Profit before tax   395.76   560.05
Tax expenses :
       Current tax   77.71   142.98
       Tax of Earlier Years   0.10   7.62
       Deferred tax (-4.63) (-1.08)
Profit for the year   322.59   410.54
Other comprehensive income
  Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss :
          - Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (-7.88) (-1.38)
          - Tax (charge)/ credit on above   1.98   0.35
Total other comprehensive income (-5.90) (-1.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year   316.69   409.50
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to :
      -     Owners of the Company   316.70   409.59
      -     Non controlling interest (-0.01) (-0.09)

          Basic 5.23                                                6.66                                                
          Diluted 5.23                                                6.66                                                
        (Refer Note 5.3)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Partner Partner                                            Director Director
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290 DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXN2812 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQQ9541

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Earning per equity share [face value Rs.10/- each]

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars
Note
No.

Changes in the inventories of Finished Goods, Stock In Trade and Work - In 
Progress

5.1

Year Ended
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Consolidated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax   248.58   558.97
   Adjustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense   116.53   80.51
Finance cost   248.42   221.67
Interest income (-824.13) (-768.05)
Provision for Expected Credit Loss Reversed (-0.07) (-0.46)
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (-7.88) (-1.38)
Share of profit/ (loss) from associates   147.18   1.09
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Asset (-5.07)   0.09
Subsidy Received from Green Plot (-19.13) -                                                      
Provision for Expected Credit Loss -     0.07
(Profit)/ Loss from partnership firms   0.01   0.05

Operating profit before working capital changes (-95.55)   92.55
   Adjustments for working capital changes:

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables   1513.18 (-1413.38)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories   8322.95 (-7775.48)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade and other payables (-9411.19)   4521.49

Cash generated/ (used) in operations   329.39 (-4574.82)
    Direct taxes paid (-166.89) (-249.14)
Net Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities [A]   162.50 (-4823.97)
Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances) (-2.38) (-0.12)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  77.73  4.00
(Purchase) / Proceeds of non - current investments (Net) (-976.46) (-715.99)
Changes in Other Financial Asset (-6.35)   11.60
Share of Taxes from partnership firms -                                                      -                                                      
(Profit)/ Loss from partnership firms (-0.01) (-0.05)
Interest received   824.13   768.05

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities [B] (-83.34) 67,48,758                                     
Cash flow from financing activities

Change in non controlling interest   0.67 (-18.17)
Proceeds from current borrowings, net (-762.09)  1005.67
Proceeds from non-current borrowings, net (-13.81) (-16.19)
Finance cost (-233.12) (-221.67)

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities [C] (-1008.35)   749.64

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [A+B+C] (-929.19) (-4006.84)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   107.12   4113.96
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year (-822.07)   107.12

Notes :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
  85.33   1057.42

(-907.40) (-950.29)
(-822.07)   107.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Partner Partner                                            Director Director
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290 DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXN2812 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQQ9541

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Balances as per the statement of cash flow
1. The above cashflow statement has been prepared under the 'indirect method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2. Figures of previous year have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to make them comparable. 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars Year Ended

1. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement :

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3.11)
Bank Overdrafts (Note 3.19)
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A) Equity Share Capital (Amount in Lacs)

Balance as at April 1, 2022   616.67
Changes in Equity share capital during the year -   
Balance as at March 31, 2023   616.67

Balance as at April 1, 2023   616.67
Changes in Equity share capital during the year -   
Balance as at March 31, 2024   616.67

B) Other Equity

 Securities 
Premium 

Capital Reserves
General 
Reserves

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserves
 Retained Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
Balance as at April 1, 2022   140.38   893.61   374.25   500.00   11263.56 -     13171.81
Additions during the year:

Profit for the year -   -   -   -     410.62 -     410.62
           Adjustments to retained earnings of Tax Expense of HAP -   
Prior Period Errors -   -   -   -   (-0.11) -   (-0.11)

   Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) -   -   -   -   -   (-1.03) (-1.03)

Balance as at March 31, 2023   140.38   893.61   374.25   500.00   11674.08 (-1.03)   13581.30

Balance as at April 1, 2023   140.38   893.61   374.25   500.00   11674.08 (-1.03)   13581.30
Additions during the year:
Profit for the year -   -   -   -     322.60 -    322.60
           Adjustments to retained earnings of Tax Expense of HAP -   
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-

Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) -   -   -   -   -   (-5.90) (-5.90)
Balance as at March 31, 2024   140.38   893.61   374.25   500.00   11996.68 (-6.93)   13898.00

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
Partner Partner                                            Director Director
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290 DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXN2812 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQQ9541

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

Particulars  Total 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars  Amount 

Reserve and Surplus
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

 

Note 1: Company information 
 
Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited (“the Holding Company” or “The Company”) is a public 
company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.  
The company has its primary listing on BSE Limited.  During the year, the Company was 
engaged in Ship Recycling (ship breaking) and Trading in HR Coils.  However, as and when 
any surplus fund is available, the same is given on interest to other parties and also invested in 
the shares and securities to earn short term and long term capital gains. 
 
The Company has one subsidiary, namely “Hariyana Air Products”. The principle activities 
of subsidiary are manufacturing of industrial oxygen. 
 
The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024 present the financial position of the 
holding company as well as its interests in associates. The list of entities consolidated is 
provided in schedule Note 5.15. 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees. 
 
The Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the directors on May 30, 2024. 
 
Note 2 : Significant accounting policies 
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated. 
 
Basis of preparation and presentation: 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the 
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS. 
 
Basis of consolidation: 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 
entities controlled by the Company i.e. its subsidiaries. It also includes the company’s share of 
profit/ (loss) of its associates that are consolidated using the equity or proportionate method of 
consolidation, as applicable. 
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Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to the variable returns 
of the entity and the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant 
activities of the entity. 

Wherever necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements and associates to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other 
members of the company. Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are 
eliminated on consolidation. 
 
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately 
from the company’s equity. 
 
a) Use of estimates and judgments 
In the preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgments in the application of 
accounting policies; and estimates and assumptions which affects the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods affected. 
 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes: 
 
i) Note 3.1 - Property, plant and equipment - useful life and impairment 
ii) Note 5.1 - Recoverability/recognition of deferred tax assets 
iii) Note 5.2 - Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits 
iv) Note 5.10 - Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 
b) Current / Non-Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-
current Classification. 
 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
e) All other assets are classified as non-current.  
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A liability is treated as current when it is: 

a) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
c) Property, Plant and Equipment 

All the items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, or deemed cost applied on 
transition to Ind AS, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. 
 
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing 
the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange 
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 
 
All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance 
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the 
period during which such expenses are incurred. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment and having different useful life are accounted separately. 
 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the straight-line method over 
the useful lives of the assets estimated by the management. Depreciation is provided based 
on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Useful lives 
and residual values of assets are reviewed periodically. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part is derecognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or 
losses arising from DE recognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 
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d) Intangible Assets 

Software and Website costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is 
probable that associated future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they  

 

are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. All other costs on patents, trademarks and software are expensed in the 
statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. 

 
e) Investment Property 

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are 
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16’s requirements for cost 
model. 
 
An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE recognition of the property (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included 
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized. 
 
f) Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying 
value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of 
impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from 
other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying 
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash 
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the 
increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. 
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately. 
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g) Leases 
The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the 
fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction 
conveys the right to control the use of that asset to the Company in return for payment. 
 
As a lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that 
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is 
classified as a finance lease. The Company does not have any arrangement during or at the 
reporting period that can be classified as finance lease. 
 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term except in the case where incremental lease reflects 
inflationary effect in which case, lease expense is accounted by actual rent for the period. 
 
As a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount 
of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
 
h) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short-term deposits and 
short- term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
i) Provisions & Contingent Liabilities 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre- tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
 
Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of 
amount cannot be made. 
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j) Inventories 
Inventories of Raw Materials (Ships) are stated at Cost. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 
 
Costs are determined on FIFO basis. 
 
In ship recycling units, the weight of the ship purchased is accounted in terms of LDT/MT 
of the ship at the time of its construction. Ascertaining of weight of ship at the time of purchase 
is not possible due to its nature and size. There is loss of weight on account of corrosion and 
other factors during the usage of the   ship   and its voyage for long period of the years. 
Inventory at the close of the year is ascertained by reducing the weight of the scrap sold together 
with the estimated wastage of the material. 
 
Consumable stores and spares are written off at the time of purchase itself. 
 
k) Employee Benefit Expense 
 
 Defined contribution plans 
Contributions under defined contribution plans are recognized as  expense for the period in 
which the employee has rendered service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service 
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable 
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the 
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance 
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, 
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 
 
 Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each year-end 
balance sheet date. Premeasurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized as an expense within employee costs. 
 
Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs 
or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is 
earlier. 
 
The retirement benefit obligations recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value 
of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 
 
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of 
the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognized based on actuarial 
valuation at the present value of the obligation as on the reporting date. 
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l) Taxes 
The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. 
 
Current Tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
value of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability 
method. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. In 
contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognized to  the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
 
The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the 
liability is settled or the asset is realized based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of 
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle 
the carrying value of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the 
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and 
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction. 
 
Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the statement of profit and 
loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized   in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. 
 
m) Investments in subsidiaries, associates 
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost 
applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication 
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment 
provision is recognized, if required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such 
investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss. 
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n) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
 
Financial Assets 
 

 Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and associate, are recognized initially at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asset, 
which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 
recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognized using trade date accounting. 
 

 Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are primarily classified in three 
categories: 
 
a) Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortized Cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the Financial Asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
b) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets 
and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that represents solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 
 
c) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 
Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its 
business model for managing those financial assets. Changes in business model are made and 
applied prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately next 
reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid 
down under Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments. 
 

 Other Equity Investments 

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on such equity investments are recognized in Statement 
of Profit and loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established. 
 
However, investment in partnership firms are carried at cost/ deemed cost applied on 
transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
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 Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit and Loss (FVTPL). 
 
Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

 The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default 
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); 
or 

 Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the life of the financial instrument). 
 
For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses 
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At 
every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward 
looking estimates are analyzed. 
 
For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there 
is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full 
lifetime ECL is used. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 

 Initial recognition and measurement 

All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of 
directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as finance cost. 
 
 Subsequent measurement 

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
 
De- recognition of Financial Instruments 

The Company derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for DE 
recognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability (or a part of a Financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
 
Offsetting 

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the 
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off  
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the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 
 

o) Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
The financial instruments are categorized into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive 
at fair value measurements as described below: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
Level 3: Inputs based on unobservable market data. 
 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs 
such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Further details are set out in Note 
5.7. 
 
p) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on 
behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its 
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 
 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognized. 
 

Sale of products 

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the products have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the products. 
Revenue from the sale of products is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
 

Interest income 

Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognized using effective interest rate method. 
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Dividend Income 

Dividend Income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been 
established. 

 
q) Finance Costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily 
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. 
 
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. 
 
All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for 
which they are incurred. 
 
r) Foreign Currencies Transactions 
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (“₹”), which is the 
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements. 

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are re- translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange 
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 
 
In the case of forward contract, if any, difference between the forward rate and the exchange 
rate on the transaction date is recognized as income or expenses over the lives of the related 
contracts. The differential gain/loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
s) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.  Partly paid 
up shares are included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up. 
 
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares and 
dilutive potential shares except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 
 
Key Accounting Estimates & Judgements 
 
1 Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting 
period. The policy has been detailed in Note 2(I) and its further information are set out in Note 
5.1. 
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2 Defined benefit plan 
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present 
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates 
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.  
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
The parameter that is subject to change the most is the discount rate.  In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in 
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and 
extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the 
defined benefit obligation. 
 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to 
change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are after 
considering the expected future inflation rates for the country. 

Refer to Note 5.2 for further details. 
 
3 Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and 
amortization expense in future periods. The policy has been detailed in Note 2(C) above. 
 
4 Recoverability of Trade Receivables 
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and 
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Estimated irrecoverable 
amounts are derived based on a provision matrix, which takes into accounts various factors 
such as customer specific risks, geographical region, product type, customer rating, type of 
customer, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that 
can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in Lacs)
Note No:- 3.1

A S S E T S Factory Land Building Premises Godown
Green Plot 

Developement 
(Alang)

Flat - Madhav Hill Factory Building Plant & Machineries
Crane & Commercial 

Vehicles
Office Equipments Oxygen Tank Mobiles Furniture Computer Vehilcles Electric Fittings

Leasehold 
Improvements

Total

 Gross carrying amount 
 As at April 1, 2022   258.14   3.10   13.57   36.78   12.65   194.09   358.88   306.68   41.33   21.01   3.44   23.89   14.93   208.84 -   -     1497.34
 Additions -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -     0.12 -   -   -   -   -   -   -     0.12
 Disposal -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -     13.39 -   -     13.39
 As at March 31, 2023   258.14   3.10   13.57   36.78   12.65   194.09   358.88   306.68   41.46   21.01   3.44   23.89   14.93   195.45 -   -     1484.07
 As at April 1, 2023   258.14   3.10   13.57   36.78   12.65   194.09   358.88   306.68   41.46   21.01   3.44   23.89   14.93   195.45 -   -     1484.07
 Additions -   -   -   -   -   -     1.38 -     16.53 -     0.84   53.69 -   -     6.92   130.83   210.18
 Disposal -     36.78 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -     62.43 -     99.20
 As at March 31, 2024   258.14   3.10   13.57 -     12.65   194.09   360.26   306.68   57.99   21.01   4.28   77.58   14.93   133.03   6.92   130.83   1595.05
 Accumulated depreciation 
 As at April 1, 2022 -     1.13   9.97   4.45 -     88.72   116.27   165.73   13.10   7.75   2.76   15.86   13.82   72.24 -   -     511.79
 Depreciation for the year   0.10   0.75   1.17 -     5.94   21.15   15.40   1.70   1.33   0.26   0.84   0.54   24.16 -   -     73.34

 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -     9.30 -   -     9.30
 As at March 31, 2023 -     1.22   10.72   5.61 -     94.66   137.43   181.13   14.80   9.08   3.02   16.70   14.36   87.10 -   -     575.83
 As at April 1, 2023 -     1.22   10.72   5.61 -     94.66   137.43   181.13   14.80   9.08   3.02   16.70   14.36   87.10 -   -     575.83
 Depreciation for the year   0.10   0.75   0.29 -     5.96   19.37   8.80   2.46   1.33   0.30   5.94   0.32   19.96   2.20   41.54   109.33

 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -   -   -     5.90 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -     39.77 -   -     45.67
 As at March 31, 2024 -     1.32   11.47 -   -     100.62   156.80   189.93   17.26   10.41   3.32   22.64   14.68   67.30   2.20   41.54   639.49
 Net Carrying Amounts
 As at March 31, 2023   258.14   1.87   2.85   31.16   12.65   99.43   221.46   125.55   26.66   11.93   0.43   7.20   0.57   108.35 -   -     908.24
 As at March 31, 2024   258.14   1.77   2.10 -     12.65   93.47   203.46   116.75   40.73   10.60   0.96   54.94   0.25   65.73   4.72   89.28   955.56

Notes : 25.13                          32.33                           
1. Green Plot Development at Alang Ship Breaking Yard valued at Rs. 31.16 Lakhs was on a leasehold land plot as on 31-03-2023.

 Property Plant and Equipment
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CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (Amount in Lacs)

Particulars
 Building Premises 

(Aashiana) 
Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2022   207.81
Additions -   
Deductions (Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipments) -   
As at March 31, 2023   207.81
As at April 01, 2023   207.81
Additions -   
Deductions (Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipments)   207.81
As at March 31, 2024 -   
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2023   207.81
As at March 31, 2024 -                                   

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Amount in Lacs)

 Premises (Other 
than Factory)

 Warehouse 
(Leasehold) 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2022   247.91   29.72   277.64
Additions -   -   -   
Inter Transfers -   -   -   
Recoupment / Adjustment -   -   -   
Deductions -   -   -   
As at March 31, 2023   247.91   29.72   277.64
As at April 01, 2023   247.91   29.72   277.64
Additions -   -   -   
Inter Transfers -   -   -   
Recoupment / Adjustment -   -   -   
Deductions -   -   -   
As at March 31, 2024   247.91   29.72   277.64
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2022   44.75   4.59   49.34
Depreciation for the year   6.41   0.76   7.18
Inter Transfers -   -   -   
Impairment for the year -   -   -   
Deductions -   -   -   
As at March 31, 2023   51.16   5.35   56.52
As at April 01, 2023   51.16   5.35   56.52
Depreciation for the year   6.43   0.77   7.20
Inter Transfers -   -   -   
Impairment for the year -   -   -   
Deductions -   -   -   
As at March 31, 2024   57.59   6.12   63.71
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2023   196.75   24.37   221.12
As at March 31, 2024   190.32   23.60   213.92
Notes :

(a) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
  26.65   10.84

  3.91   1.21
  2.52   1.04

Profit arising from investment property before depreciation and indirect expenses   20.22   8.59
Less : Depreciation   7.20   7.18

Profit arising from investment property before indirect expenses   13.02   1.41

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to construct or develop investment
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Particulars

Particulars Year ended

Rental income derived from Investment Property
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income

1. Title of Godown situated at 1929, Iron & Steel Market Yard, Kalamboli, Dist: Raigad and valued at Rs. 23.60 Lakhs is in the name of director of the 
company.

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income

Note No:- 3.3 

Note No:- 3.2  
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(b) Fair value of the Investment property are as under:

Fair value
 Premises (Other 

than Factory)
 Warehouse 
(Leasehold) 

 Total 

As at April 1, 2022   203.14   25.13   228.28
Changes in fair value (-6.41) (-0.76) (-7.18)
Purchases -                              

As at March 31, 2023   196.73   24.37   221.10
Changes in fair value (-6.43) (-0.77) (-7.20)
Purchases -                              

As at March 31, 2024   190.30   23.60   213.90

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)
Particulars Website
 Gross carrying amount 
As at April 1, 2022   1.08
 Additions -   
 Disposal -   
As at March 31, 2023   1.08
As at April 01, 2023   1.08
 Additions -   
 Disposal -   
As at March 31, 2024   1.08
 Accumulated depreciation 
As at April 1, 2022   0.98
 Depreciation for the year -   
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -   
As at March 31, 2023   0.98
As at April 01, 2023   0.98
 Depreciation for the year -   
 Deduction / Adjustment /Writtent back -   
As at March 31, 2024   0.98
Net Carrying Amounts
As at March 31, 2023   0.10
As at March 31, 2024   0.10

INVESTMENTS NON - CURRENT (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Investment at Cost
  - In Partnership Firms *   13337.44   12360.98
  - In Equity Shares (Unquoted)

   -  The Cuffe Persepolis premises of Co-Operative Ltd.   0.00   0.00
       1 (PY 1) share of Rs.10/- each paid up

(B) Investment at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):
  - Investment in Shares (Quoted)   0.01   0.00

Inducto Steel Ltd
10 (PY 10) share of Rs. 10/- each paid up

Total   13337.45   12360.98
Note: 
(a) Aggregate value of quoted investments and market value thereof   0.01   0.00
(b) Aggregate value of unquoted investments   13337.44   12360.98

* Details of Investment in Partnership Firms
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
In Partnership Firms
Fixed Capital
Orchid Lakeview Developers Fixed 33.33% -   -   
White Mountain Fixed 25.00% -   -   
Shree Balaji Associates Fixed 5.00%   0.25   0.25
Goyal Hariyana Realty Fixed 50.00%   0.50   0.50
Current A/c
Whitefield Projects 40.00%   4.20   4.20
Swastik Developers 33.33%   896.35   874.86
Goyal Hariyana Realty 50.00%   12092.78   11481.17
Hariyana Air Producsts 95.00% -   -   
Shree Balaji Associates Fixed 5.00%   343.36 -   

  13337.44   12360.98

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 3.5

Particulars

Particulars
 Share in Profit/ 

(Loss) 

Note 3.4 
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NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loans & Advances
  - Advance against proposed business venture   1319.00   1319.00

Total   1319.00   1319.00

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Security Deposits   7.77   1.41
b) FDRs  (having maturity of more than 12 months)   5.00   5.00

Total   12.77   6.41

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Balance with Revenue Authorities   131.88   131.92
Total   131.88   131.92

INVENTORIES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(As verified, valued and certified by management)

a) Raw Materials -     8498.89
 - Uncut Ship

b) Finished & Traded Goods   175.94 -   
Total   175.94   8498.89

Notes : 

Consumable stores and spares are written off at the time of purchase itself.

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivable - Unsecured

Considered Good -     69.99
Considered Doubtful -   -   

-     69.99
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts -     0.07

Total -     69.92
3. Summary of movement in allowance for doubtful trade receivables

 As At  As At 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year   0.07   0.46
Movement during the year (-0.07) (-0.39)
Less : Write off of bad debts -   -   

Balance at the end of the year -     0.07

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited

Note No:- 3.9

Note No:- 3.7

Particulars

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Note No:- 3.8

Particulars

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Particulars

Inventories of Raw Materials - Ships are stated at Cost values. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost formulas used are First -in -First -out. Inventories of Finished Goods/ Traded Goods are
stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.

In ship recycling units, the weight of the ship purchased is accounted in terms of LDT/MT of the ship at the time of its construction. Ascertaining of
weight of ship at the time of purchase is not possible due to its nature and size. There is loss of weight on account of corrosion and other factors
during the usage of the ship and its voyage for long period of the years. Inventory at the close of the year is ascertained by reducing the weight of the
scrap sold together with the estimated wastage of the material.

Note No:- 3.10

Particulars

Particulars

Note No:- 3.6

Particulars

(Unsecured, considered good)

188 



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash in Hand (As verified and certified by management)   13.19   13.95
Balances with scheduled banks

- In current accounts   11.56   16.44
- In deposit accounts   60.59   1027.03

Total   85.33   1057.42
Notes :
The details of balances as on balance sheet dates with banks are as follows:

As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

In current account
  - Punjab National Bank (Mumbai) CC 1040   0.02   1.17
  - Punjab National Bank CC-2793   0.18   0.69
  -  Punjab National Bank (CA)   11.16   14.21
  -  Punjab National Bank OD **   0.20   0.37
In term deposit account
  - FD-Punjab National Bank   60.59   1027.03

Total   72.15   1043.47

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits -     1.75
Advances recoverable in cash or kind   0.68   0.88

Total   0.68   2.63

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)

a) Staff Advances   7.55   4.55
b) GST Balances   32.62   1505.26
c) Advance to Suppliers   0.24   1.10
d) Other Receivables   28.11 -   
e) Pre-paid Expenses   4.75   3.60

Total   73.27   1514.51

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in Lacs)
 As At  As At 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each   650.00   650.00
  500.00   500.00

  616.67   616.67
Total   616.67   616.67

Notes :
a)

Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year   61.67   616.67   61.67   616.67
Add: Shares issued during the year -   -   -   -   
Less: Shares bought back during the year -   -   -   -   
Shares outstanding at the end of the year   61.67   616.67   61.67   616.67

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited

Particulars

Note No:- 3.13

Particulars

Note No:- 3.14

Particulars

AUTHORISED CAPITAL:

4% Redeemable Preference Share Of Rs. 10/- Each
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

Note No:- 3.11

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note No:- 3.12

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

 The reconciliation of the number of outstanding shares is set out below :
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b)

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding 
(in Lacs) (in Lacs)

1 Rakesh Reniwal   8.58 13.92%   8.58 13.92%
2 Lalitadevi Reniwal   4.15 6.73%   4.15 6.73%
3 Sanjeev Reniwal   4.38 7.11%   4.38 7.11%
4 Shantisarup Reniwal HUF   6.25 10.14%   6.25 10.14%
5 Rajeev Reniwal   15.39 24.96%   15.39 24.96%
6 Unnati Reniwal   4.00 6.49%   4.00 6.49%

c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares :
  -

  -

  -
  -

OTHER EQUITY (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Securities Premium   140.38   140.38
b) Capital Reserves   893.61   893.61
c) General Reserves   374.25   374.25
d) Capital Redemption Reserves   500.00   500.00
e) Retained Earnings   11996.68   11674.08
f) Other Comprehensive Income (-6.93) (-1.03)

Total   13898.00   13581.30

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for additions / deletions in each reserve.
Notes :

NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured Loan

 -  From Banks

        ICICI Bank Limited -LAMUM00042852086   11.11   24.92
Total   11.11   24.92

2. Details of Security:

b) The loan is secured by hypothecation of asset financed.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Deferred tax liabilities   90.21   95.84
b) Deferred tax (assets) (-2.15) (-1.16)

Total   88.07   94.68

Note No:- 3.15

Particulars

I. Securities premium reserve represents premium received on equity shares issued, which can be utilised only in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) for specified purposes.

Name of Shareholders

III. General reserve is created from time to time by transferring profits from retained earnings and can be utilised for purposes such as dividend payout,
bonus issue, etc.

IV. Capital redemption reserves represents created out of buyback or redemption of its own equity/preference shares, from its retained earnings. The
amount in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the shares bought back.

II.  Capital reserve represents reserve created pursuant to the business combinations.

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares is set out below:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the period ended 31st March 2018, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholder was NIL per share (PY
Nil)

Preference shareholder do not have any voting right. They are entitled to dividend @ 4% before equity shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited

V. Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
the shareholders.

Note No:-  3.16

Particulars

Note 3.17

Particulars

a) The  ICICI Bank Ltd Car Loan A/c no.LAMUM00042852086 was taken during the year and carries an interest rate of 7.80% per annum. The loan is  
repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Rs.1,35,178/- each.
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OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Payables
Security Deposit From Tenants   6.30   6.30
Provision for Gratuity   18.53   6.64
Advance against proposed JV   121.33   121.33

Total   146.16   134.27

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
1 LOANS REPAYABLE ON DEMAND

Working Capital Loans From Banks -   -   
a) Punjab National Bank OD-376097   907.40   950.29

Unsecured -   
 Loan From Direcors   559.30   1246.44
Loan from Others -     75.00

  Current maturity of long term borrowings   13.54   13.49
Total   1480.24   2285.22

Notes:
2. Details of Security:

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
   -     For Goods -     9360.59
   -     For Other Supplies   0.05   1.68

Total   0.05   9362.28

Notes :
(i) Ageing of trade payables as on 31-03-2024 are as below:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(i) MSME -   -   -   -   -   

(ii) Others   0.05 -   -   -     0.05

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -   -   -   -   -   
-   -   -   -   -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -   -   -   -   -   
-   -   -   -   -   

(i) Ageing of trade payables as on 31-03-2023 are as below:
Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME -   -   -   -   -   

(ii) Others   9360.59   1.68 -   -     9362.28

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -   -   -   -   -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -   -   -   -   -   

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited

Note No:- 3.19

Particulars

a. Cash Credit facility from Punjab National Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of Stocks & book debts of the company as primary security and
equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company & associated concern as collateral security & personal guarantee of the associated
concern & relatives of the key management personnels.

b. Bank overdraft facility from Punjab National Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company & associated
concern as collateral security & personal guarantee of the associated concern & relatives of the key management personnels.

Note No:- 3.20

Particulars

Notes:
1. Trade payables are recognized at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair value on initial recognition. The trade payables are
considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Note No:- 3.18

2. The management is of the opinion that none of their suppliers constitute micro, small and medium enterprises as per Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Hence, no separate disclosure has been made.

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

Particulars
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OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)   Brokerage Payable -     1.66
b)   Expenses Payable   8.02   6.69

Total   8.02   8.35

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)   Capital Overdrawn from Partnership Firms   2.13   5.21
b)   Statutory dues payable   2.61   6.53
c)   Margin money of customer -   -   
d)   Advance from Customers   9.42   32.92

  Other Payables to Partnership Firms -   -   
Total   14.16   44.67

PROVISIONS (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Employee Benefits

Salary & Incentives -     26.12

Contribution to Provident Funds   0.09   3.01
ESIC Payable   0.06   1.05

Total   0.15   30.18

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Amount in Lacs)
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax Provision   77.71   142.98
Less: TDS & TCS Receivable (-17.52) (-8.97)

Total   60.19   134.00

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited

Particulars

Note No:- 3.23

Particulars

Note No:- 3.22

Note No:- 3.21

Particulars

Note No:- 3.24

Particulars
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Sale of products

    - Manufactured   8423.33   2280.22
    - Traded -     687.68
    - High Seas Sales   6439.87   2439.32

Total   14863.19   5407.23

OTHER INCOME (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a)  Interest Income

i. From Banks   61.14   45.41
ii. From Others   762.67   722.32
iii. FDR   0.31   0.31

b) Income from Investments
i. Share of Profit/ (Loss) from Partnership Firm -   -   

c) Other Income :
i. Rent & Compensation   26.65   10.84

ii.   0.00 -   
iii. Foreign Exchange Gain (net)   54.56 -   
iv. Other Income -     0.25
v. Advances W/back no longer payable -     10.42
vi. Provision for Expected Credit Loss Reversed   0.07   0.46
vii. Subsidy Received from Green Plot   19.13 -   
viii. Sudry Balances Written Off   5.18 -   
ix. Profit on sale of motor vehicle   5.07 -   

Total   934.78   790.02

COST OF CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory at the Beginning of the Year   8498.89   723.41
Add: Ship Purchase for Recycling -     9717.21

  8498.89   10440.61
Less: Inventory at the end of the Year -     8498.89
Cost of Consumption of Raw Materials   8498.89   1941.72

PURCHASE OF STOCK - IN - TRADE (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Purchases   6393.24   3029.73

Total   6393.24   3029.73

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory at the Beginning of the Year -                                               -                                               
Less : Inventory at the End of the Year (-175.94) -                                               

Total (-175.94) -                                               

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gases & Carbide   61.34   16.24
Plot Rent & Development Charges   32.77   71.23
Power & Fuel Expenses   3.70   3.10
Consumable Expenses   5.65   7.28
Repair & Maintenance   0.40   0.38
Pollution Control Expenses   0.23   1.36
Other Manufacturing Expenses   1.84   0.49

Total   105.92   100.07

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 4.4

Particulars

Note No:- 4.5

Particulars

Note No:- 4.6

Particulars

Particulars

Note No:- 4.1

Particulars

Note No:- 4.2

Particulars

Note No:- 4.3

MTM Gain on Fair value of Mutual Fund/ Quoted 
Equity Shares (FVTPL)
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries & Wages   151.12   75.71
Salary to Directors   54.00   30.00
Bonus Expenses   9.26   4.23
Contribution to Provident Funds   7.33   2.68
Contribution to ESIC   3.92   1.55
Staff Welfare Expenses   0.54   1.01
Gratuity Expenses   5.13   2.36

Total   231.29   117.53

FINANCE COSTS (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Bank Charges

   Bank Commission & Charges   38.40   0.73
   LC Charges   13.37   69.93
   Bank Processing Charges   59.06   23.70

b) Interest Expenses
    Borrowing from Bank   67.96   48.87
    Others   54.09   74.16
    Reversal of Interest of Staff Loan -     2.17
    Late payment of Statutory Dues   0.23   2.11
    Shortfall in payment  of advance Income Tax   15.30 -   

Total   248.42   221.67

OTHER EXPENSES (Amount in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advertisements   1.20   1.38
Brokerage & Commission Expenses   10.74   6.80
Computer Charges   0.39   0.22
Donation/CSR Expenditure   17.00   1.05
Electricity Charges   1.12   2.68
Fees & Subscription   0.53   0.59
Filing Fees   0.47   0.12
Foreign Currency Transaction Variation -     26.12
GST Expenses   0.74   1.83
General Office Expenses   2.52   3.65
Insurance Expenses   2.42   2.52
Legal & Professional Expenses   26.56   41.52
Listing Fees   4.01   3.60
Loss on sale of assets -     0.09
Payment to Auditors   6.24   5.50
Postage & Courier   0.17   0.11
Printing & Stationery   0.35   0.14
Professional Tax   0.07   0.04
Rent, Rates & Taxes   31.14   18.23
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses   4.57   8.35
Share of Loss from Partnership Firm   0.01   0.05
Security Charges   4.69   1.78
Provision for Expected Credit Loss -     0.07
Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes of Investments classified as FVTPL -     0.00
Telephone Expenses   1.03   1.24
Travelling Expenses   12.30   14.75
Vehicle Running & Maintenance   2.77   4.62

Total   131.05   147.05

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Note No:- 4.8

Particulars

Note No:- 4.9

Particulars

Note No:- 4.7

Particulars

194 



INCOME TAX (Amount in Lacs)
1) Components of Income tax expense

The major component of Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:
 For the Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 For the Year ended

March 31, 2023 
Statement of Profit and Loss

Current tax
Current income tax   77.71   142.98
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods   0.10   7.62

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (-4.63) (-1.08)

  73.17   149.52
Other comprehensive income

Deferred tax on
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses (-1.98) (-0.35)

(-1.98) (-0.35)

Income tax expense as per the statement of profit and loss   71.19   149.17

2)
 For the Year ended

March 31, 2024 
 For the Year ended

March 31, 2023 
Profit before tax   395.76   560.05
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable   99.61   140.95
Adjustments for:
Expenses not allowed as deduction   8.58   1.02
Income being taxed at lower rate (-1.86) (-0.78)
(Profit)/ loss covered on consolidation of subsidiary -   -   
Exempt Income (-6.09)   0.01
Provision for Gratuity and Doubtful Debts   0.99   0.49
Capital Gain   2.47 -                                   
Difference of Depreciation   11.05   1.55
Exempt Income from associates (-37.04) (-0.27)
Tax expense / (benefit)   77.71   142.98
Effective Tax Rate 19.63% 25.53%

Note No:- 5.1

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars

The Company is subject to income tax in India on the basis of its standalone financial statements. The Company can claim tax exemptions/deductions
under specific sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961 subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions, as may be applicable. For the year ended March 31,
2024, the Company has planned to opt out for the new tax regime under Section 115BAA of the Act, which provides a domestic company with an
option to pay tax at a rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%). The lower rate shall be applicable subject to certain conditions, including that the total
income should be computed without claiming specific deduction or exemptions.

Business loss can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year to which the loss
pertains. Unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

Reconciliation of effective tax

Particulars
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3) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
(i)  For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

April 1, 2023

Credit/(charge) in the 
Statement of Profit 

and Loss

Credit/(charge) in 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

As at
March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
Property, Plant and Equipment   95.64 (-5.62)   90.02
Fair Value of financial instrument   0.20 (-0.00)   0.20
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (-0.77) (-0.02) (-0.79)
Retirement Benefit Plans (-0.39)   1.01 (-1.98) (-1.36)

  94.68 (-4.63) (-1.98)   88.07

(ii)  For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars
As at

April 1, 2022

Credit/(charge) in the 
Statement of Profit 

and Loss

Credit/(charge) in 
Other Comprehensive 

Income

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
Property, Plant and Equipment   97.21 (-1.57)   95.64
Fair Value of financial instruments   0.20   0.20
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (-0.67) (-0.10) (-0.77)
Retirement Benefit Plans (-0.63)   0.59 (-0.35) (-0.39)

  96.11 (-1.08) (-0.35)   94.68

4) Current tax assets and liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024
As at

March 31, 2023

Current tax assets -   -   
Current tax liabilities   60.19   134.00

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 
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Note No:- 5.2 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Amount in Lacs)
A. Defined contribution plans:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Provident fund   7.33   2.68
ESIC   3.92   1.55

  11.25   4.23

B. Defined benefit plans:
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity

1. The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.50%

Expected rate of salary increase

Attrition rate Up to 30 Years - 3% Up to 30 Years - 3%
31-44 Years - 2%  31-44 Years - 2% 

Above 44 Years - 1% Above 44 Years - 1%
Mortality rate during employment (% of IALM 12-14) 100% 100%

2. Movements in present value of obligation and plan assets

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening defined benefit obligation   6.64   2.91
Current service cost   4.63   2.15
Interest cost   0.50   0.21
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions   0.57 (-0.17)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments   7.31   1.55
Gratuity Paid (-1.11) -   
Closing defined benefit obligation   18.53   6.64

 3. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefitplans are as follows:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
         -  Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions   0.57 (-0.17)
         -  Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments   7.31   1.55
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income   7.88   1.38

4. Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions are as follows:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Defined benefit obligation (Base)   18.53   6.64

Discount Rate 1% increase   16.70   6.00
1% decrease   20.66   7.38

Salary Growth Rate 1% increase   19.77   7.38
1% decrease   17.13   6.00

Attrition Rate 1% increase   18.48   6.62
1% decrease   18.58   6.66

Mortality Rate 1% increase   18.55   6.65
1% decrease   18.52   6.63

5. The followings are the expected cash flows for the defined benefit obligation (based on undiscounted value) :

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Gratuity

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)   2.16   0.18
Between 2 and 5 years   1.39   1.92
Beyond 5 years   41.69   15.10

Total expected payments   45.24   17.20

6. Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Weighted average duration 11 Years 13 Years

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars  Year ended 

Particulars  Year ended 

Particulars  Year ended 

Particulars Sensitivity level Defined benefit obligation

7.00% 10% for first two years and 7% thereafter

Particulars  Year ended 

Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at
a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions are made to the provident fund as set up by Government.

Amount of Rs. 11.25 Lakhs (FY 2022-23 : Rs. 4.23 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note 4.7 : Employee benefit expense.

Particulars Year ended

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment in accordance with the scheme of the company. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
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C. Other Long term employee benefit plans
Company does not have any other Long term employee benefit plans for the aforsaid period.

Note No:- 5.3 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Earning per share
       -   Basic 5.23                             6.66                             
       -   Diluted 5.23                             6.66                             
Face value per share 10                                10                                

Basic & Diluted EPS
  322.59   410.54

  61.67   61.67

Note No:- 5.4 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current & non current borrowings   1491.36   2310.15
Trade and other payables   22.24   9415.30

  85.33   1057.42
Net debt   1428.26   10668.03

Equity share capital   616.67   616.67

Other equity   13898.00   13581.30
Total capital   14514.66   14197.96
Capital and net debt   15942.92   24865.99
Gearing ratio (%) 8.96% 42.90%

Note No:- 5.5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

Particulars Change in basis 
points

March 31, 2024
Rupee borrowings +50

-50
March 31, 2023

Rupee borrowings +50
-50

Foreign currency risk

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Payables -     113.85 -     9360.59

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars                                      
Foreign Currency Amount (in USD) Reporting Currency Amount (in INR)

As at As at

  7.33

(-11.36)
  11.36

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Company actively manages its currency 
Given below is the foreign currency exposure arising from the non derivative financial instruments:

The Board of Directors reviews and approves risk management framework and policies for managing these risks and monitors suitable mitigating actions taken by the
management to minimise potential adverse effects and achieve greater predictability to earnings. In line with the overall risk management framework and policies, the
management monitors and manages risk exposure through an analysis of degree and magnitude of risks. 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, liquidity and other factors that could have an adverse effect on realizable fair values or future cash flows to the
Company. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates as future specific market
changes cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on profit before tax

(-7.33)

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes, within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

Particulars As at

Less: cash and cash equivalent

In course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks that could have significant influence on the Company's business and operational/ financial
performance. These include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Particulars Year ended

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
   Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of earnings per share

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
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Particulars Change in USD rate
March 31, 2024
Trade Payables 5%

-5%
March 31, 2023
Trade Payables 5%

-5%

Credit Risk

Trade receivables

Liquidity Risk

Particulars On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

As at year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current borrowings   907.40   559.30   1466.70
Non current borrowings   13.54   11.11   24.65
Trade payables   0.05   0.05

March 31, 2023
Current borrowings   950.29 -     1321.44 -   -     2271.73
Non current borrowings -   -     13.49   24.92 -     38.41
Trade payables -   -     9362.28 -   -     9362.28

Note No:- 5.6  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Amount in Lacs)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial Assets
a. Measured at cost:
     Investments

       - In associates   12993.84   12360.73
       - In Partnership Firms   343.61   0.25
       - Equity Shares (Unquoted)   0.00   0.00

b. Measured at amortised cost:
        Cash & cash equivalents (including other bank balances)   85.33   1057.42

     Trade receivables -     69.92
     Loans   1319.00   1319.00
     Others   13.45   9.04

     Investments
     - Equity shares (Quoted)   0.01   0.00

Financial Liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost:
     Borrowings   1491.36   2310.15
     Trade payables   0.05   9362.28
     Other Current Financial Liabilities   8.02   8.35

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility largely through cashflow generation from its operating activities and the use
of bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding.

The table below summarises the maturity profile remaining contractual maturity period at the balance sheet date for its financial liabilities based on the undiscounted cash
flows.

Particulars As at

  c. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) / other comprehensive income 
(OCI):

  468.03

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and foreign
exchange transactions.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s internal policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on market feedback and credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in independent
markets.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 days to 90 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal rating
criteria. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically.

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds through using a liquidity planning process that encompasses an analysis of projected cash inflow and outflow.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the 

Effect on profit before tax

-                                                                      
-                                                                      

(-468.03)
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Note No:- 5.7 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(A) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets :

Quoted prices in 
active markets

(Level 1)

Significant 
observable inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
Total

March 31, 2024
Assets measured at fair value

FVTPL investments
Equity shares - Quoted   0.01 -   -     0.01

Assets disclosed at fair value
Investment properties -   -     213.92   213.92

March 31, 2023
Assets measured at fair value

FVTPL investments
Equity shares - Quoted   0.00 -   -     0.00

Assets disclosed at fair value
Investment properties -   -     221.12   221.12

(B) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities :

Note No:- 5.8 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars Mumbai Bhavnagar
Industrial Oxygen & 

Trading
Total

i.     Segment Revenue
       Gross Revenue   6439.87   8423.33 -     14863.19

  3127.00   2280.22 -     5407.23

       Less: Intersegmental revenue -                               -                               -                               -                               
-                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

       Revenue from operations   6439.87   8423.33 -     14863.19
  3127.00   2280.22 -     5407.23

       Other Income (after inter segment eliminations)   919.81   14.97 -     934.78
  790.02

ii.   Segment Results
Profit / (loss) before finance costs, exceptional items and tax   872.02 (-227.66) (-0.17)   644.19

  745.85   36.25 (-0.39)   781.72

           Interest Expenses   187.75   60.67   0.00   248.42
  221.67

       Profit before Tax   395.76
  560.05

           Taxes   73.17
  149.52

       Profit after Tax   322.59
  410.54

iii.    Segment Assets   15654.47   650.50   0.94   16305.90
  15709.71   10588.30   0.94   26298.95

Investment in Equity Accounted Associates (included in above segment assets)   12993.84
  12360.73

iv.    Segment Liabilities   1777.22   30.94 -     1808.16
  2607.07   9511.50 -     12118.58

(* Figures in italics are in respect of the previous year)
Notes:
a) Revenue from external sources includes income from sale of manufactured goods.
b) Carrying amount of segment assets comprises of non-current assets and current assets identified to respective segments.
c) The figures of segment results include inter segment interest income/ expense.

Operating Revenue

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended
March 31, 2023 

   -  From Outside India -   -   
   -  From India   14863.19   5407.23

Productwise Revenue

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2024 

 Year ended
March 31, 2023 

   -  Waste & Scrap of ferrous and non-ferrous   14863.19   4719.54
   -  Hot Rolled Coils -     687.68
   -  Industrial Oxygen Gas -   -   

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Particulars

Fair value measurement using

Company does not have any financial liability which is measured either at Fair value through profit and loss account or measured at Fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group's business segments are identified based on the geographic locations of its units and the internal business reporting system as per Ind AS 108. Business segments
of the company are primarily categorized as: Mumbai and Bhavnagar.

This Consolidated Segment Information includes Industrial Oxygen & Trading Segment pertains to subsidiary of the company.

Except for the following, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:
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Note No:- 5.9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Amount in Lacs)
Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, ” Related Party Disclosures”, are given below.

(A) Particulars of related parties and nature of relationships
A. Companies over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence 
        1. Shree Balaji Associates
        2. White Mountain
B.  Subsidiary
        1. Hariyana Air Products
C.  Associates
        1. Orchid Lakeview Developers
        2. Swastik Developers
        3. Whitefield Projects
        4. Goyal Hariyana Realty
        5. Goyal and Company (Construction) Pvt Ltd.
        6. Goyal Hariyana Construction
D.  Key Management Personnel 
          Managing Director
             1.  Rakesh Reniwal
          Executive directors
             2.  Shanti Sarup Reniwal
             3.  Unnati Reniwal

Company Secretary
             4.  Dhwani Pumaniya (previous)
             5.  Pooja Yadav

Chief Financial Officer
             6.  Kirti Desai

(B) Related party transactions and balances

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sales and other operating income
(i) Other operating income / Other income
Interest Income from associates
White Mountain -   -   
Orchid Lakeview Developers -   -   
Swastik Developers   78.30   72.21
Goyal Hariyana Realty   684.37   649.64

  762.67   721.85
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from the firms
Shree Balaji Associates (-0.01) (-0.05)

(-0.01) (-0.05)
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from associates
Orchid Lakeview Developers (-0.06) (-0.08)
Goyal Hariyana Realty   147.24   8.98
White Mountain -   -   

  147.18   8.90

Interest Expense
Orchid Lakeview Developers -   -   
Rakesh Reniwal   42.84   42.70
Shantisarup Reniwal   8.78   17.34
Unnati Reniwal   0.39 -   

  52.01   60.03

Shantisarup Reniwal   4.50   6.00
Dhawani Punamiya -     1.80
Pooja Yadav   4.80   0.99
Kirti Shantilal Desai   8.82   7.68
Unnati Reniwal   18.00   12.00
Rakesh Reniwal   31.50   12.00

  67.62   40.47

Rajeev Reniwal   28.11 -   
  28.11 -   

(i) Loan Taken
Shantisarup Reniwal   812.70   766.25
Rakesh Reniwal   39.00   513.50
Unnati Reniwal   32.00 -   

  883.70   1279.75
(ii) Loan Repaid

Shantisarup Reniwal   1203.15   246.48
Rakesh Reniwal   279.39   257.64
Unnati Reniwal   6.00 -   

  1488.54   504.12
Investment in Partnership Firms
Capital Introduced
Shree Balaji Associates   346.50   26.00

  346.50   26.00
Capital Withdrawan
Shree Balaji Associates -     26.00

-     26.00
Investment in Associates
Capital Introduced
Goyal Hariyana Realty -   -   

-   -   
Capital Withdrawan
Orchid Lakeview Developers -                               -                               
Goyal Hariyana Realty   220.00   7.03
White Mountain -   -   
Swastik Developers   56.81 -   

  276.81   7.03

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

Remuneration Paid 

Car Sold (Incl. GST)

Short Term Borrowings

The details of material transactions and balances with related parties (including those pertaining to discontinued operations) are given below:

a) Transactions during the year Year ended
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March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Goyal and Company (Construction) Pvt. Ltd.   121.33   121.33
  121.33   121.33

Rajeev Reniwal
  28.11 -   
  28.11 -   

(a) In partnership firms 
Shree Balaji Associates - Fixed Capital   0.25   0.25
Shree Balaji Associates - Current Capital   343.36 (-3.14)
(b) In associates
   -    In Fixed Capital
Goyal Hariyana Realty   0.50   0.50
   -    In Current Capital
Whitefield Projects   4.20   4.20
Swastik Developers   896.35   874.86
Goyal Hariyana Realty   12092.78   11481.17
Orchid Lakeview Developers (-2.13) (-2.07)

  13335.31   12355.77

Shanti Sarup Reniwal   154.80   537.35
Rakesh Reniwal   378.15   609.09
Unnati Reniwal   26.35 -   

  559.30   1146.44

Note No:- 5.10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Property, Plant And Equipment 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities
Disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts*
           -   Income tax   1155.22   1155.22
 Claims against the Company

   -   Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB)   25.34   25.34
   -   Customs & Excise   18.35   18.35

Corporate Guarantees :
           - Hariyana Ship Demolition Private Limited   12500.00   12500.00
           - Hariyana International Private Limited   4500.00   4500.00

Notes: 

Note No:- 5.11 LEASES

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

  27.60   9.60

Note No:- 5.12 (Amt. in INR)

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1. Information regarding Imports (CIF)
         a) Raw materials and components -     9421.09
         a) Traded Goods   6393.24 -   

  6393.24   9421.09
2. Auditors' remuneration
     Included under Other Expenses
         i) For financial audit   4.74   4.25
         ii) For taxation matters -   -   
         iii) For other services - review of accounts, certification work, etc.   1.50   1.25

  6.24   5.50

Note No:- 5.13 EXPENDITURE FOR CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

  16.97 NA

Amount spent during the year :
          (a) Construction / Acquisition of any asset -   -   
          (b) On Purpose other than (a) above   17.00 -   
          (c) Non utilized amount -   -   
Notes: 

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

1. CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the companies act, 2013 read with schedule VII thereof by the company during the year is Rs. 16.97 Lakhs.

3. During FY 2022-23 the company was not required to spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per applicability of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

2.The Company has deposited Rs.25.34 Lacs (March 31,2023:Rs.25.34 Lacs) under protest agaisnt demand raised by Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) on account of 
amendement fees and delayed interest.The matter is pending before the appellate authority of GMB. The company expects favourable resolution of the said appeal.

3. The Company has deposited amount under protest of Rs.18.35 Lacs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 18.35 Lacs) in respect of various demands relating to customs and excise duty. 
The matters are pending before the various appellate authorities. The company expects favourable resolution of the said appeals.

4. Punjab National Bank, Large Corporate Branch, Mumbai Cuffe Parade, Mumbai, has sanctioned group exposure of Rs. 395 Crores covering specified limits for each 
company viz. a) Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited - Rs. 225 Crores, b) Hariyana International Private Limited - Rs. 45 Crores and c) Hariyana Ship Demolition Private Limited - 
Rs. 125 Crores. Since the bank sanctioned group limits, each company mentioned above stand as Corporate Gurantor to each other. All these companies are under same 
management.

1. The Company has ongoing disputes with income tax authorities relating to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly include disallowance of expenses, tax treatment 
of certain expenses claimed by the Company as deduction and the computation of or eligibility of the Company’s use of certain allowances.

The Company has entered into agreements for taking on leave and license basis office/ godown premises including furniture and fittings therein, as applicable, for a period 
of 60 years. The specified disclosure in respect of these agreements is given below:

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
schedule VII

 As at 

2. Total Rs. 17.00 Lakh is spent through JIVAN JYOT FOUNDATION, the implementing agency. 

OTHER INFORMATION (INCLUDING FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS)

b)  Balances at the end of the year As at

Advance Received

Other Receivables

Investments Balance at the end of the year

Year ended 

Year ended 

Year ended 

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

* The Company has been advised that the demand is likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision is considered necessary.

Lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss
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Note No. 5.14 FINANCIAL RATIOS
The ratios as per the latest amendment to Schedule III are as below:

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
0.21 0.94 -77.16%

Debt Average Equity 0.10 0.16 36.85%

EBITDA 4.37 5.04 -13.35%

Profit After Tax Average Equity 2.25% 2.93% -23.41%

Average Inventory Cost of Goods Sold
3.47 1.13 208.41%

Average Trade Receivables Revenue From Operation 425.13 86.71 390.28%

1.37 1.79 -23.90%

Average working capital Revenue From Operation
-15.25 -8.98 -69.80%

Profit after tax Revenue From Operation
2.17% 7.59% -71.41%

EBIT Average Capital Employed

3.95% 2.97% 32.86%

Return on Investments Non Current Investments 1.33% 0.10% 1236.71%

Previous year ratios are reworked on account of proper reworking of applicable parameters

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

(EBITDA :  Profit before taxes + 
depreciation & Amortisation + 

Interest)

Total current assets Total Current liabilities

(Debt: Non-current borrowings + 
Current borrowings)

Particulars Numerator Denominator

(1) Current ratio

(2) Debt equity ratio

(3) Debt service coverage ratio

 On account of increase in rental income and increase in average balance of investments 
and net increase of share of profit of partnership firm, associate and subsidiary. 

(EBIT: Profit Before Tax + Finance 
Cost)

(Capital Employed: Equity share 
capital + Other Equity + Non 
Current Liabilities + Current 

Liabilities)

Average Trade Payables Total Purchase

On account of Reduction in Borrowed funds and Trade Payables has positive impact on 
return on capital employed.

On account of better working capital management and inventory management resulting 
into higher operational activity resulting into improvement in Inventory turnover ratio.

On account of better working capital management and improvement in collection 
mechanism and higher operational activity  resulting into improvement in Trade 
Receivables ratio.
NA

Increase in higher operational activity compared to capital employed in the business has 
resulted into reduction in net capital turnover ratio

Reduction in operational margin in sales turnover and increase in operational costs. 

(Equity: Equity share capital + 
Other Equity)

Remarks for variance more than 25%

 On account of decrease in current assets resulting from utilisation of GST credit 
balances during the current year, Reduction of Cash & Cash Equivalents and reduction of 
inventory resulting into lower ratio. 

(Equity: Equity share capital + 
Other Equity)

On account of repayment of short term and Long term borrowings.

NA

NA

Long Term Debts + Interest 
Expense

Year ended
Variance (in %)

(9) Net profit ratio (%)

(10) Return on Capital Employed (%)

(11) Return on investment (%)

(4) Return on Equity (%)

(5) Inventory turnover ratio (in 
Times)

(6) Debtors turnover ratio (in Times)

(7) Trade payables turnover ratio (in 
times)

(8) Net capital turnover ratio (in 
times)
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Note No. 5.15 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
1. The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited (the Parent Company), subsidiary and its associates, together constitute “the Group”).
2.  Principles of consolidation

a)

b)

c)

d)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1 Hariyana Air Products 95.00% 95.00%

e)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1 Goyal Hariyana Realty India 50.00% 50.00%
2 Orchid Lakeview Developers India 33.33% 33.33%
3 Whitefield Projects India 40.00% 40.00%
4 Swastik Developers India 33.33% 33.33%

3 Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 entities consolidated as subsidiary and associates :

As % Consolidated 
Net Assets

Amount 
As % Consolidated 

Profit or (Loss)
Amount 

As % Consolidated 
Profit or (Loss)

Amount 
As % Consolidated 

Profit or (Loss)
Amount 

1 Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 10.37          15,02,96,298 54.43         1,75,57,924 100.00 (5,89,621)               53.58             1,69,68,303 

2 Hariyana Air Products 0.01                      93,992                         (0.05) (17,366)               0.00                               -                           (0.05)                    (17,366)

3 Goyal Hariyana Realty 83.43       1,20,93,28,294 45.64 1,47,24,256        0.00                               -   46.49             1,47,24,256 
4 Orchid Lakeview Developers                         (0.01)                 (2,13,131)                         (0.02) (5,900)                 0.00                               -                           (0.02)                      (5,900)
5 Whitefield Projects 0.03                  4,20,386 0.00 -                       0.00                               -   0.00                               -   
6 Swastik Developers 6.18             8,96,34,830 0.00 -                       0.00                               -   0.00                               -   

Sub Total 100.00       1,44,95,60,669 100.00         3,22,58,915 100.00                 (5,89,621) 100.00             3,16,69,293 
                              -   -                                                         -   -                                                     -                                 -                                 -                                 -   

Total 100.00 1,44,95,60,669      100.00 3,22,58,915        100.00 (5,89,621)               100.00 3,16,69,293            
Notes: 13789.14 184.18 5.31 189.48

Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 110 (IND AS 110) “Consolidated Financial Statements”, Indian Accounting Standard 28 (IND AS
28) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and unrealised profits have been fully eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of the amount of equity attributable to the non controlling shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the
Parent Company in the subsidiary partnership firm and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments as stated above.

The following subsidiary is considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements:
Sr.
No.

Name of the Subsidiary Country of Incorporation
% of ownership interest

India

The following associates have been considered in the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group in accordance with IND AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” (as per 
the Equity Method) :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Associates Country of Incorporation
% of ownership interest

Indian Subsidiary

Indian Associates (Investment as per the equity method)

Add/ (Less): Effect of intercompany adjustments/ eliminations

Net Assets and Share of Profit or Loss for Parent Company, Subsidiaries, and Associates are as per the Standalone/ Consolidated Financial Statements of the respective entities .

Sr.
No.

Name of the Entity

Net Assets Share of Profit or (Loss) Share in Other Comprehensive Income Share in Total Comprehensive Income
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Note No 5.16:- DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

Note No 5.17:- OTHER NOTES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For L S M & Co. For S.N Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Hariyana Ship Breakers Limited
FRN : 116870W FRN : 109782W

Unnati Rakesh Reniwal Rakesh Reniwal
CA Navneet lahoti CA Dhruvin Joshi Director Director
Partner Partner                                            DIN: 00041306 DIN: 00029332
Membership No. 100529 Membership No. 612290
UDIN : 24100529BKFSXN2812 UDIN : 24612290BJZZQQ9541

Kirti Desai Pooja Yadav
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbai
Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024 Date : 30-05-2024

iv) Balances grouped under Non Current Liabilities and Current Liabilities, Non Current Assets and Current Assets in certain cases are subject to 
confirmation and reconciliation from respective parties. Impact of the same, if any, shall be accounted as and when determined.

v) In the opinion of the Management Long Term Loans and Advances, Other Non Current Assets, Current Assets and Other Current Assets fetch 
approximately the value as stated in the Financial Statement if realised in the ordinary course of business subject to balance confirmation. The provision 
for all known liabilities is adequate and is not in excess of amounts considered reasonably necessary.

The company has communicated suppliers to provide confirmations as to their status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise registered under the
applicable category as per the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). The company has
classified suppliers into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per the confirmations received by the company upto the date of the financial
statements.

i)  The figures for the previous year have been reclassified/ regrouped wherever necessary for better understanding and comparability.

ii) The company has invested in five partnership firms and balance outstanding in current capital account (Net of Capital Overdrawn) as on March 31,
2024 is Rs.133.35 Crores (As on March 31, 2023 Rs.123.56 Crores). Persuant to partnership deed exceuted among partners of one partnership Firm no
interest is payable or recoverable to or from partners on balances outstanding in current capital account.

iii) The company has given interest free advances of Rs.13.19 Crores (P.Y. Rs.13.19 Crores) for carrying business jointly with one body corporate where
formal joint venture agreement is yet to be made. 
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